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Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries (the Company and the subsidiaries are
hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) are the designing,
manufacturing, marketing and trading of fine jewellery and
diamonds. Also, the Group maintains an investment portfolio
including property investment and development, mining and
other industries.

On the manufacturing side, Continental Jewellery (Mfg.)
Limited, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, mainly
engages in the product development, manufacture
and marketing of fine jewellery primarily for export
and is regarded as one of the leaders in fine jewellery
manufacturing. A substantial share of our jewellery products
is currently directed at the middle to upper segments of the
market. We specialize in manufacturing fine jewellery in
precious metal set with diamond, ruby, emerald, sapphire,
pearl and other semiprecious stones.

The Group has production plants in China with full
capabilities in jewellery design, direct stone sourcing,
stone cutting, lapidary, alloying and gold refining. The
management of the Group is known for its commitment to
quality, and its finished products are visible testaments to
that commitment.

The Group has fully-integrated diamond cutting and
jewellery production facilities in China. With around 825
skilled workers, our facilities are best known for their quality
and ability to handle diamond cutting works on a wide range
of products.
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Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBs, Jp
Group Chairman

| am pleased to present the annual report of Continental
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2013.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

During the fiscal year 2013, the Group achieved a turnover
of HK$949.2 million (2012: HK$955.7 million). Profit
attributable to owners of the Company was HK$85.8 million
(2012: HK$214.9 million) and basic earnings per share was
HK1.68 cent (2012: HK4.72 cent). Such decrease in profit
is mainly attributable to the absence of an one-off gain of
HK$364.8 million arising from acquisition of subsidiaries
engaging in mining and exploration of mineral resources in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") recorded in the
last fiscal year.

During the year under review, the momentum in consumer
spending remains weak both internationally and locally.
Despite the gradual economic recovery in the USA and
significant monetary support in Europe, the consumer
confidence has yet to revive particularly for the luxury
market. In recent years retailers are truncating their supplier
base; however, our Group has upheld our position as a
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preferred supplier of choice with most of our customers.
In China, we believe there are strong intrinsic growth
potential and opportunities in this market region. In view
of the growing consumer demand, the Group opened two
retail outlets and an additional one by the end of 2013 in
Guangdong Province of the PRC. The jewellery business
has continued to bring steady income to the Group. With
continual investment and expansion in potential markets, we
are optimistic in the jewellery growth in the near term as the
overseas markets start to pick up.

As for property investment, the Group is maintaining two
development projects in Hong Kong and the PRC. In Hong
Kong, the project is located at No. 236-242 Des Voeux Road
Central and the foundation work is in progress. The project
occupies a site area of approximately 302 sg. m., which will
be developed into a multi-storey commercial, shop and retail
premises with a gross floor area of approximately 4,527 sq.
m. The main contract of the pile cap and superstructure has
been confirmed and the completion is expected by the end
of 2015. Attributed to the very thriving property market in
Hong Kong, the fair value gains on the investment property
amounted to HK$84.8 million (2012: HK$1.6 million).

In the PRC, the Group has a 50% interest through a jointly
controlled entity which holds two parcels of land with a
total site area of approximately 18,101 sg. m and a gross
floor area of approximately 98,881 sq. m. in Yangpu District
of Shanghai (LE/8#58E) in the PRC. The land parcels
will be developed into an eleven-floored mid-scale multi-
purpose property comprising of a large shopping mall, offices
with substantial car parking facilities. Basement level and
foundation works have been completed and the construction
of the property is in good progress. Leasing activities have
also begun and we are targeting completion by end of 2014.
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For the mining sector, trial production continued in the Hong
Zhuang Gold Mine in the fiscal year of 2013. Although all
gold resources estimated under category PRC 122b of the
Yuanling mine field had been exhausted (Please refer to table
of Annual Update on Details of Resources and/or Reserves on
page 13), the Board took notice of an encouraging indication
that some old shafts with residue ore with economic
value can continue to support trial production in the near
term. Activities such as re-visiting some of the old shafts
and feasibility study of developing new shafts are being
conducted. Meanwhile, targets with potential ore resources
at promising grades were identified and further studies
will be required to confirm the mining design at both the
Yuanling and Hong Zhuang mine field.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Despite gradual recovery for the jewellery industry, the
Group continues to strengthen our positioning in the market.
Through product innovation, technology deployment, as well
as brand building, the Group is able to sustain and increase
its competitive advantage. Our Group remains focus in
working closely and growing its business with key customers
in each region. Going forward, the Group will explore more
opportunities in new markets and focus our core competitive
advantage in the jewellery segment.

Our property projects are all in good progress and we
expect to see revenue contributions to the Group by the end
of 2014. As for mining, the Group will continue the trial
production activities at the Yuanling mine field and further
studies and developments on the identified targets with
potential.

In the coming year, we expect the market continues to be
challenging and the economic condition will remain soft.
With our strong foothold and increasing brand recognition,
we believe the Group will emerge as a market leader.
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IMPAIRMENT LOSS OF AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
FINANCIAL ASSETS

At 30 June 2013, the Group held an equity interest in
Macarthur Minerals Limited (“MMS"), MMS is an Australian
company listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange in Canada.
The Group holds the interest in MMS as for long term
investment and accounted for as a non-current asset
“available-for-sale financial assets”.

As a result of the recent fluctuation in commaodities price, the
fair value of MMS declined to approximately HK$7,992,000
as at 30 June 2013 (2012: HK$18,068,000), representing a
fair value loss of HK$10,076,000 for the year. This amount
of fair value loss, was as an impairment loss of available-for-
sale financial assets due to the significant and prolonged
decline in the share price of MMS. The impairment losses
were considered to be an exceptional item and did not have
any effect on the Group'’s cash flow.
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ANNUAL UPDATE ON DETAILS OF RESOURCES
AND/OR RESERVES UNDER RULES OF 18.15, 18.17
AND 18.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

There has been no material change on the resources and/or
reserves of the Group during the year. The following table
shows the details of resources and/or reserves of the Group
as at 30 June 2013:

BLERE =24RE
Type of (W8)
& A mining Gold Reporting (% ,/Wf)
Reporting date  operation  resources Standard  Gold grade
(t) (9/t)

HEER  EEmA

REIIZ%122b 5.58
PRC 122b
FE1Z %332 1.89
PRC 332
24.66 B3 4333 4.46
PRC 333

—B-=Ff T 1073
~NA=1+B8  Underground
30 June 2013 5.46

REIE %1220 -
PRC 122b

B2 %333 3.87
PRC 333

-g-=%  #%F -
~NA=FH  Underground
30 June 2013 0.05

Factors and assumptions such as gold grade, ore body
thickness and shape of vein were considered for estimating
the resources and/or reserves. Please refer to Section 8
of Appendix VII of the circular of the Company dated 25
January 2010 for further information of the resources and/or
reserves estimation.

* The unofficial English translations or transliterations of Chinese
names are for identification purpose only
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

As of 30 June 2013, the Group had a gearing ratio of
0.22 (2012: 0.21), which is calculated on net debt divided
by total equity plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as
the sum of bank and other borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents. Total cash and cash equivalents were
HK$37,911,000 (2012: HK$85,236,000) which were mainly
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, US Dollar and British
Pound. The decrease in total cash and cash equivalents
is mainly attributable to settlement of balance payment
of the mining licence and advance to a jointly controlled
entity. While bank loans were HK$336,181,000 (2012:
HK$324,172,000) which were mainly denominated in Hong
Kong Dollar and Renminbi. Other borrowings in respect of
convertible notes, amount due to related companies, loan
from a controlling shareholder and amount due to ultimate
holding company were approximately of HK$202,666,000
(2012: HK$209,421,000). The bank loans are secured by first
legal charges over the Group’s investment property, certain
leasehold land and buildings, and guaranteed by corporate
guarantees executed by the Company.

Among the total bank loan of HK$336,181,000 classified
as current liabilities, a mortgage loan and construction bank
loan of HK$192,500,000 are contractually due for repayment
after twelve months from the reporting date.

In line with the Group'’s prudent financial management, the
Directors considered that the Group has sufficient working
capital to meet its operational requirements.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 30 June 2013, the Group's investment property, certain
leasehold land and buildings and land use rights with an
aggregate net carrying value of HK$564,334,000 (2012:
HK$475,126,000) were pledged to certain banks to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in local Hong
Kong Dollar and Renminbi. Interest is determined on the
basis of Hong Kong Interbank Offering Rate or Prime Rate for
Hong Kong Dollar borrowings, and the benchmark lending
rate of the People’s Bank of China for Renminbi borrowings.
The Group also made use of foreign exchange forward
contracts in order to minimise exchange rate risk as a result
of fluctuation in British Pound. There was no change to the
Group's capital structure during the year ended 30 June
2013. In light of the current financial position of the Group
and provided there is no unforeseeable circumstance, the
management does not anticipate the need to change the
capital structure.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

i) On 8 November 2012, the Company as one of the
guarantors, entered into a facility agreement in favour
of a bank in relation to the provision of a term loan
facility in the principal amount of RMB470,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$582,800,000) by
the bank to a wholly-owned subsidiary of a jointly
controlled entity of the Company. Further details of
which are set out in the section under “Significant
Event”.

i) The Company had issued a convertible note in the
principal amount of approximately HK$58,167,000
to Famous Key Holdings Limited (“Famous Key”) on
30 March 2011 which should be due and payable by
the Company on maturity date falling on 30 March
2013. On 18 March 2013, Famous Key has issued
a "Letter of Indulgence” to the Company, pursuant
to which, Famous Key agreed to undertake in favor
of the Company that it would not demand the
repayment of the principal amount of HK$58,167,000
for another 18 months commencing immediately after
the maturity date. Further details of which are set out
in note 35 to the financial statements.
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ADVANCE FROM A CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

As at 30 June 2012, the Company had outstanding loan of
HK$105,000,000 due to Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles (“Dr
Chan”). The loan is unsecured, interest-bearing at 1.5% per
annum and has no fixed terms of repayment. Subsequent
to a supplemental loan agreement dated 6 June 2013, the
Company shall repay HK$90,000,000 to Dr. Chan on or
before 30 June 2015 and HK$15,000,000 at any time under
its discretion. The Company has made repayment to Dr.
Chan on 14 June 2013 in the amount of HK$5,000,000.

Pursuant to another loan agreement dated 26 October 2012,
an additional loan amount of RMB4,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$5,022,000) is advanced from Dr. Chan
to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the loan is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable in two years.

As at 30 June 2013, an amount of HK$105,022,000 remains
outstanding owed by the Group to Dr. Chan.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has provided guarantees amounting to
HK$528,381,000 (2012: HK$487,500,000) with respect
to bank loans to its subsidiaries. A guarantee to the
extent of RMB235,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$295,066,000) (2012: Nil) was given by the Company in
favour of a bank in respect of a term loan facility granted to
a subsidiary of a jointly controlled entity of the Company.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30 June 2013, the Group had outstanding capital
commitments of approximately HK$304,165,000
(2012: HK$294,255,000), which was mainly the capital
commitments for the properties under development classified
under investment property undertaken by jointly controlled
entities attributable to the Group.

SIGNIFICANT EVENT

On 8 November 2012, the Company, as one of the
guarantors, entered into a facility agreement in favour of
a bank in relation to the provision of a term loan facility
in the principal amount of RMB470,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$582,800,000) (the “Facility”) by a
bank to a subsidiary of a jointly controlled entity of the
Company. Pursuant to the Facility, the Company entered
into a repayment guarantee with the bank for financial
obligations of RMB235,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$291,400,000), being 50% of the Facility. The Facility will
be utilised for the payment of construction costs, associated
professional and consulting fees (including architect’s and
surveyor’s fees), marketing expenses, other reasonably
related and overhead expenses and taxes in respect of the
construction site located in Yangpu District of Shanghai (/&
15/ I&). Further details of which are set out in the circular of
the Company dated 29 November 2012.
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION
POLICIES AND SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Group employs a total of approximately 1,020
employees with the majority in the PRC. The Group’s
remuneration to its employees is largely based on common
industrial practice. The Company has adopted a share option
scheme on 13 July 2010, under which, the Company may
grant options to eligible persons including directors and
employees. No share option was granted pursuant to the
scheme since its adoption.

EXPOSURE TO FINANCIAL RISK AND RELATED
HEDGES

The Group utilises conservative strategies on its financial
risk management and the market risk had been kept to
minimum. With the exception of the UK subsidiaries, all
transactions and the borrowings of the Group are primarily
denominated in US Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar and Renminbi.
The risk of foreign exchange fluctuation is minimal. During
the year, the Group made use of foreign exchange forward
contracts in order to minimise exchange rate risk as a result
of fluctuation in British Pound. Management will continue
to monitor the foreign exchange risk exposure and will take
appropriate actions when necessary. As of 30 June 2013, the
Group has entered into certain foreign exchange forward
contracts.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM")
will be held on Monday, 25 November 2013 and the Notice
of AGM will be published and despatched in the manner
as required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) in due course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM, the Register of Members of the Company will be
closed from Thursday, 21 November 2013 to Monday, 25
November 2013, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 20
November 2013.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the Group’s management and staff members
for their dedication and hard work, our customers for
their confidence and support for our products, and our
shareholders for their trust and support.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 September 2013
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBs, JpP, is the Chairman and
Founder of the Group. Dr. Chan is an Executive Director of
the Company and holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of the Company. He is responsible for strategic planning,
corporate development and investment of the Group.
Dr. Chan has over 50 years of experience in the jewellery
industry. He is currently the President of the Hong Kong
Jewellery & Jade Manufacturers Association; Appointed
Member of the University Court of The HK University of
Science & Technology; Member of Product Promotion
Programme Committee of the HKTDC; Director of Hong
Kong Energy and Minerals United Association; as well as a
member of other trade associations. In community, charitable
and political involvements, Dr. Chan is the Permanent
Honorary Director of Friends of Hong Kong Association
Ltd., and Member of The Association of Chairmen of The
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals. Dr. Chan was appointed a
committee member of the City of Jiangmen Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference since 2003; and the
Permanent Honorary President of Jiangmen Overseas Chinese
Enterprise Federation since 2006.

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, is the Managing Director
and Co-Founder of the Group. Ms. Cheng is an Executive
Director of the Company and holds directorship in various
subsidiaries of the Company. She is responsible for the daily
operations, financial management, corporate development,
sales and marketing as well as strategic planning of the
Group. Ms. Cheng has over 40 years of experience in the
jewellery industry and has been actively involved in the
business development of the Group since the beginning. Ms.
Cheng also plays an active role in the community, currently
1st Vice President of Zonta Club of Hong Kong (2012-2014),
and Executive Committee, Honorary Vice President and
Council Member of the Hong Kong Federation of Women.
In addition, she was awarded as one of the “100 Chinese
Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs” in 2006 and was a
committee member of the City of Jiangmen Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. Ms. Cheng is the wife of
Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles.
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Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki, joined the Group in 1995.
She is responsible for retail operation and the business
administration functions in the Group. Ms. Chan graduated
from University of California, Berkeley with a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Economics. Ms. Chan is a Graduate Gemologist
of the Gemological Institute of America. She is Charter
President of Zonta Club of Hong Kong II, actively involved in
the Zonta Community. She is the daughter of Dr. Chan Sing
Chuk, Charles.

Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor, joined the Group in 2000
and currently manages the daily operations of the Group
activities. He is responsible in various aspects of the Group
such as sales and marketing, product development and
innovation, investment activities, finance, as well as corporate
and business development, etc..

Mr. Chan holds a number of public and honorary positions,
including as the Founder and President of Entrepreneurs’
Organization (Hong Kong and China South Chapters);
the Vice Chairman of The Hong Kong Jewellery & Jade
Manufacturers Association; the Founding Chairman of
the Youth Chapter of the Hong Kong Young Industrialists
Council; Member of the Jewellery Advisory Committee of the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council; and the Executive
Committee member of Federation of Hong Kong Industries.

Prior to joining the group, Mr. Chan had worked in both
banking and manufacturing industry for several years. He
has a Bachelor of Science degree with double majors in
Entrepreneurial Studies and Finance from Babson College in
Boston, Massachusetts. Mr. Chan is the son of Dr. Chan Sing
Chuk, Charles.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Fang Gang, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
on 15 July 2010. Mr. Fang obtained his Bachelor’'s Degree
from the School of Engineering, Xi‘an Jiaotong University in
1982 and a Master's Degree from the School of Engineering,
Xi‘an Jiaotong University in 1988. He has over 20 years
experience in the metallurgical industry. In 1988, Mr. Fang
joined China Minmetals Corporation (“Minmetals”). From
1995 to 1999, Mr. Fang was with Minmetals Australia Pty
Limited. Commencing July 1999, Mr. Fang is the General
Manager of China National Metal Products Co Ltd, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Minmetals.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 25 April 2005. Mr.
Yu is a businessman who has been actively engaged in the
construction business both in the public and private sectors
in Hong Kong for the last 30 years. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers. Other
than his working experience in managing a construction
company, he has also actively involved in the community
services of Hong Kong and has served several advisory
bodies of Hong Kong Government for over 30 years. He was
subsequently awarded as an unofficial Justice of the Peace by
the Hong Kong Government in the year 1989 and awarded
the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region in the year 2007.

Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 7 March 2008. Mr.
Chan has more than 30 years' experience in logistics industry
and possess extensive experience in distribution. Mr. Chan
was a Founder and Director of various logistic companies.
Mr. Chan is a Director of a private company engaging in
logistics and forwarding.

Mr. Sze Irons, JP was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on 2 October 2008. Mr. Sze graduated
with a Bachelor’'s degree in Science from University of
Wisconsin-La Crosse, United States in 1985. Mr. Sze
has extensive experience in investment and corporate
management and is currently a Non-executive Director of
China Weaving Materials Holdings Limited (stock code:
3778), a Company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Main Board”) and
an Executive Director of a private company, Hang Tung
Resources Holding Limited, and holds directorship in various
private companies. Mr. Sze is a member of the National
Committee and an executive member of the Beijing
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, and currently the President of the Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong. He is also elected
as a member of Election Committee of the Chief Executive of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr. Sze was
appointed the Justice of Peace by the Government of Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region in 2011.
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Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Audit Committee of the Board on 7 April 2010. Mr.
Cheung is currently the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of China Weaving Materials Holdings Limited
(stock code: 3778), a Company listed on the Main Board. He
has over 20 years of experience in accounting, finance and
administration and has held senior positions in multinational
companies. He obtained his MBA from University of
Technology, Sydney, Australia and is an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.

From March 2009 to July 2011, he was a part-time tutor
at the Open University of Hong Kong. From March 2004
to November 2007, Mr. Cheung was an Executive Director
of Sun Innovation Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, and was also the Chief Financial
Officer from March 2007 to February 2008. He was an
Independent Director of L International Inc., a company
listed on NASDAQ from June 2007 to October 2007.
From January 2001 to December 2003, Mr. Cheung was a
Director of e-Lux (Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of e-Lux
Corporation, in charge of value-added telecommunications
services in Hong Kong, Taiwan and China.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Choi Wing Cheong, Eric (FGA, DGA, FGAHK), joined
in 1987, is the Head of Group Operation. He has over 20
years of experience in application system implementation
and supply chain management in the jewellery industry.
He holds gemmologist qualification, and is a fellow of The
Gemmological Association of Great Britain, and professional
member of Gemmological Association of Hong Kong.
Currently, Mr. Choi oversees the daily operation, information
& technology, administration and human resources of the
Group. He is also in charge the implementation of I1SO
Quality Management System.

Mr. Lee Yuk Keung, John, joined in 1976, is the Head
of Operation of Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Limited. Mr.
Lee has over 20 years of experience in managing jewellery
factories. He has extensive knowledge in all production
aspects as well as in logistic management. Currently, he
oversees the daily operations of the jewellery factories in
China.

Mr. Wong Gwon Hing, Edward, joined in 1998, is
currently the General Manager of Continental Jewellery
(Mfg,) Limited. Mr. Wong has over 30 years experience
in manufacturing, sales marketing and management in
jewellery industry. Mr. Wong is responsible for overall
development and management of Group’s jewellery
business.

Mr. Yam Tat Wing, Peter was appointed the General
Manager — Business Development and Mining in 2011 and
has recently assumed the role in Property Investment. Mr.
Yam is responsible for overseeing all mining and property
investment operations devising corporate strategy.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yam served in the Hong Kong
Police Force for over 37 years and has extensive experience in
public administration and crisis management.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. The Board considers
shareholders can maximise their benefits from good
corporate governance.

The Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules set out the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“"Code”) with effect from 1 April 2012. During the year
ended 30 June 2013, the Company has complied with the
Code, except for the deviations from Code Provisions A.2.1
and A.4.1 which are explained in the following relevant
paragraphs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND THE
COMPANY’S PRACTICES

A.1. The Board

An issuer should be headed by an effective board which
should assume responsibility for its leadership and control
and be collectively responsible for promoting its success by
directing and supervising its affairs. Directors should take
decisions objectively in the best interests of the issuer.

The board should regularly review the contribution required
from a director to perform his responsibilities to the issuer,
and whether he is spending sufficient time preforming them.
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The Board held six meetings during the financial year ended
30 June 2013. Attendance of individual Director at the Board
meetings, other Board Committee meetings and the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 13 December 2012
("2012 AGM") during financial year ended 30 June 2013 are
as follows:

SELRE/BIRY
Meetings Attended / Held
—E-CE
ENZEE FMzZEs REZEe el
EEA-F R EE EE BEXE
2012
Meetings of ~ Meetingof ~ Meeting of Annual
Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
B Director Meetings ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
HITEZE Executive Directors
REEfE1 885 AT&+ Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, 8ss, 6/6 - - N N
:\S-3 Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley 6/6 - n - N
REULL Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 6/6 - - - i
RETRE Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor 6/6 - - - N
FHTEE Non-executive Director
ARlEE Mr. Fang Gang 06 - - - N
BUHHTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
RERSE 85 MBe: Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, B8s, MBE, Jp 6/6 W) N - N
ATt
RRELE Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 6/6 W) n N N
HBRELE  ATHE M Szelons, p 4/6 12 o1 - i
RERLE Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 6/6 22 - 1/1 /1
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Directors are consulted to include matters in the agenda for
regular Board meetings.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled at least
14 days in advance to provide sufficient notice to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board
meetings, reasonable notice will be given.

Minutes of the Board meetings and the Board Committee
meetings are duly kept and such minutes are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Director.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee
meetings have recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered and decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and
final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comment and records respectively.

Should Directors need independent professional advice, the
Board will appoint professional advisors to render the advice.
The costs associated with such professional services will be
borne by the Company.

According to the current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interest for a
substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered and
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
Independent Non-executive Directors who have no material
interest in the transaction will be present at such Board
meeting.

The Company has arranged Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance for the Directors and Officers of the Company.
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A.2. Chairman and Chief Executive

There are two key aspects of the management of every
issuer — the management of the board and the day-to-day
management of business. There should be a clear division
of these responsibilities to ensure a balance of power and
authority, so that power is not concentrated in any one
individual.

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles (“Dr. Chan”) is the Chairman of
the Company. Dr. Chan oversees the direction of the Group
and also provides leadership for the Board. He ensures that
the Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities,
and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely manner. Dr. Chan is also responsible to
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at Board meetings and that all Directors receive adequate
information, which must be complete and reliable, in a timely
manner. Dr. Chan is the husband of Ms. Cheng Siu Yin,
Shirley (“Ms. Cheng”).

Ms. Cheng is the Managing Director of the Company. She is
responsible for day-to-day management and the marketing
activities of the Group. Ms. Cheng is the wife of Dr. Chan.

Although the Company does not have a post for Chief
Executive, the Board considers that there is adequate
segregation of duties within the Board to ensure a balance of
power and authority.
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A.3. Board Composition

The board should have a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate for the requirements
of the issuer’s business. It should ensure that changes to its
composition can be managed without undue disruption. It
should include a balanced composition of executive and non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) so that there is a strong independent element
on the board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgment. Non-executive directors should be of sufficient
calibre and number for their views to carry weight.

As at 30 June 2013, the Board comprises four Executive
Directors, namely Dr. Chan, Ms. Cheng, Ms. Chan Wai Kei,
Vicki and Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor; Mr. Fang Gang as Non-
executive Director; four Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek,
Mr. Sze Irons and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank. All Directors are
expressly identified by categories of Executive Directors, Non-
executive Director and Independent Non-executive Directors,
in all corporate communications that disclose the names of
Directors of the Company.

Dr. Chan is the husband of Ms. Cheng and Ms. Chan Wai
Kei, Vicki and Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor are the daughter and
son, respectively, of Dr. Chan and Ms. Cheng. Ms. Chan Wai
Kei, Vicki is the sister of Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor.

Biographies which include relationships of Directors are
set out in pages 20 to 23 of the annual report, which
demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
qualifications among members of the Board.

A list containing the names of the Directors and their roles
and functions is published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company at www.continental.com.hk
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A.4. Appointment, Re-election and Removal

There should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new directors. There
should be plans in place for orderly succession for
appointments. All directors should be subject to re-election at
regular intervals. An issuer must explain the reasons for the
resignation or removal of any director.

Code Provision A.4.1 provides that Non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company do not have a specific term of
appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the Company’s Annual General Meeting at
least once every three years in accordance with articles
115(A) and 115(D) of the Articles of Association of the
Company. The Board considers that the deviation from Code
Provision A.4.1 is not material as Non-executive Directors
are subjected to retirement by rotation at least once in every
three years and re-election.

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation by the Nomination Committee of the
Company or by shareholders in a general meeting. The
nomination procedures by shareholders are published on the
website of the Company at www.continental.com.hk. Any
Director who is appointed by the Board shall hold office only
until the first general meeting after their appointment, and
shall be subject to re-election by shareholders. All candidates
must be able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules
3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to
be appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
should also meet the independent criteria set out in Rules
3.13 of the Listing Rules. To further enhance accountability,
any further re-appointment of an Independent Non-
executive Director who has served the Company’s Board for
more than 9 years will be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by shareholders. As at 30 June 2013,
no Independent Non-executive Director has served the
Company’s Board for more than 9 years.



Annual Report 2013 4

Corporate Governance Report m ¥ BRI E

ASREERES

ARBEKKIIREEES  HR
RSB & 1 T AR X FEA5.2()E
(d) - ELBROBE A P A uh N AR A A4
U REREBEZBARGIERS
BE FPRESZERABZIUR
EFgvHETHERESEIRE
ZE-ZBENERIJEFTENE
B ABRAEK - ARR]FAEAE
EgRtARERABITHERSE

ARrRAAYREEEFEKES
LR AAINRREEE &
R%Z - ARBIEREEETEXEA
B SRZETEEEEFTENX
g%l BRETERIER - F
e XERHBEER HELR -
FBE - BN RIBER - EFEF
BREBUARARAS BIRE - A&
ERANEFUEBRGERIBLE
EEREZ Mg -

REZEGZAMOKEN R
VHERATEF -ZBEXFER/RE
+ o HMKE RRMIELERKE
BEA -

A6. EEEIE

BREZARARBEEREITA
EFNRE  URBTANKE)
A EBEBRER -ARESE
G FRE—RAS FRTES
EREANTESHRNZEEREN
?M%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ&%ﬁ%%ﬁ
B o

BREZINER IR RERE
SHEBARE 2 QENER W
SEERMBRBARNEBEL - £T
MA - BRAEREMEMEE R
T ARAEEZ ZBERBRT
EARGRBFREZRE - ARER
BRETESABSINARIERZ
R A RSB R LRI ERR
ZER UERFREETERSE

A.5 Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee,
with written terms of reference as set out in the Code
Provisions A.5.2 (a) to (d) and are published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for formulating nomination policy,
and making recommendations to the Board on nomination
and appointment of Directors and Board succession.
The Committee will also review the size, structure and
composition of the Board. The Committee is provided with
sufficient resources enabling it to perform its duties.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

A majority of the members of the Nomination Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Committee is
chaired by Dr. Chan. The other members are Mr. Chan Ping
Kuen, Derek and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank.

A.6. Responsibilities of Directors

Every director must always know his responsibilities as a
director of an issuer and its conduct, business activities
and development. Given the essential unitary nature of the
board, non-executive directors have the same duties of care
and skill and fiduciary duties as executive directors.

Every newly appointed Director of the Company is ensured
to have a proper understanding of the operations and
business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities under statue and common law, the Listing
Rules, applicable legal and regulatory requirements and the
business governance policies of the Group. The Directors are
continually updated with legal and regulatory developments,
business and strategic development of the Group to enable
the discharge of their responsibilities.
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Directors

Executive Directors

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBS, JP

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki
Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fang Gang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP

Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek
Mr. Sze Irons, Jp
Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank

B M ;H/

E%ﬁﬁ*ﬂr“
Reading
materials/
regulatory
updates*
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<\

v
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The individual training record of each Director for the year
ended 30 June 2013 is as follows:

HH FE P P
EHIREr
e
Attending
internal
training
session*/
seminars

SN NEEN

v
v

Reading materials concerning latest developments in

corporate governance practices, relevant legal and regulatory

developments.

The Company arranged an internal training session for its
Directors conducted by independent professional body on 16
April 2013, with the topic “Updates of Changes of the Listing
Rules of the Main Board and the Introduction of Part XIVA of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance”.

At each Director’s first appointment and subsequent re-
appointment, the Director is required to disclose to the
Company the number and nature of offices held in
public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments as well as the time involved. The Directors are

also required to notify the Company whenever there are
changes to the offices and commitments already disclosed.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
are highly skilled professionals with expertise and experience
in the field of accounting, financial management and
business. All Independent Non-executive Directors take
an active role in Board meetings to bring in independent
judgment to bear on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards
of conducts. They scrutinize the Company’s performance
in achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives, and
monitor the reporting of performance. They also take the
lead where potential conflicts of interest arise and serve
the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees.
The Company has received written confirmation from
all the Independent Non-executive Directors concerning
their independence. The Board considers all of them are
independent.

Every Director is aware that he/she should give sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company.

Under the Code Provision A.6.7, Independent Non-executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors should also attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders. All the Directors have attended the
2012 AGM.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transaction by Directors of the Company.
The Company has made specific enquiry with all Directors
and all of them have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards as set out in the Model Code during
the year ended 30 June 2013.
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A.7. Supply of and Access to Information

Directors should be provided in a timely manner with
appropriate information in the form and quality to enable
them to make an informed decision and perform their duties
and responsibilities.

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as
practicable in all other cases, an agenda and accompanying
Board papers are sent in full to all Directors in a timely
manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of a
Board or Board Committee meeting.

Management is regularly reminded by the Company
Secretary that they have an obligation to supply the Board
and Board Committees with adequate information in a
timely manner to enable it to make informed decisions. The
information supplied must be complete and reliable. The
Board and each Director shall have separate and independent
access to the Company'’s senior management.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers,
minutes and related materials. Where queries are raised by
Directors, steps are taken to respond as promptly and fully as
possible.
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B.1. The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and Disclosure

An issuer should disclose its directors’ remuneration policy
and other remuneration related matters. The procedure
for setting policy on executive directors’ remuneration and
all directors’ remuneration packages should be formal and
transparent. Remuneration levels should be sufficient to
attract and retain directors to run the company successfully
without paying more than necessary. No director should be
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee
with specific written terms of reference as set out in Code
Provisions B.1.2 (a) to (h) of the Code. The Remuneration
Committee, with delegated responsibility, is responsible
for annually reviewing the existing remuneration policy
including the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management whereas the Board as a
whole is responsible for determining the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors with recommendations from the
Remuneration Committee, if any. Terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. This Committee is
chaired by Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul. The other members are Ms.
Cheng, Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek and Mr. Sze Irons.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year
ended 30 June 2013 to discuss remuneration related matters
and review the remuneration policy of the Group.

The emoluments of the senior management by band for the
year ended 30 June 2013 is set out below:

A
AR Bl Number of persons
Emolument bands 2013 2012
221,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 2
1,000,001 7C% 2,000,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 2

2,000,00178752 3,000,000/ 7T HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 1 -
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments as
required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to
the Listing Rules are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources, including access to independent professional
advice, to perform its duties if considered necessary.

C.1. Financial Reporting

The board should present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the company’s performance,
position and prospects.

Management has provided sufficient explanation and
information to the Board as would enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
keeping proper accounting records and preparing financial
statements of each financial period, which shall give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2013,
the Directors have made judgements and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable, and prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

A statement by the auditor about its responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 57 to
59 of the annual report for the year ended 30 June 2013.

For the basis on which the Group generates or preserves
values over the longer term and the strategy for delivering
objectives, please refer to page 5 under Corporate Profile and
pages 7 to 16 under Chairman’s Statement.
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The Board's responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual and interim
reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and
reports to regulators as well as information required to be
disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

C.2. Internal Controls

The board should ensure that the issuer maintains sound
and effective internal controls to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the issuer’s assets.

The Board has through the Audit Committee reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system.
The Board requires management to establish and maintain
sound and effective internal controls. Evaluation of the
Group's internal controls covering financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions had
been done on an ad hoc basis. Review of internal controls on
different systems will be done on a systematic rotational basis
based on the risk assessments of the operations and controls.
The Board has confirmed that there was no significant
weakness and area of improvement have been identified and
appropriate measures taken.

C.3. Audit Committee

The board should establish formal and transparent
arrangements to consider how it will apply the financial
reporting and internal control principles and maintain an
appropriate relationship with the issuer’s auditor. The audit
committee established under the Listing Rules should have
clear terms of reference.

The Company has established an Audit Committee with
specific written terms of reference which states clearly
with its authority and duties. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee have included the duties set out in Code
Provisions C.3.3 (a) to (n) of the Code, with appropriate
modifications where necessary. The revised terms of
reference setting out the Audit Committee’s authority and its
duties and responsibilities are published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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As set out in the terms of reference, the Audit Committee
is responsible for reviewing the financial reporting system
and internal control procedures, annual report, financial
statements and interim report. As required by Code Provision
C.3.7, the Audit Committee would review arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The
Audit Committee would ensure that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of these
matters and for appropriate follow up action and acting as
the key representation body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor.

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company and is chaired by Mr.
Cheung Chi Fai, Frank. The Audit Committee meet with
external auditor at least twice a year.

As issues raised by the Audit Committee have been
addressed by management. The work and findings of the
Audit Committee have been reported to the Board. During
the year, no issues brought to the attention of management
and the Board were of sufficient importance to require
disclosure in the Annual Report.

The Board agrees with the Audit Committee’s proposal
for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as the Company’s
independent auditor for year ending 30 June 2014.

For the year ended 30 June 2013, save as the auditor’s
remuneration as disclosed in note 8 to the financial
statements, the Group has paid approximately HK$82,000
in relation to the non-audit services (including taxation and
other reporting services).

Full minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft and final versions of minutes
of the Audit Committee meetings are sent to all Audit
Committee members for their comments and records, within
a reasonable time after the meeting.
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The Audit Committee does not have a former partner of the
Company’s existing auditor.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of independent auditor, to perform its
duties.

D.1. Management Functions

An issuer should have a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved for board approval. The board should
give clear directions to management on the matters that
must be approved by it before decisions are made on issuer’s
behalf.

The Board is responsible for formulating overall strategy,
monitoring and controlling the performance of the Group
whilst managing the Group's business is the responsibility of
the management.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management, it has given
clear directions as to the powers of the management, in
particular, where management shall report back and obtain
prior approval from the Board before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Company has established schedules of Matters Reserved
to the Board for Decision. The Board shall review those
arrangements periodically to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.

D.2. Board Committees

Board committees should be formed with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and
duties.
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The Board has established an Audit Committee (particulars
are disclosed under C.3), a Remuneration Committee
(particulars are disclosed under B.1) and a Nomination
Committee (particulars are disclosed under A.5). Where
Board Committees are established to deal with matters, the
Board shall give them sufficiently clear terms of reference
to enable them to perform their functions properly. The
terms of reference of Board Committees shall require such
Committees to report back to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations, unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions on their ability to do so.

D.3 Corporate Governance Functions

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing
the Company'’s policies, practices on corporate governance,
training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements etc. During the year ended 30 June 2013, the
Board has reviewed the Company'’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.

E.1. Effective Communication

The board should be responsible for maintaining an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meetings or other general meetings to communicate
with them and encourage their participation.

At the 2012 AGM, a separate resolution was proposed by
the Chairman in respect of each separate issue, including the
re-elections of Directors. The attendance records at Board
meetings, Board Committee meetings and 2012 AGM are
disclosed on page 26.
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The Company’s AGM is one of the principal channels
of communication with its shareholders. It has been the
practice, the Chairman of the Board and the Chairmen of
the Board Committees, together with the external auditor,
shall attend the AGM to answer questions of shareholders.
Apart from the direct interaction with the shareholders at the
AGM, the Company has established different communication
channels with its shareholders. We maintain a corporate
website www.continental.com.hk to publish our final and
interim results announcements, financial reports, public
announcements and other relevant shareholder information.
The announcements and an up-to-date version of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association ("“M&A") of
the Company are published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. Pursuant to Code Provision
E.1.3, the Company arranges for the notice for AGM to be
sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting.

E.2. Voting by Poll

The issuer should ensure that shareholders are familiar with
the detailed procedures for conducting a poll.

All the resolutions put to the vote of a general meeting
will be taken by poll, except the Chairman decides to
allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands,
pursuant to the requirement under Rule 13.39(4) of the
Listing Rules.

The Chairman of the AGM will explain the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll at the commencement of
the AGM.

After the conclusion of the AGM, the poll results will be
published on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and at the website www.continental.com.hk
on the business day following the AGM.
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F. Company Secretary

The company secretary plays an important roles in supporting
the board by ensuring good information flow within the
board and that board policy and procedures are followed.
The company secretary is responsible for advising the
board through the chairman and/or the chief executive on
governance matters and should also facilitate induction and
professional development of directors.

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs.
The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and his/
her appointment and removal is subject to Board approval.
The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for
matters relating to Director’s duties, such as by giving advice
on corporate governance development and facilitating the
professional development program of Directors. All Directors
have access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable
law, rules and regulations, are followed. During the fiscal
year 2013, the Company Secretary has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid
up capital of the Company may call for an extraordinary
general meeting and put forward agenda items by sending a
written request to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
registered office. Shareholders representing not less than
one-fortieth of the total voting rights of all shareholder
or of not less than 50 in number holding shares in the
Company on which there has been paid up to an average
sum of not less than HK$2,000 per shareholder, may put
forward proposal for consideration at a general meeting of
the Company by sending a written request to the Company
Secretary at the Company's registered office. Procedures
on how shareholders can propose a person for election
as a Director are available at the Company’s website for
shareholders’ information.



Corporate Governance Report m it

Annual Report 2013 4

EERE

IR R AT DA B A B R b - @
NEAMERBER - EEENER
T BERZEANEAFEIES
SRRBELEZTZ RS UERE -

REERME

Fﬁifﬁ AATZABERRA
447) ERL 4L 43 5 2 40 RIS 4 4F (] EE KB
@e

ESETESRENEETR

$ AIEREFTETESF R RN

1755 R - BTN L T AR BB
ﬁm%ﬁim% TAEZETES
x%mhﬁfmUﬁ E<F R FTEk
ZIZETE o

A0 IR BE R ARG
% FAEFER RRE-T-=
FRAZ+ELHBER &%
0 TP F BT B AT

Shareholders may send their enquiries by addressing them
to the Company Secretary by post to the registered office.
Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns, where appropriate,
will be forwarded to and answered by the Board or relevant
Board Committees.

Investor Relations

There were no significant changes in the Company’s M&A
during the year.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has made specific enquiry with all Directors
and all of them confirmed that, for the financial year
ended 30 June 2013, they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company and
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is an investment
holding. The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 30 June 2013 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 60 to
234,

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 30 June 2013.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of the movements in the investment property of the
Group are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and
convertible notes during the year are set out in notes 38 and
35 to the financial statements respectively.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 39 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
At 30 June 2013, the Company’'s reserves available for
distribution, as computed in accordance with Section 79B

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted to
HK$175,425,000 (2012: HK$168,465,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page

236.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totaling HK$227,000.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 62% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 34%. The largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
accounted for 40% and 78%, respectively, of the Group's
total purchases for the year.

As far as the Directors of the Company are aware, neither
the Directors, their respective associates nor any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBS, JP (Chairman)
Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley (Managing Director)
Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki

Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Fang Gang

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP

Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek

Mr. Sze Irons, Jp

Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank
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In accordance with Articles 115(A) and 115(D) of the Articles
of Association, Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, Mr. Chan Ping
Kuen, Derek and Mr. Fang Gang shall retire from office by
rotation and all of them are eligible for re-election at the
AGM.

Each of the four Independent Non-executive Directors has
submitted written confirmation in respect of the factors
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules concerning his
independence. The Board considers each of the four
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 20 to
24 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Dr. Chan has a service contract with the Company for an
indefinite period, which may be terminated by either party by
giving six months’ written notice.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set
out in note 47 to the financial statements.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF
THE LISTING RULES

The remuneration package of the following directors
have been revised after taking consideration of their
responsibilities and the prevailing market rates:

- with effect from 1 January 2013, the monthly
remuneration of Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, Ms.
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki and Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor
have been revised to HK$180,000, HK$80,000 and
HK$137,500 respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in notes to the financial statements, no
Director had a material interest in any contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Interests of Directors
of the Company in businesses which might compete with
the Group during the year ended 30 June 2013 and as at 30
June 2013 were as follows:

Dr. Chan, Director of the Company, has held interest and
directorship in companies engaged in the same businesses
of gold mining activities in Sichuan Province of the PRC and
Indonesia. Although some of the businesses carried out by
these companies are similar to those of the Group, they are
of different scale and at different locations. Therefore, the
Board is of the view that the businesses of those companies
did not compete with the businesses of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or in existence
during the year.
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EEHE Name of Directors

PREE = Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
EB/ N Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
PR KA 1 Chan Ping Kuen, Derek
PRIESL Chan Wai Lap, Victor

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the
“Model Code”) were as set out below:

NN EARRE
BREEIIEBLZERKRER BT
Number of ordinary shares of BRABE D
HK$0.01 each in the Company Percentage of
BAER AT  the Company's
Personal Corporate issued share
interest interest capital

- 5,063,395,220 99.08%

(F$7%1) (Note 1)

- 5,063,395,220 99.08%
(F#7E1) (Note 1)

200,000 - 0.004%

2,700,000 - 0.053%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

BEHEE

(X&)

DA

Bl A FE 25 Debenture
Personal (principal amount)
interest Corporate interest

PR EE 2 Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - HK$325 million

BN Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley

PHEE1 :52 5 #E &5 R ()PR 18 4 B2 80 /) #%
ZTEEEWERZ— KA Tamar
Investments Group Limited ([ Tamar
Investments J) #§ 53,352,868,910
i% B 5+ F(i)) Tamar Investments
#751,710,526,3100 % 13 - £ A
RN_E——F+A+_HETT
Tamar InvestmentsZ 7] 3 % 22 4%
BB G 2R - AR R
EERIE L RE/ R LT BTamar
InvestmentsZ T 5 ©

MFE2 5% & 125 A Tamar InvestmentsBAAR
#£Big Bonus Limited & £ K& A A
WEEERN =T —F+A+=
A # 172 AN & % /3325,000,000
BILZ A BB EF A o Tamar
Investments F R 18 4= f2 86/ Nk 22 &=
2B A (M EE1FTiRM) -

(FF3E2) (Note 2)

- HK$325 million
(MF5E2) (Note 2)

Note 1: Such interests are held as to (i) 3,352,868,910 shares by Tamar
Investments Group Limited ("Tamar Investments”), which is a
company wholly owned by Dr. Chan and Ms. Cheng Siu Yin,
Shirley and (i) 1,710,526,310 shares by Tamar Investments
represent interest in the conversion shares under the convertible
note issued to Tamar Investments on 12 October 2011. Dr.
Chan and Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, both being Directors, are
the Directors of Tamar Investments.

Note 2: Such interest is held by Tamar Investments in the convertible
note in HK$325,000,000 principal amount (issued on 12
October 2011 under the acquisition of Big Bonus Limited and its
subsidiaries). Tamar Investments is wholly owned by Dr. Chan
and Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley as referred in Note 1.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

Except as disclosed above, at the reporting date, none of
the Directors or their respective associates had any personal,
family, corporate or other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were the rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company granted to any Director or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age to acquire such rights in any other corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 30 June 2013, no person, other than Dr. Chan and Ms.
Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, whose interests are set out in the
section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures” above, had registered
an interest in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER 13.20 AND 13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES
IN RELATION TO FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Based on the disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20 and
13.22 of the Listing Rules, the financial assistance, which
was made by the Group, continued to exist as at 30 June
2013. The financial assistance, in aggregate, represent
approximately 25.2% under the assets ratio as defined under
Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.

The amounts of the Financial Assistance as at 30 June 2013
were set out below:

REERFH IRERERK 5 &R
2 EfL s B85 R
BREEE Attributable Shareholder’'s AFIER  Aggregate
Name of interest held loan or Corporate Financial
the entities by the Group Advances Guarantee Assistance
BT BIT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$
Wealth Plus Developments Limited 50% 400,900,000 295,066,000 695,966,000
(T'Wealth Plus]) Fz H Kff & A &) (MF5E1) (MF3E2)
Wealth Plus Developments Limited (Note 1) (Note 2)
("Wealth Plus”) and its subsidiary
BT - Notes:
1. B RRERRBRTIEREREL 1. The shareholder’s loan or advances had been granted as

KB L 5HE 2 EEEN
LEET o WAEERRERSLR
ARSI R I R R
Hio

2. AR BRI TR T Wealth Plus,Z Bff
BARZEHEREEREMS
RITIER A2 A R¥235,000,000
7T (855 14 #9295,066,0007% 7T) °
EREAREN AR ART -

working capital for the development of the construction
site located in Yangpu District, of Shanghai in the PRC. The
outstanding shareholder’s loan or advances is interest free,
unsecured and has no fixed repayment term.

2. A guarantee to the extent of RMB235,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$295,066,000) was given by the Company
in favour of a bank in respect of a term loan facility granted to
a subsidiary of Wealth Plus. The guarantee period last for five
years from the date of drawdown.
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RIE ETRAFEI13.2262RE - B In accordance with the requirement under Rule 13.22 of the
BEASNSRFTERE  EREITE Listing Rules, the combined statement of financial position
HEEAHIBERIR M AEE of the jointly controlled entity and the Group's attributable
HEBB AR P EGRERESIT interests in these affiliated companies based on their latest

financial statements available are presented below:

&pt REE

B EEAR R 2R (LR

Combined Group's

statement attributable

of financial position interest

FHTT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

JEmBNEE Non-current assets 1,340,244 670,122

MENEE Current assets 30,730 15,365

mEBaRE Current liabilities (42,482) (21,241)

EREBEE Non-current liabilities (1,065,154) (532,577)

BEFE Net assets 263,338 131,669

BEREE— TS SR BEEREN Further details are set out in note 21 to the financial

5521 ° statements.

AEALTRXS CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

FMEATRS (MEKEEATR Details of the connected party transactions, which also
) 2 HBERUBmEN T - constituted as related party transactions are set out in notes
to the financial statements.

BHARERE SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

RIBEAR QR A AFER 2 E R IR Based on the information that is publicly available to the
BEEMAM RNAREBE  AAQ Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least
RIEBITRAEEE D25%HAR 25% of the Company'’s total issued share capital was held by
RERFFE o the public as at the date of this report.
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%8 3114 R

BIBCEMARAINE313E  AAF
ERWEEEIINTES 2 EF

BUYMHER EFgRE &8

FENITESHEBRLAL -

BE%ERE

ARRABERE EHARR 2 REKL
BEZERES NEHIERAKE
2RI M ARREEIEEE -
ERLZESCAAREMRAZE
AR R AR M EE R
ZREFETEN  YEEHTHE
FEMBRE -RNAREEH =T
eSS RANYNCIUEZE S v k)
EEMEMK -

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board is of the view that all Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was
established in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the financial reporting process and internal
controls of the Group. The Audit Committee has discussed
the Group’s accounting policies and basis adopted, the
financial and internal control process of the Group and has
reviewed the interim and annual financial statements. As
of the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises
of the four Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company.
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% S B

RARB N RABRRBFRE L #
RERBREUNENZERNRALE
MEBLERZEAMEBMAER

AR

AEEEH
EY
FREEZ

HE —ET-—=FNLHA=1+H

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company to re-appoint the auditor, BDO Limited.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 September 2013
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|IBDO

EMHKEEEGRAA
(RBEEEMKLZBRAF])

MR

RZEE CATEBIEM) EE
=5 SR E60H £ F2348 B A Bk
ESEARAR(ERT]) REMH
BAR(HBIEEE]) WERETE
HE MGEVMBEHREREERS
—=ZFEXNA=ZTHNGRERARH
BARRKREBEZB EFENGE
BakAEMEERER L6802
MERNGEEREHR  URE
EEHBRRMERE MM EHBESR
o

EEMGAMBHRRAKENT
£

BERAESARARERBGAE
RERMEC(EBMBREER) K
& B R BHEDD 4R Bl 45 & B 15 R
R OUALEEMBRRIFLEEM
RNFHRBR - FEEERRRES
B MR P B A A BIES] - A
EER A M B MR T FERRARFEX
B ER T BB B A SR SRR

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

25 Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
E54 © +852 2218 8288 EBTEEAh1118E
8K : +852 2815 2239 FKERAID251E

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Continental Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”) set out
on pages 60 to 234, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 30 June
2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in
equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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HAINEERRBERMNFEZ
FRAMBHRRELER - AR
FR(ARRAD F14URE R BRE
BRI E - BRI 2 SN RS Bl A
B - HPITERARENAR
FEREMA TR ERAEERE
(=

KPEREF BSOS HEMA
(BB EADETE - RFE
AIZRFFIETBISMRE - WARE
NATE  NEEBRESATH
HRED MM EEARHERE -

Bt RBTRFAEREBES
MRS SBLREEERNE
AHIERE o FTIETE M2 FF BUR O AZ B
B B ) 7 - BT B EREE Sk R
AMEBEAMBRRGFEEX
i R RO Y LR - FERF A X TR
5 - I BEDE BEZ A RR RS
MR IAMEL EE M QT A AR
AN AREES - URFHEENE
=SS AR ERER:NizE 3 2 NI 2
HEOARERRER - B AERE
AEESARASTRRNGENE
RAEREFH AR A RN - U RFT
BiR A MR BEIIRA R -

HFIEE - RPIMESHNERTRE
RRMEE AR MNETFERLE

THRER -

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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BER OPINION

BMRE  ZFERAPHERERER In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
BA(EBMBHRELEADEEMAF a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
HWREEATRESENR_T—= and of the Group as at 30 June 2013 and of the Group's
FRA=THENHBRALEEE profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
HEZALEFENRMNERESR with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
2 WERREB(RAHEINDE & been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
A Companies Ordinance.

BB RS MEHAERAT BDO Limited

HEEEED Certified Public Accountants

THE Li Wing Yin

B ERFP05035 Practising Certificate Number P05035
BS _E—=FNA=1H Hong Kong, 30 September 2013
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2013 2012
Hiat FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Wz Revenue 6 949,215 955,712
SHE PR Cost of sales (828,895) (821,120)
EF Gross profit 120,320 134,592
HE Ko HK A Selling and distribution costs (17,527) (18,521)
THER Administrative expenses (94,847) (100,937)
Higgal A (BH) Other operating income/(expenses) 2,768 (1,829)
WEYFE N TE 2 Change in fair value of investment
property 17 84,769 1,656
AtEHE ZemEERE Impairment loss of available-for-sale
&5 18 financial assets 22(b) (10,076) (118,361)
HEAHEE 2SR Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
& E R financial assets 510 -
UL EE T B A &) 2 AT ##73 Excess of interest in the net fair value
FEERNFATE S of the net identifiable assets over
FRBUIE B AR E A TE the fair value of the total cost of
ki acquisition of subsidiaries 44 1 - 364,797
MG ERBEEIETE S Income arising from amortising the
B A financial guarantee liabilities 36 1,654 =
VAR 17 B 20 2 R B Share-based compensation 40 = (35,339)
YD ®N Finance costs 7 (12,405) (9,434)
AN E Share of results of associates - (252)
G REGIERES Share of results of jointly controlled
entities 12,494 (1,352)
BR P 15 B¢ A 2 A Profit before income tax 8 87,660 215,020
Fri8 i f s Income tax expense 9 (1,303) (2,494)
REEmF Profit for the year 86,357 212,526
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HE-F - =FAA=+ALFE
2013 2012
Hat FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hih2EU & - IR IE Other comprehensive income,
after tax
AEHHEEERWIER : Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss:
AHEEZSREE Change in fair value of available-for-sale
ZATFEEE)  HEE financial assets, net (8,187) (101,511)
RAJEHE SR E ERER  Redassification from equity to profit
AESEN D HEEER or loss on impairment of
available-for-sale financial assets 10,076 118,361
?ﬁ‘ L INETS - Bt A T Exchange difference on translation of
H[E 5 I B 2 [ N foreign operations, associates and
%%E jointly controlled entities 39,478 11,734
FREMEEmUKE - Other comprehensive income
HIBR T I8 for the year, net of tax 41,367 28,584
FREHKHEBE Total comprehensive income
for the year 127,724 241,110
FEMRF ARG : Profit for the year attributable to:
IN/NCIEZ Z N Owners of the Company 10 85,847 214,894
FE 12l B 2 Non-controlling interests 510 (2,368)
86,357 212,526
BREAZENSZEE : Total comprehensive income for
the year attributable to:
VIN/NEIEZ 2 = DN Owners of the Company 127,214 243,478
FE 2 ) 2 Non-controlling interests 510 (2,368)
127,724 241,110
PN 2 S DN eyl Earnings per share for profit
ZEBREF attributable to the owners HK cent HK cent
of the Company 12 JE JBN
— &R — Basic 1.68 4.72
— 58 — Diluted 1.30 3.75
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RZZE—=FA=1H

BESIRRR

2013 2012
k2 FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
EERERE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FREEE Non-current assets
S ER S Property, plant and equipment 15 116,242 115,437
T3 R Land use rights 16 41,440 41,824
"EYE Investment property 17 543,500 453,500
s Mining right 18 1,050,495 1,020,524
EA%’F‘@:’*/& A2 Interests in associates 20 = =
HEZEH BB 2R Interests in jointly controlled entities 21 532,569 484,655
1/&%2@ BEE Available-for-sale financial assets 22 27,497 37,136
EETIBE E Deferred tax assets 37 6,109 6,093
2,317,852 2,159,169
REEE Current assets
5E Inventories 24 271,772 257,352
2 5 e W8 Trade receivables 25 105,198 109,010
TERFIE - ZE Rk Prepayments, deposits and other
H th fE W KI8 receivables 13,781 11,614
AT ERFABR 22/ Financial assets at fair value through
EE profit or loss 26 12,079 11,696
TESMIT A Derivative financial instruments 27 38 =
JEUR—RIERIIZHIEEERIE  Due from a jointly controlled entity 21 139 139
BehkReERE Cash and cash equivalents 28 37,911 85,236
440,918 475,047
REBEE Current liabilities
B SN RIE Trade payables 29 (138,132) (133,166)
H i BT R IE&FE BE-3: Other payables and accruals (32,300) (72,802)
RITE N Bank loans 30 (336,181) (324,172)
B E T A E Obligation under a finance lease 31 (113) =
TESmIA Derivative financial instruments 27 = (84)
FERBEE A BRI Due to related companies 32 (2,321) =
JE (ST Bt X B 3008 Due to an associate 20 = (111)
TRE IR R IR A E R Loan from a controlling shareholder 34 (10,000) =
AR =& Convertible note 35 = (54,889)
S EREE Financial guarantee liabilities 36 (2,481) =
TRIER Provision for tax (8,114) (10,411)
(529,642) (595,635)
e EFE Net current liabilities (88,724) (120,588)
BEERABER Total assets less current liabilities 2,229,128 2,038,581




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position m Z3 & BTGk R

As at 30 June 2013
N —=FA=+H

Annual Report 2013 4

2013 2012

k23 FET FET

Notes HK$’000 HK$000
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
& B E Obligation under a finance lease 31 (104) =
FE{T B8 N B 3K IR Due to related companies 32 (83,903) (27,961)
P& S 8512 IR A Bl RIE Due to ultimate holding company 33 (1,546) (7,877)
AR IR IR A B R Loan from a controlling shareholder 34 (95,022) (105,000)
CIES i Convertible note 35 (9,874) (13,694)
BB EREE Financial guarantee liabilities 36 (8,270) =
EEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 37 (245,001) (238,431)

(443,720) (392,963)
BEFE Net assets 1,785,408 1,645,618
g EQUITY
[N Share capital 38 51,107 51,107
{1 Reserves 39 1,740,356 1,601,076
RABHEE AELER Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company 1,791,463 1,652,183

FEIEFI RS Non-controlling interests (6,055) (6,565)
S Total equity 1,785,408 1,645,618
REEES On behalf of the Board
PR EE )= Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
EZE Director
8/ 3 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
EZE Director
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RZZE—=FA=1H

2013 2012
k2 FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
EERERE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current assets
NGV YNGR 353 Interests in subsidiaries 19 1,106,390 1,087,004
NN Interests in associates 20 = =
REEEGIEEE - Eax Interests in jointly controlled entities 21 12,405 -
1,118,795 1,087,004
REEE Current assets
FERNHKIE  Z2 Rk Prepayments, deposits and other
H b & WL SRR receivables 367 319
JE W Bt B8 R R SR IE Due from subsidiaries 19 89,239 99,178
AT ERFAERZ Financial assets at fair value through
TREE profit or loss 26 7 148
He M ER Cash and cash equivalents 28 33 117
89,646 99,762
REBEE Current liabilities
HafER SRIBE R ERTE A Other payables and accruals (932) (1,417)
FE A BT BB A R 5K IE Due to subsidiaries 19 (18,813) (7,426)
TATAR AR R B K Loan from a controlling shareholder 34 (10,000) =
Bl &S Convertible note 35 = (54,889)
PIEREE Financial guarantee liabilities 36 (2,481) -
MHIRR R Provision for tax (1,370) (1,370)
(33,596) (65,102)
mBEEFE Net current assets 56,050 34,660
HEERARBAERE Total assets less current liabilities 1,174,845 1,121,664
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As at 30 June 2013
N —=FA=+H

2013 2012
it FETT FET
Notes HK$000 HK$000
EREBERE Non-current liabilities
FE(S RAE A RI5RIA Due to a related company 32 (53,346) =
2R AR SRR BV B K Loan from a controlling shareholder 34 (90,000) (105,000)
AR SRR Convertible note 35 (9,874) (13,694)
S EREE Financial guarantee liabilities 36 (8,270) =
(161,490) (118,694)
BEEFE Net assets 1,013,355 1,002,970
= EQUITY
&S Share capital 38 51,107 51,107
] Reserves 39 962,248 951,863
R Total equity 1,013,355 1,002,970
REESFE On behalf of the Board
R EEZ Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
BE Director
BB /N Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
BE Director
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HE-T—=F A=1+HILFE

2013 2012
FET FET
HK$"000 HK$'000
REXKHERE Cash flows from operating activities
B FT1S B4 Bl Vs A Profit before income tax 87,660 215,020
EEANIRE R Adjustments for:
&R AR Finance costs 12,405 9,434
iy NS E Share of results of associates - 252
FEAE HRIEHI BB 5 Share of results of jointly controlled entities (12,494) 1,352
VARK 15 & ZEHiE 2 R Share-based compensation - 35,339
ME - BERZETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 7,714 7,632
ot {5 R R 6 Amortisation of land use rights 1,461 1,430
PRAE i 5E Amortisation of mining right 668 316
FE (BE), BiE (Write back of)/Provision for
inventories (3,804) 1,612
B 5 W R IA Provision for trade receivables 123 756
NN o K] Impairment loss on interest in
E518 associates = 2,136
AHEE s SREERE Impairment loss of available-for-sale
&5 18 financial assets 10,076 118,361
UL EE T B 2 B 2 7] #4353 Excess of interest in the net fair value
FEEMNFATE ER of the net identifiable assets over
BB EEEK AN A TE the fair value of the total cost of
Cok=iiSay acquisition of subsidiaries = (364,797)
HEME - BERZEZ Loss on disposal of property, plant
518 and equipment 20 275
W EREBEEEMES Income arising from amortising the
PN financial guarantee liabilities (1,654) =
HERAHEEZEMEE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
U 25 financial assets (510) =
YNGR € iif Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries = (714)
WEMHENTE 2 RE Change in fair value of investment property (84,769) (1,656)
= HA & Uk X 7E 4 i e (] Reversal of provision for long-term receivables (967) (500)
FERTRAE A RIFIBNIZ R Imputed interest income arising from
FRE S ®EE A 2 WA initial recognition of amount due to
a related company - (5,455)
%f*‘ REREDEERE Fair value loss on redemption options
N EEE of convertible notes 141 2,857
MESRIAATE Fair value (gain)/loss on derivative
(=) EiE financial instruments (116) 286
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HE_Z—=F A=1HILFE

2013 2012
BtaE FET FET
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
EIELESEHH &L RA  Operating profit before working
capital changes 15,954 23,936
FE@gm, wmd (Increase)/Decrease in inventories (10,009) 8,865
B 5 e FRIE R A Decrease in trade receivables 4,193 6,718
TERIA - Re RE A (Increase)/Decrease in prepayments,
JE W RaE (36 0n) R deposits and other receivables (2,055) 245
ARAFEFTABZZ SR (Increase)/Decrease in financial assets
EEOEM R at fair value through profit or loss (524) 2,328
ERRSE &N A 2 4B BR (Increase)/Decrease in balances with
(3mSR associates (111) 129
B A [F) P2 o B BE 2 A BA Increase in balances with jointly
0 controlled entities = (12)
Z 5N E et RIE K B5t  Decrease in trade and other payables
ERm and accruals (36,665) (10,369)
PTAE 2 B T BN Increase in derivative financial
instruments (6) (76)
gE () EEZERS Cash (used in)/generated from
operations (29,223) 31,764
ETFE Interest paid (10,265) (9,076)
BT B ERTSH PRC enterprise income tax paid (457) (559)
BENEBNEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (3,341) (4,984)
AL (BT B Net cash (used in)/generated from
ZHEFEE operating activities (43,286) 17,145
RETHRENRE Cash flows from investing activities
RNEVE - BB M Additions to property, plant and
equipment 46 (5,494) (10,449)
NE R Additions to mining right (1,808) -
ANEDFEREEYHE 23R Additions to property under
kS development classified as
investment property (852) (1,009)
I BB A 7 (FOBRE BB Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash
ReMBEEERE) and cash equivalents acquired) 441 = (74,387)
HEMZE - BERZE Proceeds from disposal of property,
FriS 538 plant and equipment 35 105
HERHEIESHEEN Proceeds from disposal of
Fr5 3k I8 available-for-sale financial assets 3,110 -
BEEHLESMEE Purchase of available-for-sale financial
assets (1,148) (929)
B R HA e W sk IR Receipt from long-term receivables 967 500
EIMNER T — B RZE Increase in loans to a jointly controlled
B entity (9,100) (61,500)
RE LB T L F5E Net cash used in investing activities (14,290) (147,669)
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2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REEHREERE Cash flows from financing activities
PERR AR BR EA R Advance from a controlling shareholder 5,022 110,000
ERIERRAR R Repayment to a controlling shareholder (5,000) (5,000)
R0 B P13 508 Proceeds from subscription of shares - 37,000
EEREHREAIE Repayment of obligation under finance
lease (208) -
EETREREBRZEFE Repayment of coupon interest of convertible note (4,341) =
FMILIRITER New bank loans 37,450 118,000
EZIRITER Repayment of bank loans (25,785) (29,178)
AR EEAA] Advance from related companies 2,321 =
BEEENEERFNIE Repayment of amount due to
a related company - (2,267)
R BEH B A RI&(EE  Repayment of an advance from
BE N AR R B a related company upon completion
of acquisition of subsidiaries - (64,149)
BETHELR 2 FH Net cash generated from financing
activities 9,459 164,406
BERREZHE 2 BD),~  Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
by lIped cash equivalents (48,117) 33,882
FHOzREREESEH Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 85,236 49,867
INESPE RIS E) o FFEE  Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net 792 1,487
FRZ2BEERBESER Cash and cash equivalents at
end of year 37,911 85,236

REeREEEHMo &5 oM Analysis of balances of cash and
cash equivalents
e MIRITE R Cash and bank balances 37,911 85,236
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LGN
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company
g&fr R AMER  FUAK TEREE  EXRE &
k& EEE Rt A BfRE  EERE B EfEE REE & FEARE  RRAR
Share Non- Convertible  Exchange  Investment Non-
Issued  premium  Warrant distributable Other noteequity fluctuation revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital  account  reserve  reseve  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
fén  TEr  TEn  TEn  TEr  FEr FEr  FEr FEr T T TEn
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
REF-—FLA-AZ8H  Balanceat 1 1uly 2011 31283 190,743 53008 273,606 (5397) 2310 3,078 (16,127) 475299 1,036,803 (3665 1033138
BB (HE380) Shares subscripton (note 38(0)) T usB - - - - - - - 3700 - 3700
WM A E] (Rfzkad 1) Acquisiton of subsicares (note 44.1) 1767 16582 - - - - = = - I8 -1
B EREE (H335) Issue of convertble note (note 35) - - - - - 116034 - = - 11603 - 11603
WROEERZHM 282 Recogniton of share-based
(Hfzk40) compensation (note 40) - -3 - - - - - - 333 - B3
KBARAEEM (H42)  Deregistration of subsiiares (note 44.2) - - - - - - - - - - (53) (53)
REEALRA Transactions with owners 19824 200,705 35,339 - - 116034 - - - 3 (53 330
TERET Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 489 248%  (2368) 21256
Afp2Es Other comprehensive income:
ENEE BEDAR Exchange differences on tranglation of
REEHERGES the financ statements of foreign
FELZERER opeations, associates and jointly
controlled entities - - - - - - 11,734 - - 11,734 - 1,734
A ESREEATE Change in fair value of avaiable-or-ale
198 FE financil asets net - - - - - - - (05 - (10151) - (101510)
NREESBEENER  Redassficaton from equity o proftor
HERENABZER Joss on impairment of
available-for-sale financial assets - - - - - - - 118361 - 118361 - 118361
AEERANGER Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - N4 1680 21484 43458 (38 241010
Amount transferred to retained profits
asaresultof expiration of
unlisted warrants - - (883 - - - - - 83w - - -
RIE-ZERA=THZEHR  Balance at 30 June 2012 51,107 391448 - 23606* (5307 11834 43812 73 718540 1,652,183 (6565 1,645,618
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LN IN (1 3
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company
B&f ke FURK TERZE  EXRD K&
k& EER A AfhE LERE BEER i EffEE REEH G FEGRE  REAE
Share Non- Capital Convertible ~ Exchange  Investment Non-
Issued  premium distributable Other contribution note equity fluctuation revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital  account  reserve  reseve  reserve  reseve  reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
fér  TEr  TEn  TEn  TAT  FEn FEr  FEr FEn T TEn TEn
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
RIZ-ZEEA-HZER  Balanceat 11y 2012 51107 39148 273,606 (5397) - 11834 381 3 T840 1652183 (6:565) 1,645,618
RERRRMEELE (W35)  Deemed capital contioution arsing from
debt extinguishment (note 35) - - - - 5735 - - - - 5735 - 5735
BlEREERARLE Deemed capital contrbution from
(B533) utimate holding company (note 33) - - - - 6,331 - - - - 6,331 - 6,331
BEFAZRS Transactions with owners - - - - 12066 - - - - 12066 - 1066
TEREA Profit for the year - - - - - - - - B e 50 86357
Efp2Ehs Other comprehensive income:
FEENEE BEDAR  Exchange diferences on transaton of the
LEEYERSBRSAEE  fancalstatements of foreign operations,
LERER associates and jointy controlled entites - - - - - - 39478 - - 39478 - 39478
THLECHEEATE Change In fair value of avalable-forsdle
pie & financial assets, net - - - - - - - (8,187) - (8,187) - 8,187)
RARESHAENER  Redassficaton from equity to proftor
hERENARZRE loss on impairment of avalable-for-sale
financial assets - - - - - - - 10,076 - 10,076 - 10,076
AEERENEAR Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 39 1889 &8 120 50 1274
ppet kT 12 Amounts transfered to retaned profs
REEHMEE (W30 asaresult of expiraion of
convertible note (note 35) - - - - - (2310) - - 2310 - - -
RIZ-ZERA=TAZER  Balance at 30 June 2013 51107 391.448¢ 273606 (5397 12066 116034  83290* 2612+ 866697 1791463 (6,055 1,785,408
*

& ZERBERBEFSUBMRRERS
2R A #1,740,356,00058 7T (=

2

1,601,076,000/8 7T) ©

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves
of HK$1,740,356,000 (2012: HK$1,601,076,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated and domiciled in Hong
Kong. The address of the Company'’s registered office and
principal place of business is Flats M & N, 1st Floor, Kaiser
Estate, Phase Ill, 11 Hok Yuen Street, Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the following
activities:

- Design, manufacturing, marketing and trading of
fine jewellery and diamonds

- Property investment

- Mining operation

= Investment

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate
holding company is Tamar Investments Group Limited
("Tamar Investments”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to
234 have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective
terms include all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”
as) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The financial statements also
include the applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2013
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 30
September 2013.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following amendment (“the new
HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA which is relevant to
and effective for the Group's financial statements for
the annual period beginning on 1 July 2012:

Amendments to Presentation of Items of

HKAS 1 (Revised) Other Comprehensive Income

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

These amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require
the Group to separate items presented in other
comprehensive income into those that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in the future and those
that may not. Tax on items of other comprehensive
income is allocated and disclosed on the same basis.
The Group's presentation of other comprehensive
income in theses financial statements has been
modified accordingly.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective

The following new and revised HKFRSs, that have
been issued, but are not yet effective in the financial
year of which the consolidated financial statements
were prepared, have not been early adopted by the

Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle'

Investment Entities?

Consolidated Financial
Statements, Joint Arrangements
and Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities: Transition
Guidance'

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities'

Presentation — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities?

Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets?

Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement — Novation
of Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting?

Financial Instruments >

Consolidated Financial
Statements'
Joint Arrangements'
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities'

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement!

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements'

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

HK(FRIC) - Interpretation 20 Stripping Costs of the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine'

HK(FRIC) - Interpretation 21 Levies?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2015
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

The improvements made amendments relevant to
the Group's financial statements as follows:

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments clarify that the requirement
to present a third consolidated statement of
financial position when an entity applies an
accounting policy retrospectively or makes a
retrospective restatement or reclassification
of items in its financial statements is
limited to circumstances where there is a
material effect on the information in that
consolidated statement of financial position.
The date of the opening statement of
financial position is the beginning of the
preceding period and not, as at present, the
beginning of the earliest comparative period.
The amendments also clarify that, except
for disclosures required by HKAS 1.41-44
and HKAS 8, the related notes to the third
consolidated statement of financial position
are not required to be presented. An entity
may present additional voluntary comparative
information as long as that information is
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. This
may include one or more statements and
not a complete set of financial statements.
Related notes are required for each
additional statement presented.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle (continued)

(ii)

(ii)

HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment

The amendments clarify that items such
as spare parts, stand-by equipment and
servicing equipment are recognised as
property, plant and equipment when they
meet the definition of property, plant and
equipment. Otherwise, such items are
classified as inventory.

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

The amendments clarify that income tax
relating to distributions to holders of an
equity instrument and to transaction costs of
an equity transaction should be accounted
for in accordance with HKAS 12 Income
Taxes. Depending on the circumstances these
items of income tax might be recognised in
equity, other comprehensive income or in
profit or loss.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements

2009-2011 Cycle (continued)

(iv) HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

The amendments clarify that in interim

financial statements, a measure of total

assets and liabilities for a particular reportable

segment needs to be disclosed when the

amounts are regularly provided to the chief

operating decision maker and there has

been a material change in the total assets

and liabilities for that segment from the

amount disclosed in the last annual financial

statements.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 7 is amended to introduce disclosures for
all recognised financial instruments that are set off
under HKAS 32 and those that are subject to an
enforceable master netting agreement or similar
arrangement, irrespective of whether they are set off
under HKAS 32.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part
of phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely
replace HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. This phase focuses on the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Instead of classifying financial assets into four
categories, an entity shall classify financial assets
as subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value, on the basis of both the entity’'s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets. Fair value gains and losses will be
recognised in profit or loss except for those non-
trade equity investments, which the entity will have
a choice to recognise the gains and losses in other
comprehensive income. This aims to improve and
simplify the approach for the classification and
measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of HKAS 39.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions
to HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the
“Additions”) and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the
current derecognition principles of financial
instruments of HKAS 39. Most of the Additions were
carried forward unchanged from HKAS 39, while
changes were made to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss using the fair value option (“FVQO"). For these
FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair
value of a liability that is attributable to changes in
credit risk must be presented in other comprehensive
income (“OCI”). The remainder of the change
in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless
presentation of the fair value change in respect
of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
However, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts which have been designated under the
FVO are scoped out of the Additions.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its
entirety. Before this entire replacement, the guidance
in HKAS 39 on hedge accounting and impairment
of financial assets continues to apply. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 July 2015.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for
consolidation of all investee entities. An investor
has control when it has power over the investee
(whether or not that power is used in practice),
exposure or rights to variable returns from the
investee and the ability to use the power over the
investee to affect those returns. HKFRS 10 contains
extensive guidance on the assessment of control.
For example, the standard introduces the concept
of “de facto” control where an investor can control
an investee while holding less than 50% of the
investee’s voting rights in circumstances where its
voting interest is of sufficiently dominant size relative
to the size and dispersion of those of other individual
shareholders to give it power over the investee.
Potential voting rights are considered in the analysis
of control only when these are substantive, i.e. the
holder has the practical ability to exercise them. The
standard explicitly requires an assessment of whether
an investor with decision making rights is acting as
principal or agent and also whether other parties
with decision making rights are acting as agents of
the investor. An agent is engaged to act on behalf
of and for the benefit of another party and therefore
does not control the investee when it exercises its
decision making authority. The implementation of
HKFRS 10 may result in changes in those entities
which are regarded as being controlled by the Group
and are therefore consolidated in the financial
statements. The accounting requirements in the
existing HKAS 27 on other consolidation related
matters are carried forward unchanged. HKFRS 10 is
applied retrospectively subject to certain transitional
provisions.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements

Joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 have the same
basic characteristics as joint ventures under HKAS
31. Joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. Where the Group has
rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities
of the joint arrangement, it is regarded as a joint
operator and will recognise its interests in the assets,
liabilities, income and expenses arising from the joint
arrangement. Where the Group has rights to the
net assets of the joint arrangement as a whole, it is
regarded as having an interest in a joint venture and
will apply the equity method of accounting. HKFRS
11 does not allow proportionate consolidation.
In an arrangement structured through a separate
vehicle, all relevant facts and circumstances should
be considered to determine whether the parties to
the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. Previously, the existence of a separate
legal entity was the key factor in determining the
existence of a jointly controlled entity under HKAS
31. HKFRS 11 will be applied retrospectively with
specific restatement requirements for a joint venture
which changes from proportionate consolidation to
the equity method.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent
the disclosures requirements about interests in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements.
It also introduces new disclosure requirements,
including those related to unconsolidated structured
entities. The general objective of the standard is to
enable users of financial statements to evaluate the
nature and risks of a reporting entity’s interests in
other entities and the effects of those interests on
the reporting entity’s financial statements.



Annual Report 2013 4

Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R 5 i+

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE_Z—=F A=1HILFE

T RN ERUBHREE
Al =)

(b)

BB RERZHET
S RIERT BB BRERE
Bl (&)

BB B A1 351
[AFE @2

BEMBREEAFE3
SRR ELAD 2E R TSR sk A7
AFATFEERNEGTER
TEEEHE -—EZX
IR o ZERERARARTE
Bt EMN SR RIEERIE
B WolEAFEEFNE
IR - &t ERERF =1
BIRHERREEASY
BRELERER (S5
TH:#EGHE—Z
BB RS ERIE 135
BAFEBERTBIETE
HOEFR ST @ M52
HEZENE—BEERM
el B ER —HAREK
X HER (BELE
%) o ERAIEUE T HRE
ERTS EAREN SR
BEME A EED RIR
ALEMEEE—Z%K -
Wiz H2 - BHRAE
BEEEZHENRERETS
BB THATEENE
o HMBAFMBREE
K BB RRERET
mFrEAFEERAAN
FERBA  ARAFE
B 2HMBRENT
2 . FAVBRELNE
135R ATRATERA « WHEIR
RAGHERERER °

2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on
how to measure fair value when it is required or
permitted by other standards. The standard applies
to both financial and non-financial items measured
at fair value and introduces a fair value measurement
hierarchy. The definitions of the three levels in this
measurement hierarchy are generally consistent
with HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”.
HKFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit
price). The standard removes the requirement to use
bid and ask prices for financial assets and liabilities
quoted in an active market. Rather the price within
the bid-ask spread that is most representative of
fair value in the circumstances should be used. It
also contains extensive disclosure requirements to
allow users of the financial statements to assess the
methods and inputs used in measuring fair values
and the effects of fair value measurements on the
financial statements. HKFRS 13 can be adopted early
and is applied prospectively.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HK(FRIC) Interpretation 20 — Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a Surface Mine

Stripping activities carried out in the production
phase of a surface mine may give rise to two
benefits: usable ore that can be used to produce
inventory and improved access to further quantities
of material that will be mined in future periods. The
Interpretation requires that costs of stripping activity
are accounted for in accordance with the principles
in HKAS 2 Inventories to the extent that the benefit
from stripping activity is realised in the form of
inventory produced. The costs of stripping activity
that provide a benefit in the form of improved access
to ore are recognised as a non-current stripping
activity asset when certain criteria are met. This asset
will be accounted for as an addition or enhancement
to an existing asset and is classified as tangible or
intangible according to the nature of the existing
asset of which it forms part. The stripping activity
asset is measured initially at cost and subsequently in
the same way as the existing asset of which it forms
part. It is depreciated or amortised on a systematic
basis over the expected useful life of the component
of the ore body that becomes more accessible as
a result of the stripping activity. The interpretation
is applied to production stripping costs incurred
after the beginning of the earliest period presented.
Predecessor stripping activity asset balance is
reclassified as a part of an existing asset subject to
the conditions in the Interpretation.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs
and the directors are not yet in a position to quantify
the effects on the Group’s financial statements.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost basis except for
investment property and certain financial assets
and liabilities, which are stated at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the
effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective
dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the
Group.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally
measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit
or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (@ maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments
to contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Contingent consideration balances arising from
business combinations whose acquisition dates
preceded 1 July 2010 (i.e. the date the Group first
applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been accounted for
in accordance with the transition requirements
in the standard. Such balances are not adjusted
upon first application of the standard. Subsequent
revisions to estimates of such consideration are
treated as adjustments to the cost of these business
combinations and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interest and the non-controlling interest
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interest
is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would
be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

33

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes
in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company is
able to exercise control. Control is achieved where
the Company, directly or indirectly, has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that are
presently exercisable are taken into account.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

34

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint venture. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but not control or
joint control over those policies. In consolidated
financial statements, associates are accounted for
using the equity method whereby they are initially
recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying
amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest
in the associate are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised only to
the extent of unrelated investors' interests in the
associate. The investor’s share in the associate’s
profits or losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount
of the associate and the entire carrying amount
of the investment is subject to impairment test, by
comparing the carrying amount with its recoverable
amount, which is higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable during the year.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a contractual
arrangement whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity which is subject to
joint control and none of the participating parties
has unilateral control over the economic activity.

Jointly controlled entities are accounted for using
equity method whereby they are initially recognised
at cost and thereafter, their carrying amounts
are adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition change in the jointly controlled entities’
net assets except that losses in excess of the Group's
interest in the jointly controlled entities are not
recognised unless there is an obligation to make
good those losses.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its jointly
controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in the jointly controlled entities,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are immediately recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6

Foreign currency translation

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of the
individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the reporting
date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group's
presentation currency, have been converted into
HK$. Assets and liabilities have been translated
into HK$ at the closing rates at the reporting date.
Income and expenses have been converted into
HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the exchange reserve in equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the exchange
reserve relating to that operation up to the date of
disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the
profit or loss on disposal.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7

3.8

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the
excess of the aggregate of consideration transferred
over the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of
consideration paid, the excess is recognised in profit
or loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of
the relevant cash-generating-units that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired (note 3.12).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost, which
comprise purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses (note
3.12). Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Other than mining structures, depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each asset over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Leasehold land Over the lease terms

Factory buildings Over the term of the leases
or estimated

useful lives of 25 years,
whichever is shorter
Commercial buildings Over the term of the
leases or estimated
useful lives of 33 years,
whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements Qver the term of the
leases or estimated
useful lives of 4 years,
whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 10% — 33%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 17%
Motor vehicles 25%
Depreciation on mining structures is provided to
write off the cost of the mining structure using units-

of-production method based on the total proven and
probable mineral reserves of the ore mines.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8

3.9

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The depreciation method, assets’ residual values
and useful lives, are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each reporting date. The gain or loss
on retirement or disposal of an asset of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs of
construction as well as borrowing costs capitalised
during the periods of construction and installation.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment
when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the assets for their intended use are
completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect
of construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Assets held under finance lease are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owner assets, or where shorter, the term of the
relevant lease.

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses and are
amortised on the units-of-production method based
on the total proven and probable reserves of the ore
mines.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.10

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment
property is accounted for as if it were held under a
finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is stated at fair value, unless it
is still in the course of construction or development
at the reporting date and its fair value cannot
be reliably determined at that time. Fair value is
determined by external professional valuers, with
sufficient experience with respect to both the
location and the nature of the investment property.
The carrying amounts recognised in the reporting
date reflect the prevailing market conditions at the
reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the
fair value or the sale of an investment property are
included in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.12

Land use rights

Land use rights represent up-front payments made
to acquire land held under an operating lease. They
are stated at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses, if any. The
determination if an arrangement is or contains a
lease and the lease is an operating lease is detailed
in note 3.18. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight line basis over the term of the lease/right
of use except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be
derived by the Group from use of the land.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, land use rights,
mining right, interests in subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities are subject to impairment
testing. They are tested for impairment whenever
there are indications that the assets’ carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indicator that
they are impaired. All other assets are tested for
impairment whenever there are indicators that the
asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessment of time value of money
and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating
unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to those
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from synergies of the related business combination
and represent the lowest level within the Group
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purpose.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units, to which goodwill has been allocated, are
credited initially to the carrying amount of goodwill.
Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata
to the other assets in the cash generating unit,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less cost to
sell, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed
in subsequent periods. In respect of other assets,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period relates.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13

Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets
other than interests in subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into the following
categories:

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

- Loans and receivables

- Available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at each reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases of financial assets are recognised on
trade date. A regular way purchase is a purchase
of a financial asset under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulation or convention in
the marketplace concerned. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13

Financial assets (continued)

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed
to assess whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment
loss is determined and recognised based on the
classification of the financial asset.

0]

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term, or it is part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-
term profit-taking. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments
or financial guarantee contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss,
except where the embedded derivative does
not significantly modify the cash flows or
it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.

—
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3.13

Financial assets (continued)

®

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (continued)

Financial assets may be designated at initial

& E A VIR TE R recognition as at fair value through profit or

BT ABARFETA loss if the following criteria are met:

BRcemEE

— WD BB ER sk - the designation eliminates or
AR DR A significantly reduces the inconsistent
EEBSEED treatment that would otherwise
WREMEAZ arise from measuring the assets or
EmfrB8Hezt recognising gains or losses on them
—HURIE ¢ g on a different basis; or

- BRBAXFTLZ - the assets are part of a group of

BB REE %

FEERBX

financial assets which are managed
and their performance is evaluated

EENMNERRIRTD on a fair value basis, in accordance
BRATFEEER with a documented risk management
BzemEEHR strategy and information about the

BEFP—HD M
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group of financial assets is provided
internally on that basis to the key
management personnel; or

- the financial asset contains an
embedded derivative that would
need to be separately recorded.

R - AU Subsequent to initial recognition, the
TREEDNRAFEE financial assets included in this category are
2 MATFEZENIEE measured at fair value with changes in fair
NFER ° value recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial assets (continued)

(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payment that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees
that are an integral part of the effective

interest rate and transaction cost.

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include
non-derivative financial assets that are either
designated to this category or do not qualify
for inclusion in any of the other categories
of financial assets. All financial assets within
this category are subsequently measured at
fair value. Gain or loss arising from a change
in the fair value excluding any dividend
and interest income is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the available-for-sale financial
assets revaluation reserve in equity, except
for impairment losses (see the policy below)
and foreign exchange gains and losses on
monetary assets, until the financial asset is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss. Interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in

profit or loss.

=
&8
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13

Financial assets (continued)

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

For available-for-sale investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses
at each reporting date subsequent to initial
recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
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TEEET HE () Impairment of financial assets (continued)

. BEBAAEEE . it becoming probable that the debtor will
EWENETE enter bankruptcy or other financial re-
RS E 4R organisation;

o g mE - & o significant changes in the technological,
B SOE IR IR W market, economics or legal environment that
WBEBEARD have an adverse effect on the debtor; and
B rEaRE
g sk

. fRART A —I8 . a significant or prolonged decline in the
®EZRAFERKR fair value of an investment in an equity
Bk R T®E instrument below its cost.

R ERKA o

X —HeREEZE Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets

BEUeEETZESR include observable data indicating that there is a

BEZAFRKBERE measurable decrease in the estimated future cash

IR ATt = K08 2 AT ER flows from the group of financial assets. Such

IR - RSN ESRHER observable data includes but not limited to adverse

FRETRRAERIRERSA changes in the payment status of debtors in the

2GR - A R ELZA R Group and, national or local economic conditions

NEEMmRIBRE R H that correlate with defaults on the assets in the

Rk & HAOEAR I H IR Group.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is

measured and recognised as follows:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised in profit
or loss of the period in which the impairment
occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of
the reversal is recognised in profit or loss of
the period in which the impairment occurs.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(ii)

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an
available-for-sale financial assets has been
recognised directly in equity and there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
an amount is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss as impairment
loss. That amount is measured as the
difference between the asset’s acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-
sale are not recognised in profit or loss.
The subsequent increase in fair value is
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Impairment losses in respect of debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversal of
impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognised in profit or loss.

—



Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R S Mz

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE-T—=F A=1+HILFE

El

= EEERBERBE®

3.13

EREE (&)

EHEEZHE (F)

(i) UKD EZ 2 HE
E

BEBREEIAE
BMEE < REERSE
U rEE 2 [ A
BAESMEEARTS
Bl R & BEIR 2 AR
EHATE - ZFRE
BB N H IR A
BEm o

314 EFE

3.15

FETIARAE R AT &35
FEZBIEEIIR - KA
BENRMEFGEERE
FE v S AR
ZRAEBEERM
B BRI RIELAIS
Lo BLEEM - AIERF
BRI R X HEFT
B Et EERETER T
PREE M S HEMEL 2
FHRRANEHE -

RERBREEH

RekReSRERERT
ReRFERAE -

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13

3.14

3.15

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Financial assets carried at cost

The amount of impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment losses are not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on the estimated selling prices in the ordinary
course of business less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade
payables, other payables and accruals, amount
due to ultimate holding company, amount due to
an associate, amounts due to related companies,
derivative financial instruments, convertible notes,
finance guarantee liabilities, loan from a controlling
shareholder, obligation under a financial lease and
bank loans.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note
3.24).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16

Financial liabilities (continued)

®

(ii)

Bank loans

Bank loans are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred. Bank
loans are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Bank loans are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting date.

Convertible notes contain liability and equity
components, and early redemption options
derivative

Convertible notes issued by the Group that
contain liability, conversion option and early
redemption option (which is not closely
related to the host contract) are classified
separately into respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash for a fixed number of the Group’s own
equity instruments is classified as an equity
instrument. At date of issue, the fair value of
a similar liability with similar early redemption
option is determined (“the combined
instrument”). The difference between the
fair value of the convertible notes and
the fair value of the combined instrument
representing the conversion option for the
holder to convert the notes into equity is
included in convertible note equity reserve.
The initial carrying amount of the liability
component is determined after deducting
the fair value of the early redemption
option from the fair value of the combined
instrument.



Annual Report 2013 4

Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R 5 i+

For the year ended 30 June 2013

HE—ZT

—=FRA=TRHIFE

B BURBE 2

3.16 S@EEd#E)

(i) IRREFRESERE

RRAEE 7 - RIEF
BEEETAE TR (E)

BT BARS - TR
Rig 7 BEHHAE
I ) s 2 A
5 - 12 S0 R A
ATFEHE  ATE
BB RIAIB R -

WA EB 17 BN ] 1§ B &
BORBAERREE
iz B BIRE
KA R R
B BEERBEET
EalE (ERBERT
AR iEE S R
PO Z RS = i
A (B) o fid 1% A
& m B BRI ARETT
8 RAl AR B
= R P B 2 RS BR
BREREAN - B
BB EnRTE
iR EREAR
o

HBITAIRERZES
B8 2 X BRAIZ S
FIRRBE D LB
ERE #EmkiE
FEOERD o HE
SmER BRI R B
ATLEEREZDH
Bro MIRFEEER
B2 X Z AR
BEAR - BEE
OB ZRZBEA
SFABRESD Z&E
B IRATBRERE
FHRARBERN R
BN o

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16

Financial liabilities (continued)

(i)

Convertible notes contain liability and equity
components, and early redemption options
derivative (continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability
component of the convertible notes is carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The early redemption option is
measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

The equity component, representing the
option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Group, will
remain in the convertible note equity reserve
until the embedded conversion option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated
in the convertible note equity reserve will be
transferred to share premium). Where the
conversion option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible
note equity reserve will be released to the
retained profits. No gain or loss is recognised
in the profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
the convertible notes are allocated to the
liability, equity and early redemption option
components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged
directly to equity. Transaction costs relating
to the early redemption option are charged
to profit or loss immediately. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the
liability portion and amortised over the
period of the convertible notes using the
effective interest method.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16

3.17

Financial liabilities (continued)

(iii) Finance lease payables

Finance lease payables are measured at
initial value less the capital element of lease
repayments.

(iv) Other financial liabilities

They are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in individual
contracts or separated from hybrid financial
instruments, are initially recognised at fair value on
the date the derivative contract is entered into and
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
that are not designated as hedging instruments are
accounted for as financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value are taken directly
to profit or loss for the year.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.18

Lease

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.

Assets acquired under finance lease

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance lease, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
is included in fixed assets and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.18 Lease (continued)

Subsequent accounting for assets under finance
lease agreements corresponds to those applied to
comparable acquired assets. The corresponding
finance lease liability is reduced by lease payments
less finance charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases
S0 as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Assets leased out under operating leases as the
lessees

The total rental payable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payment made.
Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The up-front payments are amortised over the lease
period on a straight-line basis and the amortisation
is charges to profit or loss. Lease incentives received
are recognised as an integrated part of the total
rental expense, over the term of the lease.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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3.19 Provisions and contingent liabilities

MAEBEERGBEZEHE
iﬁﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ'

Al BB A B F &
ijkﬁﬁ???ifEHEﬁu%T?ifE
SRELAISELE - AE
REE - e BREEE
BX - ARESETE S
EERBRX 2 HRER
1o

FERERE—EEAR
ARAE - LARBEEZ
Bl -

INE ABEIERIRE T2 B
KOBERzm M - skoRee ]
FHfaEr2E - AEBEE
BERBEAIARE B
#%ﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁZT%ﬁ
BRI - @R THEES
ﬁﬁ*Mﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁ
N5 B 5 Y 5 i Al g
EEZER - THEA
RNEME - BRIEEN=ER
2 AT B I ARIR o

IRBERBEENIKEE
EBAHEKBEER
BEZBRTER - %F
BEMINEE A
FEFTE - BRI LA
A E L BB TR S5
KNZHERSRRIEM R
TEESH (LNERERE)
ZERETE -

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course
of the allocation of purchase price to the assets
and liabilities acquired in a business combination.
They are initially measured at fair value at the date
of acquisition and subsequently measured at the
higher of the amount that would be recognised in
a comparable provision as described above and the
amount initially recognised less any accumulated
amortisation, if appropriate.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20

3.21

Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is determined using the nominal value of shares that
have been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received
on the issuance of shares over the par value. Any
transaction costs associated with the issuance of
shares are deducted from share premium (net of any
related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods, net of
rebates and discounts. Provided that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

(i) sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold. This is usually taken at the
time when the goods are delivered and the
customer has accepted the goods;

(ii) interest income, on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method; and

(iii) dividend income, when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment is established.



Annual Report 2013 4
Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R 5 i+

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE_Z—=F A=1HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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322 EEEF 3.22 Employee benefits
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Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme"”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ relevant income and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the
Group operated a defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme (the “Prior Scheme”) for those
employees who were eligible to participate in this
scheme. The Prior Scheme operated in a similar way
to the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee
left the Prior Scheme before his/her interest in the
Group’s employer contributions vested fully, the
ongoing contributions payable by the Group were
reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited
employer’s contributions.

—
~



Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R S Mz

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE-T—=F A=1+HILFE

=y
[0s)

s EBE

BB RBE®

BERH (&)
BIKIEF ()

REPEAREAME ([
B1) (BB KRR
([RBIXEE ) 2B AR
BELVRSEBEMHIR
a3 2 — TR AR MIRT
2 (MRBAETE) - 3%
EMBARMENFHE
BEZETBEDHLRERK
BB HRIE SR
BRizEe - AEEE
BRI R IR M BRI
SHEIEHH AR - RIK
R PA?S/OE)IAIN S
BRBR KB EIZR
AR RME R MFNRR o

HREFERNRERMER
BREEEATHERRF
X o REERZFRT &N
BERNENZFTER
BElE B ALtk o

KTEE R 18 P

BB FRENNE T’
SRER - UBLEERE
EREE R IHREREME
2 FR AT BEER
R

FERFHR RN R RER
KRB TT THERR

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.22

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefits (continued)

The employees of the subsidiaries which operate in
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") except Hong
Kong and Macau (“Mainland China”) are required
to participate in a retirement benefits scheme (the
“RB Scheme"”) operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
RB Scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the RB Scheme is to
pay the ongoing required contributions under the
RB Scheme. Contributions under the RB Scheme are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the RB Scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as employees render services during the
year. The Group'’s obligations under these plans are
limited to the fixed percentage contributions payable
to these plans.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.23

Share-based compensation

All share-based payment arrangements granted
after 7 November 2002 and had not vested on
1 January 2005 are recognised in the financial
statements. The Group operates equity-settled share-
based compensation plans for remuneration of its
employees and other eligible participants.

All employee services received in exchange for
the grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the equity instruments
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period
if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity
instruments granted vest immediately unless the
compensation qualifies for recognition as asset, with
a corresponding increase in the share option reserve
in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the expense
is recognised over the vesting period, based on the
best available estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of equity instruments that are expected to
vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is
any indication that the number of equity instruments
expected to vest differs from previous estimates.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.23

3.24

Share-based compensation (continued)

For warrants granted to service providers in
exchange for services acquired, they are measured at
the fair value of the services received. If the fair value
of the services received cannot be measured reliably,
the fair value of the equity instruments granted is
used. Their fair values of the services are recognised
as expense immediately, unless the services qualify
for recognition as assets. Corresponding adjustments
have been made to equity.

At the time when the share options or warrants
are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
reserve will be transferred to share premium. After
vesting date, when the vested share options and
warrants are later forfeited or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve/warrant reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing
costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.
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Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of
tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available
to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.25

Accounting for income taxes (continued)

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at
the reporting date. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary differences arising from goodwill
or from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on interests in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, provided
they are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.
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Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

Tl
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.25

3.26

Accounting for income taxes (continued)

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of debt
instrument.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.26

3.27

Financial guarantee contract (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where the consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 3.19 if
and when it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee and the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the current carrying
amount, i.e. the amount initially recognised less
accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way
of reduced depreciation expense.

—
ul



Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R S Mz

For the year ended 30 June 2013

BE—T—

=FRA=THIEFE

N
o))

3.29

B BRI E 2

RE

EEE@ERMN 2 RBK
g - DEABMBANEKIRK
AR R fE s Bb oy R B A
ZBAUNBERE EEE
BRERRBERASIER
1 o eI B ERR A
VERKERSEE -

AR A RFZEHBEREA
MEAMRAETES=ES
EIRTHBE - B
ERBEEZZENTIR -
It FHBREREERE
EE - B RERRRE -

7 &b 2

$EI$ETFWIE EVS
KEBHITESR) 2R
DB ERDEEREAR
SEXEBE Y Mt %E
BB RIVEHIRTE 2 FE H
MBI 5 BB S D
BLRENBER - [A#
TEE2RZABABE
B2 RFEB D TR A%
B ERXBERIEE -

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.28

3.29

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are
classified as a separate allocation of retained profits
within the capital and reserves section of the
statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum
and articles of association grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the chief
operating decision-maker i.e. the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group's business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major line of business.
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The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

- Design, manufacturing, marketing and
trading of fine jewellery and diamonds

- Property investment

— Mining operation

- Investment

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers, if any, are
carried out at arm'’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except that expenses
related to share of results of associates and jointly
controlled entities accounted for using the equity
method, income tax expenses and finance costs,
corporate income and expenses which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment, are not included in arriving at
the operating results of the operating segment.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.29

3.30

Segment reporting (continued)

Segment assets include all assets but cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, interests
in associates and interests in jointly controlled
entities. In addition, corporate assets which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment are not allocated to a segment,
which primarily applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude bank loans, amount due
to ultimate holding company, loan from a controlling
shareholder, financial guarantee liabilities, provision
for tax, deferred tax liabilities and corporate
liabilities, which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management

personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.
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(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iif) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Estimation of impairment losses of available-for-sale
financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value below cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment. Judgement is required
when determining whether a decline in fair value has been
significant and/or prolonged. In making this judgement, the
historical data on market volatility as well as the duration
and extent to which the fair value of specific investment is
less than its cost are taken into account. The Group also
takes into account other factors, such as industry and sector
performance and financial information regarding the issuer/
investee.

Estimated fair value of investment property

Investment property of the Group is stated at fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note
3.10. The fair value of investment property, set out in
note 17 to the financial statements, is determined by an
independent professional valuer, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors
Limited (“LCH"). Such valuation is made based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties and might
materially differ from the actual results. In making the
judgement, reasonable consideration has been given to the
underlying assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the reporting date. These estimates
are regularly compared to actual market data and actual
transactions in the market.

—
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Provision for impairment of receivables

The policy for the provision for impairment of receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of accounts and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness, the collateral security
and the past collection history of each customer. The
management of the Group reassesses the estimation at the
reporting date.

When the Group’s management determines the customers
are uncollectable, they are written off against the provision
made. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group,
on whose account provision for impairment has been made,
were improved and no impairment of their ability to make
payments were noted, reversal of provision for impairment
may be required.

Provision for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group would
evaluate ageing analysis of inventories and compare the
carrying value of inventories to their respective net realisable
value. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in determining such allowance. If conditions which have
impact on the net realisable value of inventories deteriorate,
additional allowances may be required.



Annual Report 2013 4

Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R 5 i+

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE_Z—=F A=1HILFE

m - BARE s & FE 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(%)

IR E

REEREAH  ESFARS
ZHEH AR EBENREREER
BEZHERIM - LFTHEREF
EEMRETR o KiEE 2 AF
B BB EZERETRASafE
RBIAREZF LN ELRRZSM
Hat H—RAMBEENZE
st o MR RIEYEE AT
MEHARREBAELERR
5 - T R A T ER G
BREATE -

RIERSHERREREERE

PREEHE N SRR S TR R BIR A
R O R SR Al RE 2 B i 1
M8 DA E BADAR RE T
B - ARAREEREFEA R
AR FERAERS
1 I

ARREEGE

ESENAEE A E RAKEL
AR RM IS ME 2 TR RE
BB AERM - FIERBR
BESMI TS RE R AR
My o ANARES 2 A FE - B
SEFAFRAZIEX BEEE
BA MG o ATRBREERZ AF
EgRRETIERRZ TAZ
ZUm ek - (ER2 5 2 &
HIREE - AL H A MRER
RNHEZ A EEEANTE -

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Valuation of mining right

The directors use their judgement in selecting an appropriate
valuation technique for the Group’s mining right so as to
assess whether there are any indicators of impairment at
each reporting date. The fair value of the mining right is
estimated by independent professional valuer based on
recent comparable transactions undertaken in the Mainland
China which generally represent the best estimate of the
market value. Any changes in economic conditions and
mineral prices and the availability of comparable transactions
may materiality affect the estimation of the fair value of
mining right.

Amortisation of mining right and depreciation of
mining structures

Mining right and mining structures are amortised/
depreciated on the units of production method based
on the total proven and probable mineral reserves of the
ore mines. The directors of the Company exercised their
judgement in estimating the total proven and probable
reserves of the ore mines.

Valuation of convertible notes

The directors use their judgement in selecting an appropriate
valuation technique for the Group’s convertible note which
is not quoted in an active market. Valuation techniques
commonly used by market practitioners are applied. The
fair value of convertible note is estimated by independent
professional valuer based on Binomial Option Pricing Model.
The fair value of convertible note varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change
in these variables so adopted may materially affect the
estimation of the fair value of convertible note.
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Valuation of financial guarantee contract

The directors use their judgement in selecting an appropriate
valuation technique in order to measure the fair value of
the provision of financial guarantee contract to the wholly-
owned subsidiary of its jointly controlled entity during the
year ended 30 June 2013. The fair value of the financial
guarantee contract is estimated by an independent
professional valuer based on the probability of default of the
borrower.

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of payment
of the related taxation. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
are recognised as management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and income tax expenses in the periods in which such
estimate is changed. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that
are used to assess performance and allocate resources.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Company’s executive directors. The executive directors
have identified the Group’s four business lines as operating
segments as further described in note 3.29.

(a) Business segment

£RREE
KEEHRAR UES RREH RE &a
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading of
fine jewellery and Property
diamonds investment Mining operation Investment Consolidated
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Tér TEr TEr TEr TEr TEr TEr TEr FEn TEn
HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKSO00 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

AHRA Seqment revenue
HEFIHREE/  Sales torevenue from
BRENFEE  ertomal partes

936,099 947,021 - - 10464 3831 265 4860 949215 955712

PR Seqment resuls

U740 28206 84659 1613 (15612) 355509  (7.385) (115430) 86402 269898

DR B 55 2 58 Share-based compensation
FRARREY Unallocated expenses

BREREERE  hcome aising from amortising

FEEHRA  the finandal quarantee
liabiltes

BENK Finance costs

EEBEDNTZE  Share of results of associates

EEAREE  Shareof resuls of joinly
BEzE controlled entites

RATERERER  Proft before income tax

(35339)
(3200 (8642

1,654 =
(9.688) 9293
- ()

1249 (139

87,660 215,020

—
a1
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FEAGRER VESE
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading of
fine jewellery and Property
diamonds investment
213 2012 2013 212
Fér TEr TEr TErn

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Business segment (continued)

Mining operation Investment Consolidated
013 2012 2013 2012 013 2012
Tér TEr TEr TEr TEr TEn

HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000 HKSO00 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000

PEE Segment assets 436918 428105 543604 453672 1,161,620 1127358 39814 48919 2,181,956 2,058,054
INEFESIBE Interests in ointly controlled

g entites 532,569 484,655
BERBESE  Cashand cash equivalents 37911 8523
EIBEEE  Deferred tax assels 6109 6093
RARAAEAE  Unallocated corporate assets 05 178
AEGE Totel asss 2758710 2634216
Ak Seqment liabiliies 163480 168,111 1768 208 46806 75794 53761 55299 265815 301290
RIER Bank loans 36181 411
EASEERAT  Due toultmate holding company

L] 1546 7871
BRBERE  Loanfroma controling

WEN sharcholder 105022 105,000
HHEREE  finandal quarantee liabiltes 10,751 =
HEEE Provison for tax 8114 10411
EEMEEE  Deforred tax iabiites 45001 238431
APBATEE  Unallocated coorate liablftes %2 1417
L Total liabites 973362 988598
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i wEER 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
@) LEFRN IR (1) (a) Business segment (continued)
Rt B
FEREE
HEEHRER NERE REER & G
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading of
fine jewellery and Property
diamonds investment Mining operation Investment Consolidated
213 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Fér TEr Fén Thr FEn TEr FEn Thr FEn TEr
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000
EfAFER . Other segment information:
W% BRERRE  Depreciation of property,
E plant and equipment (5975 (5480) - - (1739 (11%) - S (AT )
TtfEREEE  Amorsafonof land userights  (110)  (109) - - (33 (132) = - (1461) (1430
FEREY Amortisation of mining right - - - - (68 B9 - - (668 (19
BEMEZRTE  Changein fair vlue of
29 investment property - - 84769 1,65 - - - - 84769 1656
ERBENZHE  Imputed interest income
NEREFEE  arising from inital
RIESFIEMA  recognition of amount
due to a related company - - - - - 545 - - - 5455
fTE2BIAZ AT Farvalue gaintloss) on
i/ (BB)  derivative financl
nstruments 116 (280) - - - - - - 116 (286)
BRATEABEZ Fairvalue gainlloss) on
SREELNTHE  financal assetsat far value
Wi/ (BE)  through profit orloss - - - - - -4 3y M (3
RAEHBAAZ  Ecessof interestin the net
AHTREEN  fairvalue of the net
FATEZES  identfiable assets over the
BERBERRN  fairvalue of the total cost
ATENSS  of acquisiion of subsidaries - - - - - 364797 - - - 364797
TRRZEEEER Farvalue loss on redemption
EZDTEEE  optionsof convertble notes - - - - (1) (5 (19 (13 (4 (8)
HENE  FRE R Gainiloss) on disposal of
2/ (B1)  propery, plant and equipment = 70 - - ) B = - o
HETHHESH  Gain on disposalof
BENRE avalableforsale financial assets - - - - - - 510 - 50 -
AEEEZEH  mpaiment loss of
EEREFE  awlbleforsalefinandelassels - - - - - - (10076) (118361) (10,076) (118361)
REEUGE  Reversa of provsion for
flpEm long-term receivables % 50 - - - - - - % 50
ZHRUFERE  Provision for trade receivables (13)  (75) - - - - - - (13) (%)
BEEE/ () Write back of Provision for
inventories 3804 (1612 - - - - - - 3804 (1612)
FISKA Interst income - - - - - - W ®wWmW W
REFRHDT  Additions to non-current
£E Segments asefs 283 318 82 1009 484 73 - - 8519 11438

Q
X
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

Geographical information

The Group’s segment revenue from external
customers and its non-current assets (other than
financial instruments and deferred tax assets) are
divided into the following geographical areas.

REMABEEZWA
Revenue from
external customers

2013 2012
FE T FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
B (EBFTEH)  Hong Kong (place of domicile) 160,374 165,215
SIEP) North America 233,983 267,215
ERLNSGES Europe and Middle East 527,675 507,973
E b [= Other locations 27,183 15,309
AET Total 949,215 955,712
ERBEE

Non-current assets
2013 2012
FE T FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
&7 (EBEFTEH)  Hong Kong (place of domicile) 553,698 462,735
e United Kingdom 5,433 5,742
R B A Mainland China 1,725,043 1,647,360
Hth 3 [= Other locations 72 103
=1 Total 2,284,246 2,115,940
A ERAE R ZIBERE The revenue information above is based on the

ZHEMEI D < SERBE
E (SR TAMEERIRE
BRI 2 IR B AR
BEBRMAAEMTEID -

HITEFETAEEEE
PR B - HRAK
2 A BB PR ©

location of the customers. The geographical location
of the non-current assets (other than financial
instruments and deferred tax assets) is based on the
physical location of the assets.

The executive directors determine the Group is
domiciled in Hong Kong, which is the location of the
Group's principal office.
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B TEER @) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(b) HEERGE) (b)  Geographical information (continued)
FEEZEER Information about major customers
RESEERP (Rl A Revenue from each of the major customers, which
10%3 A& ) RO AELF) amounted to 10% or more of the total revenue, is
R set out below:
2013 2012
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
HER Customer A * 320,541 234,120
BRZL* Customer B * 112,647 112,251
EFA* Customer C * TEH N/A 98,271
* RERZFEFERFHN *  The revenue from these major customers was all
WAZHHTE B R derived by the business segment under design,
oBECHEERE manufacturing, marketing and trading of fine
BEREEMREBARE jewellery and diamonds.
f&/\# o
7~ 5 6 REVENUE
Yogs (BNANER @ 2 &5 50) $8 484 Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents
BREENRESTHEEEHER the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for
ZEBEEFZ N BIMARKE Z returns and trade discounts, interest income, and dividend
AR BN o income from investments.
REBWE= 2 HITHT - An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows:
2013 2012
FiET FEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
SHE S m Sale of goods 936,099 947,021
HE SR Sale of gold ores 10,464 3,831
A2 WA Interest income 203 392
&2 ERA Dividend income from investments 2,449 4,468
949,215 955,712

E
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£ BERS 7.

FINANCE COSTS

2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
FERXE : Interest charges on:
IRITE K> Bank loans*
— BN A FABE — wholly repayable within
& five years 8,676 7,939
TR R A E S Interest expenses on loan from

EORAIIENE a controlling shareholder 1,575 1,137
B A EAIER Finance charges on obligation under

BEZE A a finance lease 14 =
FEATREE A AIFUIBFT  Imputed interest expenses arising from

ELXRESENERY  amounts due to related companies 2,717 141
AR IR 2 B 5 Imputed interest expenses on

F B convertible notes (note 35)

(HzE=+5) 3,802 4,552
BIEE A Total borrowing costs 16,784 13,769
W REMEE AN Less: Bank loan interest capitalised

ZBRITERF S in investment property (note 17)
(B aE++) (4,379) (4,335)
12,405 9,434

E TRIRITE R BB R -
BIESARERERESR
BXHEHERBIEER
1op 5% I P & 165 76 T8 B B 3K
BEE REzE=Z—=
EXNA=1THLEER
A 1R B SKEE R B RS
KIERTTE M T B ALY
8,676,000 L (Z T —=
£ : 7,939,000 7T) °

This represents the finance costs on bank loans,
including term loans which contain a repayment
on demand clause in accordance with the agreed
scheduled repayments dates set out in the loan
agreements. For the year ended 30 June 2013, the
interest on bank loans which contain a repayment
on demand clause amounted to approximately
HK$8,676,000 (2012: HK$7,939,000).
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I\ BBREREHELER 8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
2013 2012
FiBT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

REEKRFTSFANGF] The Group’s profit before income tax
KPR (RFA)BAR s arrived at after charging/(crediting):

JHEE -

BEEHTFERAN Cost of inventories sold 807,941 805,715

Y RE M EITE  Depreciation of property, plant and

(MsE+H) equipment (note 15) 7.714 7,632
-ttt {5 R AR 2 6 Amortisation of land use rights (note 16)

(Bt sE+7) 1,461 1,430
FRpEREEE G (B0 s+ /\) Amortisation of mining right (note 18) 668 316
BIEGEHAELTHE Minimum lease payments under operating

BFZHEBERMNZ  leases on land and buildings 6,555 6,399
= B AN BN & Auditor’s remuneration 1,019 1,034
FE (FR) B (Write back of)/provision for inventories* (3,804) 1,612
FESRAE A R 3R IE Imputed interest income arising from initial

AR ATE AN recognition of amount due to a related company

& &5 M B - (5,455)
LAAF{EFF ABzz  Fair value (gain)loss on financial assets

TREENATE at fair value through profit or loss

(Weas) /K18 (524) 2,328
Al 2 i R 5 BB ] Fair value loss on redemption options

BEREZNTE of convertible notes (note 35)

EBiE(fE=151) 141 2,857
PTESMTEATFE  Fair value (gain)/loss on derivative

(W) B8 financial instruments — forward currency contracts

—EZHREREH (116) 286
I E51E Net foreign exchange loss 980 3,076
P /NG ol v Impairment loss on interests in associates

WIEER - 2,136
HEWE  BE K Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

® i B 20 275
BT 4 Bt Government grants # (446) (132)
B 5 e GRIA Provision for trade receivables 123 756
FEAFEU R IB B fBEE (0] Reversal of provision for long-term receivables (967) (500)
LN Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries (note 44.2)

(B3¥44.2) - (714)
* FRZEFEBE) EE * (Write back of)/Provision for inventories for the year

DRt AGRRREREME was included in “cost of sales” on the face of the
R 2 [HHERA] A consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

G U #6 BY o e BT P & # Government grants have been received from JTF3H
TRHIINESEESF ETREINE BEBESIER for one of the Group's
BT ERAEE —XK subsidiaries in which its business activities carried on
P/ A Al R BT R 5 in this area. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
A o B R B IR R contingencies related to these grants.
TR EE -

S
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- EHREAX 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
EBNEHIIARFERES Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
BEA 7 At ER TS A IE R 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
16.5% (ZZ——4F : 16.5%) &t arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
8 o Hhih[E fEERT A 2 T 1E assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the applicable
RSB L8 2 ER AAMEIR rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
FrE Ao BRGtE - WIRERZES operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
AVEME 2 IRITEN - RERE practices in respect thereof.

BlfEE -

2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

B EATIE Current tax
B Hong Kong 2,217 3,528
I PRC 720 559
AFFE SRR Over-provision in prior years (1,436) (4,714)
1,501 (627)

EIEFE (ffsE =1 +) Deferred tax (note 37)
KREEZ Current year (198) 3,121

iR B Total income tax expense 1,303 2,494
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

FTiSHiA S MEstmfiZE AT Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting
EETE R AR profit at applicable tax rates:

2013 2012

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

bR BT 1S 4 Al Al Profit before income tax 87,660 215,020

B BT3B AT BB B IR
EEMEI65% (=
ZH 1 165%)HE
REMEZEREEY

Tax on profit before income tax,

calculated at the statutory rate of

16.5% (2012: 16.5%) 14,464 35,478
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

YN RN b operating in other jurisdictions

2R (774) 30,428
ffﬁﬁ‘éﬁ%f’& RIFEE Tax effect of share of results of associates

M - 42
FE(R HRZEHIE B EE Tax effect of share of results of

RIS 2 jointly controlled entities (2,062) 223
TR B B2 T2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 3,995 29,132
AR A Z TG E  Tax effect of non-taxable income (13,477) (94,131)
SEEEAN ?\Eifffﬁ% Tax effect of prior years' tax losses

B 2 RIS & utilised this year (371) (375)

EIEF IR B EBRR Derecognition of deferred tax assets = 3,477

RIERRIFEIE 2 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

M e 964 2,934
NEFE %R Over-provision in prior years (1,436) (4,714)
REEFBREEZ Income tax expense for the year 1,303 2,494

AR ANENT 10. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE

F OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

RNRAFEEB AEASERE 5= A Of the consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the
85,847,000/ T (T — — 4 : Company of HK$85,847,000 (2012: HK$214,894,000), a
214,894,000 7T) 1 * &N A A profit of HK$4,650,000 (2012: a loss of HK$136,175,000)
PHEREPEREE 2w M B has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
4,650,000 T (ZE——4F : & Company.

#8136,175,000/87T) °
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+— e 11. DIVIDENDS

EFTRBENBE-F =4

The directors do not recommend any payment of dividends

NA=ZTHIEFEZERMERE

for the year ended 30 June 2013 (2012: Nil).

T —F ) o

RNRBHEE ARG EREAR L #
SBAEN TR T EETE
following data:

+= -BRER 12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company are based on the

2013 2012
FET FAET
HK$000 HK$'000
NATHEA ARG Profit attributable to the owners
il of the Company 85,847 214,894
GIEE S Lol Imputed interest expenses on convertible notes
MBFX 3,802 4,552
AR =R R A B3R Fair value loss on embedded options
NEEEE of convertible notes 141 2,857
Rt AR ZIEAIES Profit attributable to owners of the Company
F2 F X kAT before imputed interest expenses on
iR A B convertible notes and fair value loss on
N EEER embedded options of the convertible notes
VIN/NGIEZ 2 =N
JE 15 )% F) 89,790 222,303
2013 2012
RE A

LAGTEEIREARZF]  Weighted average number of ordinary shares
2 ERBARINMEFHE for the purpose of basic earnings per share

QR e V9

BEEEE R
T & (M)

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
in respect of convertible notes (note (i)

Number of shares

5,110,656,270 4,551,252,566

1,814,115,840 1,371,015,036

LAFTE B # S AT 2 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
T AR N T 2R for the purpose of diluted earnings per share

6,924,772,110 5,922,267,602
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+= - BiREN =

Hiat

(i)

(ii)

+=
i
+

REBE_ZT—=F
Zt+BHILEFER  SE
BAMNMNSBEDERAR
A A AEM T AN G A
85,847,000 L (=& —=
£ 1 214,894,000/ 7T) (4%
TR AR R A AR R A
fE &5 Al B 2 R A AR 2
Eix AR AT EEE (0
B ST B AT R
A& AR AETTIE s B R A
£ 4£89 790,000/ 7T (=
T — — 4 :222,303,000
BIL)) NERFEARK
o B E R N 1 B
6,924,772,1100% (==&
— — % :5,922,267,602
f%) (BN & A% & A & A &
E AT A B AR pnAE
) £45,110,656,2700% (=
T — 4 : 4,551,252,566
) T EERNMEKEAF
Al R A% AR AR BT 3K
R EMmEDL AR
1,814,115,8408% (= &
— — 4% :1,371,015,036
f&%)) °

B

pi

RBE_Z——FXA
=tRLEER Sk
SERMNNF B B RRIE
tHRBEEFE RE
RIE LM RBIEES TR
REEFE -

ERAHEX (8
§)$Eﬂiﬁ—ﬂﬁﬁi

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

13.

Notes:

0

(ii)

For the year ended 30 June 2013, diluted earnings
per share amounts is based on the profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$85,847,000 (2012: HK$214,894,000) and adjusted
to reflect the imputed interest expenses on the
convertible notes and fair value loss on the embedded
options of convertible notes, where applicable, after
adjustments to reflect the effect of deemed exercise
or conversion of convertible notes, which was
HK$89,790,000 (2012: HK$222,303,000) and on the
adjusted weighted average of 6,924,772,110 (2012:
5,922,267,602) ordinary shares outstanding during the
year, being the weighted average of number of ordinary
shares of 5,110,656,270 (2012: 4,551,252,566) used in
basic earnings per share calculation and adjusted for the
effect of deemed exercise or conversion of convertible
notes existing during the year of 1,814,115,840 (2012:
1,371,015,036).

For the year ended 30 June 2012, the computation of
diluted earnings per share did not assume the exercise
of the unlisted warrants as the exercise of the unlisted
warrants was anti-dilutive.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS - NOTE 14)

2013 2012
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000

T& %%  2BiK  Wages, salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
EMN® 86,628 78,881
RRETEIH K Retirement scheme contributions 8,502 6,925
95,130 85,806

—
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14. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND
EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUALS

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies

T Ordinance is as follows:
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
bk Fees 300 350
4 EBER B S Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 7,257 5,964
14T Bonus 1,550 770
BRIRFTEI R Retirement scheme contributions 339 274
9,446 7,358
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+0-EEMERTINES 14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
AT ZEHEM = EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a) == (a) Directors’ emoluments
REE  BENHENSE The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
EZMewT directors during the year were as follows:

BE_Z—=5X-A=1HILFE
Year ended 30 June 2013

g 28
RENFZ g
Salaries, ST
allowances Retirement
#£ and benefits ’a scheme &5t
Fees in kind Bonus contributions Total

FEr FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HTESE: Executive directors:

RE2 Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 3,600 300 174 4,074
L] 5 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley = 1,560 600 70 2,230
B Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 792 250 36 1,078
Bz Chan Wai Lap, Victor - 1,305 400 59 1,764
FaTES Non-executive director:

il Fang Gang 100 - - - 100
BUFHTES: Independent non-executive directors:

REX Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 = - - 50
BmE Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 50 = = = 50
i Sze lrons 50 = = = 50
RiE Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 50 = = = 50
it Total 300 7,257 1,550 339 9,446
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THO-SEMERAMNES

AT ZHM =)

(@) EBHME)

14. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND

EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

HE_Z——FA=THLFE
Year ended 30 June 2012

¥4 28
RENFG pidiN
Salaries, HE 6
allowances Retirement
#% and benefits 4 Scheme EH
Fees in kind Bonus contributions Total
TEn TiEr TiEr FiEx FiEr
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
WIS Executive directors:
BEE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 3,540 380 165 4,085
L] Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 948 130 43 1,121
REM Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 600 120 27 747
RE Chan Wai Lap, Victor - 876 140 39 1,055
FHITES Non-executive directors:
ERT (M&0) Cao Kuangyu (note (i) 50 - - - 50
il Fang Gang 100 - - - 100
BUFHTES ! Independent non-executive directors:
REX Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 - - - 50
BRImE Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 50 = - - 50
i Sze Irons 50 - - - 50
RiE Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 50 = = = 50
et Total 350 5,964 770 274 7,358

REBEE-_ZT—=F,XH
=+HIEFER  Ef—
HESHRISTERBES
BT ——FRZET—=
FERNA=ZTHIEFENT
B - H & £49196,00078
TL(ZE—ZF\E) - K&
FrEgaE o) - FRIEE
E R E kR B R E (AN
&2 HAb & HE -

R AREYERAES
S ERBEERIAZK
RINARE BB 2 2R =X
RERIE -

During the year ended 30 June 2013, one of the directors,
Fang Gang waived his emoluments for the years ended 30
June 2011 and 2012 which amounted to approximately
HK$196,000 (2012: Nil). Saved as disclosed, there was no
other arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the years.

During the years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.
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+O-EEMERTINES
FATZFHM =

(@) EBHFME)
Hiat -

0  ERTEHREAR
AIZEMITEE - i
—F——%4+=A
=t REEK-

(b) HEuUBZSHFAL

FARARMNRSHFALEE
=R (ZE——F WR)
2% Efle#BEHR L
X e B TITMB(ZE—=
F:ZRH)WIIEE &

14. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND
EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
Note:

(i) Cao Kuangyu resigned as a non-executive
director of the Company with effective from 30
December 2011.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals during the year
included three (2012: two) directors, details of
whose emoluments are set out above. Details of
the emoluments of the remaining two (2012: three)
non-directors, highest paid individuals are as follows:

BomALTZHMEFBN
=
2013 2012
FET FAEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
e B R Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
B & 3,204 4,045
4L Bonus 250 1,169
RIRET B R Retirement scheme contributions 30 389
3,484 5,603
IEEEZ & E AT The number of non-directors, highest paid
S22 NT 5 ESHEZ individuals whose emoluments fell within the
AT ¢ following bands is as follows:
ABEEH
Number of individuals
2013 2012
1,000,001/ 0 &2 HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
1,500,00078 T 1 1
1,500,001/8 T2 HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
2,000,0007% 7T, - 1
2,000,001/ L2 HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
2,500,000/ 71 1 1
2 3

FN - ANEBEWERFG

TECF =R Ee
FATINERMESIES
DA AR EE R 2
HEREN Sk BE R A 1 o

During the year, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the two (2012: three) highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

—
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&

+3 % B R
AEH

15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -
GROUP

B 2R
RERAE
BERER Furniture,
ST A FE  fixtures and
fELi Buidingsand — FEEE R#®  cquipment  EERIR
Leasehold leasehold Mining  Plantand  and motor Construction ]
land improvements  structures  machinery vehicles in progress Total
T AT AT T FHT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZF-—FLA-HAt 1 uly 2011
$ o Cost 6,160 83,183 - 60,582 55,054 - 204,979
ZMERAE  Acumulated depreciation and
impairment @n4 (48.430) - (53,744) (47,793) - (152,681)
REEE Net carrying amount 3,446 34,753 - 6,838 7,261 - 52,298
BEZZE-Z%5E VYearended 30 June 2012
STRLEE
ENEEYE Opening net carrying amount 3,446 34,753 - 6,538 7,261 - 52,298
KEHBLR Acaisttion of subsidiaries (note 44.1) - 11,685 31,988 2513 1,582 12,20 60,038
(Mrskaa1)
ME Additions - 1,695 - 247 2,385 6,122 10449
& Disposals - (24) - (161) (195) - (380)
#)/(t) Transfer infout) - 807 9,303 614 58 (11,316) -
?ﬁ% Depreciation (102) (3502) (13) (1,452) (2.563) - (7.632)
ERBE Exchange realignment - 399 100 126 1 38 664
ERBEFE Closing net carrying amount 334 45813 41,378 8,735 9,053 7114 115,437
m:?:i/‘-\ﬁ At 30 June 2012
=TH
RE Cost 6,160 9,358 41,391 59,812 56,431 114 26766
ZEREE  Acumulated depreciation and
impairment (2,816) (50,545) (13) (51,077) (47,378) - (151,829)
BEFE Net carrying amount 3,344 45813 41,378 8,735 9,053 7114 115,437
HEZZ-=EXB Yearended30June 2013
=tALFE
ENREFE Opening net carrying amount 3,344 45813 41378 8,735 9,053 7114 115,437
ﬁﬁ Additions = 768 = 444 1,730 2971 5919
=3 Disposals - - - - (55) - (55)
8)\/(ih) Transfer inout) - - 1,734 = 685 (2,419 =
ik} Depreciation (102) (3423) (28) (1379) (2783) - (7,714)
EiAE Exchange realignment - 957 1,170 244 133 151 2,65
EREEFE Closing net carrying amount 3242 44,115 44,254 8,045 8,763 1823 116,242
B@:%—zﬁf—\ﬁ At30June 2013
=qrfe
ﬁm . Cost 6,160 98,801 44294 61,512 59,587 7823 28171
ZMERAE  Acumulated depreciation and
impairment 2918 (54,686) (40) (53,467) (50,824) - (161,935)
KEFE Net carrying amount 3,242 44,115 44,254 8,045 8,763 1823 116,242




Annual Report 2013 4
Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R 5 i+

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE_Z—=F A=1HILFE

+5 - YE BB EEE— 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -
X&EE@® GROUP (continued)

RZEBE—=F,A=1H ' K& At 30 June 2013, the Group's certain leasehold land
| AR )B4 §E 919,385,000/ and buildings with aggregate net carrying amounts of
g (ZZF — =4 : 20,141,000/%5 approximately HK$19,385,000 (2012: HK$20,141,000)
TC) ZHB THE i RiEFRIE were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to
AR T AEE 2 —MRIR1T the Group (note 30).
FE(HE=1) -
R-E—=FEA=1+H" 85 At 30 June 2013, the Group's leasehold land and buildings,
RYE BEMREAZAEER included in property, plant and equipment, with a net
AR 5E /43,285,0008 70 (== carrying amount of HK$3,285,000 (2012: HK$3,388,000)
— —4F : 3,388,000/ ) 2 HE are situated in Hong Kong and are held under a medium-
T REF ARSI LA HATE term lease.
A -
RZZE—=FA=+H" ' "=E At 30 June 2013, the carrying amount of a motor vehicle
#Y BR [ < 58 8 75 & 58328,000/% includes an amount of HK$328,000 (2012: Nil) in respect of
T(ZZE——4F : &) HABIRE an asset held under a finance lease.
MEASHENEE °

TR tERAE-AEE 16. LAND USE RIGHTS — GROUP

REBR I EREZ R RTE The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid

e HERIE - HREFEE operating lease payments and the movements in their net
BT carrying amounts are analysed as follows:

2013 2012

FET FAET

HK$'000 HK$'000

FYIRESFE Opening net carrying amount 41,824 3,813

U BE B B8 A R Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 44.1)

(P 5E44.1) - 39,319
FAEHEEA Amortisation charge for the year (1,461) (1,430)
PE W Exchange realignment 1,077 122
FREREFE Closing net carrying amount 41,440 41,824

—
Ul
=
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—

+AR - TiERAE-AEE 16.

LAND USE RIGHTS - GROUP (continued)

(%)

7R B L it {50 PR A M 2t R TED S8R
RIBHEEHELODTAOT

The analysis of the net carrying amounts of the Group'’s
interests in land use rights according to lease periods are as
follows:

2013 2012
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000

RBEBAINEE : Outside Hong Kong, held on:
A+FLAERBAS  Long-term lease of over 50 years 246 250
+EZR+FFHALE Medium-term lease of between 10 to 50 years 41,194 41,574
41,440 41,824

R-ZT—=F,A=+H K&
B H 18 48 B8 491,449,0007% 7T
—ZT——4:1,485,00087T) Z
& T i AR AR AR IR
FAERZ —RBTEE (M=E
=1t)-

BEWE-FEE

AEBEAEERETAFE - A
RS HENIRER NHAER
SERBERKREMERZRZ
FIEY*iEn - HERAAFEE
IR EMERBRARK -

FIASRE SRR R 2 BRE (E &
FEai R

17.

At 30 June 2013, the Group's certain land use rights with
aggregate carrying amounts of HK$1,449,000 (2012:
HK$1,485,000) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 30).

INVESTMENT PROPERTY — GROUP

All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals, for capital appreciation purposes or
property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment
property.

Movements of the carrying amounts presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position can be
summarised as follows:

2013 2012

FET TET

HK$'000 HK$'000

RE 2 REE Carrying amount at beginning of the year 453,500 446,500
= Additions 852 1,009
BRI 2 RITEZF S (B5E+) Bank loan interest capitalised (note 7) 4,379 4,335
WEY AT E 2 Change in fair value of investment property 84,769 1,656
REKZRAME Carrying amount at end of the year 543,500 453,500
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+Et - BEVE-—XEH 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTY - GROUP

(#&)

RZZE—=F"A=+8 &
AREMEZERILLRNE B
22,889,000/ L (=& — Z 4 :
18,510,000 7T) °

R_ZT—=FA=+H &
YIERB A EMAIEITIE
BT R EL R R R i B A
{8 /4543,500,000/ T (ZE——
£F : 453,500,000/ 7T) ° Flgrit
BEMEE DR EEEE M
TR (BIERENAE - B
B - BERKA - ABEKA - I
s EREERNMERIBE BE
RmA) - REFEEMEEZ
A {E Uk %584,769,0005% 7T (=
T — — 4 : 1,656,000/ 7T) BEA
FE B

RZEBE—Z=ZF~A=+H ' &
£ B BR | € 28 4543,500,00078
JC (=& — =4 : 453,500,000/8
J0) IS B Y E B LR - AR
SETFAEERNIRITER (FsE
=t)-

R-ZFB—=FX A=1TH &%
B REMEMNEE  WAK
HEERE -

(continued)

As at 30 June 2013, included in investment property
was interest capitalised of HK$22,889,000 (2012:
HK$18,510,000).

Investment property was valued at 30 June 2013 by
LCH, an independent firm of chartered surveyors, at
HK$543,500,000 (2012: HK$453,500,000) on re-
development basis by adopting the residual site method.
The residual site method is determined by deducting the
estimated total cost of the development including costs of
construction, professional fee, finance cost, associated costs
and an allowance for developer’s risk and profit from the
gross development value. A fair value gain on revaluation
of HK$84,769,000 (2012: HK$1,656,000) arising therefrom
was credited to profit or loss for the year.

As at 30 June 2013, the Group’'s investment property
with a carrying amount of HK$543,500,000 (2012:
HK$453,500,000) was pledged to secure a bank borrowing
granted to the Group (note 30).

At 30 June 2013, the Group’s investment property is
situated in Hong Kong and is held under long-term lease.

—
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H

+\ R - A

18. MINING RIGHT — GROUP

2013 2012

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

FYRE FE Opening net carrying amount 1,020,524 =
Lz B Ff /2B 1 A Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 44.1)

(Pt5E44.1) - 1,017,663
o Addition 1,808 =
FREIHE A Amortisation charge for the year (668) (316)
e 5 Exchange realignment 28,831 3,177
FREMEFE Closing net carrying amount 1,050,495 1,020,524
BEmE4AE Gross carrying amount 1,051,490 1,020,840
R Accumulated amortisation (995) (316)
BETF R Net carrying amount 1,050,495 1,020,524
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T -RMB AR ZEE— 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES -
VYN COMPANY
2013 2012
FET FAEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
JE LMD - AKX Unlisted shares, at cost 122,076 122,076
HEEHE Deemed capital contribution 173,710 173,710
BB A RFIZE  Loan form part of the net investment
— &Ry H) B K in subsidiaries * 424,148 424,148
R B P A Provision for impairment (30,237) (30,237)
689,697 689,697
JE Uk B B8 A Rl R IEY Due from subsidiaries * 518,693 499,307
DIAIEREEEZ  Provision against amounts due from
N NG E Q] subsidiaries classified as non-current assets
2B (102,000) (102,000)
416,693 397,307
1,106,390 1,087,004
DEENBEEL Due from subsidiaries classified as current assets #
JE U B B A R RIEY 212,461 212,303
DI AERENE = 2 FEU Provision against amounts due from
B ARIFIEZ#E  subsidiaries classified as current assets (123,222) (113,125)
89,239 99,178
PEARBARBZ Due to subsidiaries classified as current liabilities*
FETHT B A R 5k (18,813) (7,426)

—
ul
a1
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&

Th -RHB AR ZHE R — 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES -
Y, /NN ) COMPANY (continued)

U B A R IR R E R 2 & The movement on the provision for impairment of amounts

BT : due from subsidiaries are as follows:
2013 2012
FET FAET
HK$000 HK$'000
REF) 2 hEE Balance at beginning of the year 215,125 102,000
BRI EEE Impairment losses recognised 10,097 113,125
RERZ HEE Balance at end of the year 225,222 215,125
& AAmANEEREEE 3 The loan is repayable at the discretion of the Company

B EEBIZAER R
RREEER  ER R
REBERH MR
ReRA - BEARBRS
B RRHRE DR
# o

g EHIBRR 2 AR THER
a8 ARHBBERE
HEHBFARARTZEAR
B8 T BREBEER
AEEEWRM B AR 2K
T8 /4 $189,239,0005 7T (—
=T — — 4 : 99,178,000/6
JC) K FEAS BT BB A R ZIE
18,813,000 L (=ZZE —=
£ : 7,426,00087C) °

but the repayment of the loan is neither planned nor
likely in the foreseeable future. Therefore, the amount is
treated as part of the net investment in subsidiaries.

& The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and not repayable within the next twelve months
from the reporting date, except for amounts due from
subsidiaries of HK$89,239,000 (2012: HK$99,178,000)
and amounts due to subsidiaries of HK$18,813,000
(2012: HK$7,426,000) which are repayable on demand.
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R-E—=£XA=+A0 *E
AR 2 FEE T

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES -

COMPANY (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2013

are as follows:

MR/ B#RR/
BRRE=E ERTRAEE ARRER
Place of Nominal value BHAM
incorporation/ of paid-up Percentage of
£ registration registered/issued equity attributable ~ TEEH
Name and operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
E# 3
Direct Indirect
EREMRERERAR Bk WREREEI0ET EBR 100 - BRESRNE
Amco Jewelry Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$10 each Diamond trading and polishing
Brangredi Limited b \REREEIET LSRR - 100 HEEHES
Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each Jewellery trading
C.J. (UK) Limite* £ 1,000k BREEI K SRk - 100 HEEHEE
United Kingdom 1,000 ordinary shares of GBP1 each Jewellery wholesaling
ENERARAT B 100REREE BT ERR - 00 #6E5H
Conti Diamond Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Diamond trading
Continental Investment 5 100,000 SR E BB T2 Kk 100 - RERR
Company Limited Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investment holding
EFKE (TP ERAR hE B #1574535,000,00078 T - 100 HEEHEE
Mainland China Paid up capital of HK$35,000,000 Jewellery manufacturing
ERREAHHARAT Bk 10,000,000 SR AE1 T2 &M 100 - HEAHRERRE
Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary shares of Jewellery manufacturing
Limited HK$1 each and wholesaling
BAERRAR &b WREREEIET L EBR = 100 nEiRE
Continental Property Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property investment
Holdings Limited

Eil
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BE-2-=#XA=tALEE

&

T HMB AR ZEm— 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES -
YN/ NG D) COMPANY (continued)
ML/ B8R/
BRREE Y ERTRAEE RRFELR
Place of Nominal value REAML
incorporation/ of paid-up Percentage of
8 registration registered/issued equity attributable ~ FEXHK
Name and operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
E# 3
Direct Indirect
Continental Universe Limited RBRRES WERAEIET, EBR 100 - RERR
British Virgin Islands 2 ordinary shares of US$1 each Investment holding
DCGS Management Sevice A 10,000,000 SR EE 1T 2 & Bk - 100 RERR/REEERE
Limited Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary shares of Investment holding/providing
HK$1 each management services
EEREARAT Bk 50,000 S KA E10E T BB 100 - REEBR
Diamond Creation Limited Hong Kong 50,000 ordinary shares of HK$10 each Investment holding
Golden Creation Jewellery 55 SREREBIETZ SRR - 80  KEEHES
Limited Hong Kong 5 ordinary shares of HK$ 1 each Jewellery trading
RAERRARLA BR 600 000R BREE 0BT 2 KRR 100 - REER
Ming Xiu Diamond Cutting Hong Kong 600,000 ordinary shares of HK$10 each Investment holding
Factory Limited
AR/ BERRAR Tl BiRA21,000,000% T - 100 FREDRRERRE
Mainland China Paid up capital of US$21,000,000 Mining and exploration
of mineral reserves
RAER (BM) ERAR i B&IRA11,000000% T - 100 HEAEARITE
Mainland China Paid up capital of HK$ 11,000,000 Diamond trading and polishing
IMTEUAERRAR i B 81 44,280,400T A R - 100 EEHEE
Mainland China Paid up capital of RMB4,280,400 Jewellery wholesaling
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+h B AR ZHED— 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES -

~
Y, /N=INE ) COMPANY (continued)
e,/ R/
R BRITRAEE KAFELR
Place of Nominal value BRAD
incorporation/ of paid-up Percentage of
£ registration registered/issued equity attributable ~ TEEHK
Name and operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
BE 3
Direct Indirect
Patford Company Limited B 100 ERAEEI00ET, EBR - 100  MERE
Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 each Property investment
Reafford Company Limited Bh 100RSREEI00E T2 EBR - 100  WERE
Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 each Property investment
EERERRAA & \REREBIETERR - 100  MERE
Well Friendship Investment Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each Property investment
Limited
Yett Holdings Limited EERIES 100RSREEIZETEBR 100 - RARR
British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares of US$1 each Investment holding
Master Gold Development BERIES 1REREEIZT L EBR - 100 REER
Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each Investment holding
G R B R sl 2 SN 58 # Wholly foreign-owned enterprise registered in the
Bz o Mainland China.
* BB B EERTEA S Not audited by BDO Limited (“BDO") or other

EBRBER AR ([ZER
S RIERRZEHMK
BRAZE - FRLER
SRBZHBRAREER
ERBHOGEAREEESF
BAEFE3% °

BDO member firms. The aggregate net assets of
these subsidiaries not audited by BDO amounted to
approximately 3% of the Group's total net assets.

EERA - ERINFARAZH
BRABNERREANFE ZEE
HAAKAEEEEFEZ BAR
7 EERAREEMKIE AT
ZHEHEEYREBNITE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

R-EBE—=FER/R_FT——FxA
=+H - WEHEBRE)ETER

ERES

As at 30 June 2013 and 2012, none of the subsidiaries had
issued any debt securities.

—
8
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HE-_Z—=F A=1+HILFE
—+ - REENR S — 20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES - GROUP
AEEBRARQTA AND COMPANY
AEE P N/NC|
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
JEETARM ~ #AKAN  Unlisted shares, at cost = = 9,385 9,385
JE(E B EFE Share of net assets 6,034 6,034 = =
BIER Provision for impairment (6,034) (6,034) (9,385) (9,385)
Bhes N\ 7] 2 G5 8k Balances with associates
IREEE PN
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A NEIE Due from associates 1,259 1,259 = =
BB B Provision for impairment (1,259) (1,259) = =
FE{ST B & A B 3B Due to an associate = (111) = =
HE-Z—=FK_F—_Fx There was no movement in impairment loss in respect of
)EI *+E¢X¢fl4ﬂ}gqﬁlﬂﬁﬁﬁ amounts due from associates during the years ended 30
FIBREEEE June 2013 and 2012.

=Nl N ﬁ%)ﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁ R
BRPBAREAEE

The balances with associates are unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.
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“t+  RBEARZERE - 20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP
KEBRAENT &) AND COMPANY (continued)
S EZSEERE 2 ANEE The summarised financial information of the Group’s
C /NI Dol = = i principal associate extracted from their management
R accounts are as follows:
2013 2012
FET TFET
HK$’000 HK$°000
BE®RE Total assets 12,797 14,101
EREECE Total liabilities (581) (3.366)
Wz Revenue 7,015 12,823
FRm i, (EE) Profit/(Loss) for the year 1,155 (435)
R-ZE—=#xA=+H = Particulars of the principal associate as at 30 June 2013 are
BEATZHFBEMT - S
BAEMER/ MR,/ REBER
ERTRARE BRRES S FrsERA AL
Nominal value of Place of incorporation/ Percentage of
218 paid-up registered/ registration ownership interest FTEEH
Name issued share capital and operations  attributable to the Group Principal activities

LEENEmBRAF KA A E9,093, 2447

General Jewellery Paid up capital of
(Shanghai) Company RMB9,093,244
Limited*

* FHIGERRALERR
ZEAMRE R EIER o

EERA - ERINFARR] 2B
BRBINEBZENFREHE
BRBZFREIARAEE R’
BERNREEFEZBRED
ESRRRERMBE QR ZHF
BREERRRBMOITE -

ElAt 36 REEHRER IS
Mainland China Jewellery manufacturing

and wholesaling

* Not audited by BDO or other BDO member firms.

The above table lists the associates of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the share
of associates’ results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the share of net assets of the associates by the
Group. To give details of other associates would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

—
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HE-ZT—=FXA=1THILFE
“+— -RiaEEHERZ 21. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
BE-AEERK ENTITIES - GROUP AND COMPANY
AR
REE AT
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET FHET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
[EIEEEFE Share of net assets 119,264 92,855 - -
R VB 2[R 4% il Deemed capital
EREH A contribution to a
jointly controlled
entity* 12,405 — 12,405 -
BT — B REH Loan to a jointly
EEIER controlled entity 400,900 391,800 = -
532,569 484,655 12,405 -
BT —EEREESIEE 2 ERTY The loan to a jointly controlled entity is unsecured, interest-
mIRR . RE RBARGEEHE free and not repayable within twelve months from the

AT-ERREE-

# SRAGIEHHREHER

WEENBARLEE - HA
KRB FRZ A BRI HRAT
BE (HEE=173) miRTTER
HABRREOH D FE -

reporting date.

The balance represented the deemed capital
contribution to a wholly-owned subsidiary of a jointly
controlled entity, representing the fair value of the
financial guarantee contract provided by the Company
to a bank for the banking facility entered by that
company (note 36).
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“+— -RiEEHERZ 21. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
Ba-Fr~EERF ENTITIES - GROUP AND COMPANY
YNGR - (continued)

rE
Group
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE Uy — R F R & g8 k1A Due from a jointly controlled entity 139 139
BRAFCRTEERA 22 KB The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
HMEFENZAERE © on demand.
RZZE—=F"A=1tH ==& Particulars of the principal jointly controlled entities as at 30
HEZEHEBZFBOT June 2013 are as follows:
MR,/ REBER
BRREE FrisRa L
Place of Percentage of
ERTRAEE incorporation/ ownership interest
2 Nominal value of registration attributable to FTEEH
Name issued share capital and operations the Group Principal activities
Wealth Plus Developments 50,000 BREEI1ETTL RERAHS 50 RERR
Limited LBk British Virgin Islands Investment holding
50,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each
BRERERAA 10,0008 B KR EE AT, EBR &R 50 BRES
Multi-Minerals Limited 10,000 ordinary shares Hong Kong Trading of mineral ores

of HK$1 each

El
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2

“+— -RiEEHERZ 21. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
EE—AEERAE ENTITIES - GROUP AND COMPANY
YNNG -)) (continued)

Bt AREBLRE IS HE 2 A The aggregate amounts relating to the jointly controlled
SEEGLRZEHER 2 AN entities attributable to the Group that have been included in
- the Group'’s consolidated financial statements are as follows:
2013 2012

FET FET

HK$000 HK$°'000

EMBEE Non-current assets 670,122 500,911
mBEE Current assets 15,365 28,189
685,487 529,100
ERBAE Non-current liabilities (532,577) (420,834)
mEEE Current liabilities (21,241) (15,411)
(553,818) (436,245)

BEFE Net assets 131,669 92,855
WA Income 24,705 5,606
Sz Expenses (12,211) (6,958)
FREF(BE) Profit/(Loss) for the year 12,494 (1,352)
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- -AitHEZERE 22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
E—-AEH ASSETS - GROUP
2013 2012
FET FAEIT
HK$"000 HK$'000
ETRARE - RATE Listed equity investments, at fair value:
B Hong Kong 13,559 13,077
H b (K@) Elsewhere (note (a)) 9,707 19,828
23,266 32,905
JEETRAIEE » HAK AR Unlisted equity investments, at cost 11,339 11,339
(FF7E() (note ()
B B A Provision for impairment (7,108) (7,108)
4,231 4,231
K5t Total 27,497 37,136
B ZmE Market value of listed investments 23,266 32,905

—
S
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El

(a) RZE—ZFA=0"
ARl —REEZEM
BAREBERERA
7) ([1EE]) E2Famous Key
Holdings Limited ([Famous
Key ) (—RRAEE R K
HETMERLZZAR
NABHARRAITE
EMREEB L ([REB
T E2EBEHB)LE
& fth % - LAMFamous Key
W fE & 2,239,873
Macarthur Minerals Limited
(TMMS 1) &t = 7 [
H - £ E) 75 EEMinmetals
Mining Corporation Limited
(I Minmetals ) (=R &
P REA L 2 BRRAT]) E]
NE—MEBEERE UM
Minmetalsis #&3, 144,6544%
MMSHE(5 © MinmetalsZ &
il B ) V= VNN )
TES -REK ELHZE
IR R E - RZE
——F=A=+H &#
[MFamous Key&Minmetals
BT AR AR R ST A DA TR
{B3.05/07T (#8%7°24.354
7 Jr) W BE5,384,527 /%
MMSEZfn - BEEEFIBES
BME=1+H c MMSA—
RRMERZBEEFEFR
S EmZBMNAR - E
£ EE AR BN SR #
RERZEEERAI S &
BAE -

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS - GROUP (continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 3 June 2010, Trade Bloom Holdings Limited (“Trade
Bloom”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Famous Key Holdings Limited (“Famous Key”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability and wholly-owned by Dr. Chan Sing
Chuk, Charles, (“Dr. Chan"), executive director of the
Company, to acquire an aggregate of 2,239,873 shares
of Macarthur Minerals Limited (“MMS"”) from Famous
Key. On the same date, Trade Bloom also entered into
another sale and purchase agreement with Minmetals
Mining Corporation Limited (“Minmetals”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, to
acquire 3,144,654 shares of MMS from Minmetals.
Mr. Fang Gang, a director of Minmetals, is also a non-
executive director of the Company. Having satisfied
the terms and conditions of the aforesaid agreements,
the acquisitions of the 5,384,527 shares of MMS were
completed on 30 March 2011 at the market price of
Canadian dollars 3.05 (equivalent to HK$24.354) by the
issue of convertible notes to Famous Key and Minmetals
as detailed in note 35. MMS is an Australian company
listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange in Canada and
its principal activity is exploration and development of
an area with significant prospective iron-ore located in
Western Australia.
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BINZE—ZF BB
KGN M Em AR E
MERFEANKNE TR =
ERAB - BETHKET L
MRAKREERE X2
AN [Z B 2k IR P T SRR
{E/851810,076,000/8 7T (=
T — — 4 : 118,361,0005
JL) °

ZEIE TR E ok
B AN SRR B B E 5 PR - A
AREREL ENERT
BEE - MAFEGTH
AESEEE ARG
BMEEA-HIt EER
A AFETRER ST
B HE_E— =K
TZ——_FXXA=1THILE
FEGIELETRAEERE
FXASIRUE 2 B S ) o

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS - GROUP (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

()

There was a significant decline in the market values of
listed equity investments in overseas (2012: Hong Kong
and overseas) during the year. The directors consider
that such a decline indicates that the listed equity
investments have been impaired and an impairment loss
of HK$10,076,000 (2012: HK$118,361,000) has been
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

The unlisted equity investments are stated at cost less
provision for impairment as they do not have quoted
market prices in an active market and the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant and
the probability of the various estimates is significant.
Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that the
fair value cannot be reliably measured. There was no
movement in provision for impairment in respect of
unlisted equity investments at cost during the years
ended 30 June 2013 and 2012.

El
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23. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES — GROUP

EBEARNA AND COMPANY
RE ¥iN/NE]|
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
it FET FET FET FET
Notes HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
LR Promissory notes (a) 11,449 11,449 5,743 5,743
H R EFEYGRIE  Other long-term
receivables (b) 1,700 2,667 - -
13,149 14,116 5,743 5,743
RE B Provision for
impairment (13,149) (14,116) (5,743) (5,743)

REEWF IR ERE R 2 ZE0
T

The movement on the provision for impairment of long-term
receivables are as follows:

REHE AN
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
llogz3 FET TrET FET TrETT
Notes HK$’000 HK3$'000 HK$'000 HK3$'000

REF 2 R Balance at beginning

of the year 14,116 14,616 5,743 5,743
E O EEE Impairment losses

reversed (b) (967) (500) - —
RERZ AT Balance at end

of the year 13,149 14,116 5,743 5,743
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“+= - REBEWFRIE-X 23. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES - GROUP

% &ZIS/\ a) (&) AND COMPANY (continued)

Kt - Notes:

(a) R-ZZE—=%F,"A=+H (a) Out of the promissory notes of HK$11,449,000 as at
% 2011,449,000% 7t (= 30 June 2013 (2012: HK$11,449,000), HK$7,828,000
= — — 4 : 11,449,000/ (2012: HK$7,828,000) is secured, interest-free and
L) ZEH EEm . Hem repayable by 15 annual instalments commencing on 1
7,828,000/ T (=T — = October 2001. The remaining balance of HK$3,621,000
£ : 7,828,000 ) A (2012: HK$3,621,000) is unsecured, interest-free and
B 2ENAR-_TZT repayable by 13 annual instalments commencing on
—F+A—HEDTAHF 15 March 2003. In view of default in repayment of the
38 - A 23,621,000/ 7T promissory notes, a full impairment was made in prior
(ZZF— =% : 3,621,000/ years.

T) REER - 62 KEH
—EE=F=ZAt+HAR
DT=FHE -ERHEXR
EEALEE BERBEE

FEEHEERE -

(b) RZE—=ZF~A=+ (b) As at 30 June 2013, the balance represents a
B aZ EEBRER T — shareholder’s loan of HK$1,700,000 (2012:
MEXKRERAZ—HE HK$2,667,000) advanced to an investee company
1,700,000 T (=T — = which is interest-free, unsecured and repayable on 30
£ 12,667,000/ 7C) Z IR June 2015. In view of poor financial performance of the
ER ZEHBEAERE investee company, a full impairment was made in prior
EHE R AR —RAF years. An amount of HK$967,000 (2012: HK$500,000)
NA=ZTHER ERE was repaid by the investee company and a reversal of
RIEERNA BRI provision for impairment of long term receivables of
T BERBEFEE HK$967,000 (2012: HK$500,000) is recognised in profit
BE2ERE REBEE_Z or loss for the year ended 30 June 2013.

— =X NA=+HILEE
A EXRERNRIELE
#£967,0008 L (=& —=
£ : 500,000/ L)
E?éiﬁéqﬂﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬁﬁu&m
TE R (B 5 %2 2196 7,000/
7t (ZZ — — 4 : 500,000
BIL) o

El
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“+m-EFE-K&EE 24. INVENTORIES — GROUP
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$000 HK3$'000
R4 Raw materials 138,058 128,044
F 2K Work in progress 5,050 8,752
UK Gh Finished goods 128,664 120,556
271,772 257,352

REZE2-_ZE—=FHA=THIt
FEA - BB 17 E3,804,000/%8
T ERE TERMEEB L -

“t+HE-BEZRWAIE- 25.

Write back of inventories of HK$3,804,000 during the year
ended 30 June 2013 was due to increased in selling prices

of certain products.

TRADE RECEIVABLES — GROUP

PN 3
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$°000
H 5 EWGRIR Trade receivables 133,023 136,712
B FEUGRIB RV E B Less: provision for impairment of receivables (27,825) (27,702)
B S MEWGIAE—R%  Trade receivables — net 105,198 109,010
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“+IH - BSEWMKE- 25. TRADE RECEIVABLES — GROUP (continued)

K&EE =)

A — RIRR T B RE E
EEYER  ERERRGEF
BEBTES 2 EEETR - 54
EEMERBEEE - ARER
TF S o (208 PO ST A BB 1
n4] - M ER SR ERERE
HETE -

REER - RIHERZ A2
SR BIRE S RIGRIAZ IRk D

The Group normally grants credit terms to its customers
according to industry practice together with consideration
of their creditability, repayment history and years of
establishment. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are regularly
reviewed by senior management.

An ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of provision, as
at the reporting date, based on the date of recognition of

WOT : the sale, is as follows:
2013 2012
FET FAEIT
HK$"000 HK$’000
0—30H 0 - 30 days 30,808 51,172
31—60H 31 - 60 days 24,194 29,340
61—90H 61— 90 days 23,400 18,345
90H A Over 90 days 26,796 10,153
105,198 109,010

BRBTFE483MPAIREE SN - A
AEBAZHEP D BNERS
i REZEEGIRM S - W&
SHEERR -

Saved as disclosed in note 48.3, there is no concentration
of credit risk with respect to trade receivables, as the Group
has a large number of customers which are internationally
dispersed.

—
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“_t+hR B SEWRIE- 25. TRADE RECEIVABLES — GROUP (continued)
KEB #)

AEENEERZEF KA
R B MR R AR 2Rk D

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at
the reporting date, based on due date and net of provision,

Hl

G N is as follows:
2013 2012
FE T FHET
HK$’000 HK$°000
REE R AR RE Neither past due nor impaired 67,183 66,389
#HI0—30H 0 - 30 days past due 11,131 19,778
#HA31—60H - 60 days past due 10,763 9,463
#HAI61—90H 61 — 90 days past due 6,327 5,126
#HA91—180H 91 - 180 days past due 8,222 7,693
#Hi181—360H 181 - 360 days past due 884 291
#HA360H A £ Over 360 days past due 688 270
105,198 109,010

BB IR (E < B 2 UG IE
B3R % 3 AT AR R AL 2 B P
B -

B HEEREL B S EREIE
HEZXEFER  ZERFEA
SEZEERSERL - BEBRA
KE - BEEERR  %SEHKE
EELRERE BAEEEXR
WEEAEE) - BERIEGRIE
A2 EUR[E o A5 E N & i HR
M ERE 2 B 2 R IER
FAATHE 1R G fE A 3R M s H fh {5 A
AR -

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers that
had a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group did not hold any collateral as security or other credit
enhancements in respect of trade receivables that are past
due but not impaired.



Annual Report 2013 4

Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R 5 i+

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE_Z—=F A=1HILFE

“_t+HR -BESEWHIE- 25. TRADE RECEIVABLES — GROUP (continued)
rEE @

B 5 R R IE 2 R B 5 1R {5 A Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are

HERECEE - BRIFARKERREXK recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is

A B 2 e W3 - LB satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which

T REEEERE S EWIE case the impairment loss is written off against trade

BEME - 85 RICIERER receivables directly. The movement in the provision for
B2 E2EMT impairment of trade receivables is as follows:

2013 2012

FET TFET

HK$'000 HK$°000

RET] 2 HEE Balance at beginning of the year 27,702 27,000

BRI EE R Impairment losses recognised 123 756

AR Amount written off = (54)

RERZ R Balance at end of the year 27,825 27,702

REZBER  AREZ2BHEK
IR M Bl e BB B A B E R
18 - {ERRIE 2 & 5 fE W IR R
BRIBIAN R EFER

ARREBEERR REER - B
HIR—F Rl EmE 5 R UIR
A HEERERE S BT /EEAN
Z82  ARREREHRERER
28 -

At each reporting date, the Group's trade receivables were
individually and collectively determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in default or delinquency in payments.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair values of
trade receivables which are expected to be recovered within
one year are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because these balances have short maturity periods
on their inception at the reporting date.

3
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R A FERANRE 26

2 ERBE - &
B R A

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS - GROUP
AND COMPANY

AEE ARF
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

BB _EMRRANFE S ¢ Listed equity securities
A in Hong Kong,

at market value 12,072 11,548 - -
AR =R 2 F& Bl Redemption option of
ISR convertible notes
(ME=+5) (note 35) 7 148 7 148
12,079 11,696 7 148

EREAES A HETES2E
RERTRERMISMSEAE
BE -

ARFHERABGZZ EBEEN

RARSRERANERL TS —

BAZ2INBEEESEH M
aN

A o

S|

RAFEFABRZEMEER
FEZHTABERA ML
BN (FX) -

Fair value of the listed equity securities have been
determined by reference to their quoted bid prices at the
reporting date in an active market.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within the section on operating activities as part
of changes in working capital in the consolidated statement
of cash flows.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in other operating income/
(expenses) in profit or loss.
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“t+E - TEERIAE-&F 27.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

55 INSTRUMENTS - GROUP
2013 2012
&E afE BE =N
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
FET FET FAET FEIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REE IS H* Forward currency contracts* 38 - - 84

* BHIEEAKNAREE 2
HAIR—F(ZF—=F: 2

* The forward currency contracts are denominated in British
Pounds with maturity less than one year (2012: less than one

R—F) o year).
N\ BEe RS S~ 28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -
KEBR AL GROUP AND COMPANY
HeRRESEHBIFEUTEHS : Cash and cash equivalents include the following
components:

A EE NG

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
& RIRTTEEER Cash and bank balances 37,911 85,236 33 117

PITH S RBE B RITIEHAIE
BEUZE RIS, -

ARREZRR  RITHEHRQ
FEEERHSBYEEAE
2 ARERERRAZIHS -

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.

The directors of the Company considered that the fair values
of the cash at banks are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because of the short maturity period on
their inception.

Ny
gl
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—

—HI\N -BHERBREEEE - 28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -
Zli % Zi ZIK /A EJ GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)
(&)
RZEBE—=F-A=+H =K As at 30 June 2013, the Group had cash and bank
EREEUARE (TARE]D A balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounting
BUMNBRESRBITESBED to approximately HK$6,638,000 (2012: HK$12,038,000),
6,638,000 7L (=T — — 4 : which were deposits with banks in Mainland China or held
12,038,000/ ) * EEFAAF in hand. RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Under the
Bl 2 RITHEF LHF - AR Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
TR AR EIR - REBEFBINES and Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment
FIEA) I 4508 - S8 RS EEIE of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
HE  ANEERFEBERERRE exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that are
HINEE ZEFE 2 SRITHEFTHNE S 75 © authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
“t+h -ESEMFKIE-ZA&  29. TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP
==
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Z S e RIE Trade payables 138,132 133,166

B 5N RN S B 1RK A e
7~ [R] 4 8 TR T 155 7E O 4R SR T R
Rl - N@EER  AEEEFREN
RERBERAH 2 REDITN

The credit terms of trade payables vary according to the
terms agreed with different suppliers. The ageing analysis of
trade payables of the Group as at the reporting date, based
on the invoice dates, is as follows:

™
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$°000
0—30H 0 — 30 days 49,041 88,451
31—60H 31 - 60 days 25,636 21,171
61—90H 61 — 90 days 24,932 11,839
90H LA Over 90 days 38,523 11,705
138,132 133,166

BRNFEBEHEE -
- BEERA BHEMNKIEDN
FRHTREEATERES -

Trade payables are short term in nature and hence, the
directors consider the carrying amount of trade payables are
considered to approximate to their fair values.
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=+ RITEF—KEE 30. BANK LOANS - GROUP
RITEREARBEZOMAT : The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans is as
follows:
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
mEBE Current liabilities
AR—FNEERZ Portion of loans from banks due for repayment
RITERHBD within one year
—BHER — Guaranteed 53,681 30,441
—EHEAREER — Secured and guaranteed 90,000 292,500
143,681 322,941
BN —F1&(EEWEA Portion of loans from banks due for repayment
RESCERIEX 2 after one year which contain a repayment on
RITERHH demand clause
—BER — Guaranteed = 1,231
—FERREER — Secured and guaranteed 192,500 -
336,181 324,172
RZZE—=F"A=1H " R17T At 30 June 2013, the bank loans were scheduled to
EREHEZNT repayment as follows:
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
fﬁﬁg%’\ : Bank loans:
AR—FENEE Repayable within one year 143,681 322,941
HARE_FEE Repayable in the second year 192,500 1,231
336,181 324,172
BB B RERE R M ETH The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment
ZEHEIE R B 8 B et R AR dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect
ERBREGEXZHE - of any repayment on demand clause.

El



Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R S Mz

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE-T—=F A=1+HILFE

El

=+ SRITER-—XEE »

RZE—=FR_F——F <A
=+H  NEBZRITERB
TR, HER

@ AEEBEFEEHEBEAR
543,500,000/ 7T (= &
— — F : 453,500,000/8
TT) B E W) 5 80 TE R
=0 (B EE+1)

b AEEEAEBELDHA
19,385,000 7t (=&
— Z 4 :20,141,000/8
JT) VR E £ A S Y
EEHE (METR)

(© AREBEREBEDN B
1,449,000 (= —=
£ : 1,485,000/ 7T) B9+
Ho {50 FARE YA B #R ES (FfY
N

d) ARBEHZRRER:

@ AAFREZEMBAT
ZBEBG R

) BHEFEREIKRER
7 BT IR [ BT 2 3
& °

REBAB T EZRITER
323,731,000 (Z &2 — =4 :
311,961,000/ 7T ) 2 JF E) & Fi| =
B167%%229% (T — —4F:
1.45%%2.90% ) - AREEIRTT
B 5£12,450,0008 T (ZF— =
4 :12,211,00058 7T) 2 2B E 7
RET%ES54% (ZT— —4F :
7.56%%8.14%) °

30.

BANK LOANS - GROUP (continued)

At 30 June 2013 and 2012, the Group’s banking facilities
were secured/guaranteed by the followings:

(a) legal charges over the Group’s investment
property with carrying values of approximately
HK$543,500,000 (2012: HK$453,500,000) (note
17),

(b) legal charges over the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings with carrying values of approximately
HK$19,385,000 (2012: HK$20,141,000) (note 15);

(@) legal charges over the Group's land use rights with
carrying values of approximately HK$1,449,000
(2012: HK$1,485,000) (note 16);

(d) corporate guarantees executed by the Company;

(e) ordinary shares of an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company; and

(f) guarantees from the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region, under the Special
Loan Guarantee.

The bank loans of the Group denominated in HK$ of
HK$323,731,000 (2012: HK$311,961,000) have floating
interest rates ranging from 1.67% to 2.9% (2012: 1.45% to
2.90%) per annum. The RMB bank loans of HK$12,450,000
(2012: HK$12,211,000) have floating interest rates ranging
from 7% to 8.54% (2012: 7.56% to 8.14%) per annum.
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=+— MEHEHERE-K 31. OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE

=E LEASE - GROUP
AREBAHE FEKRESERHEER The Group leases a motor vehicle for its normal operating
H-RZZE—=FA=1+H" business. As at 30 June 2013, the total future minimum
HERBEHENARFKERER lease payments under finance leases and their present values
RERHBENAT : were as follows:
2013 2012

=K =K =K =K
HE HEM HEK MHE X
BE Bz HRE #agE

Present Present

value value
of the Total of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments  payments payments payments

FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000

—FRX Within one year 113 120 = =

—FREMFA After one year but

within two years 104 106 — =
217 226 — -
T ARRFE Less: Total future interest
EEE G expenses = 9) = =
HEARRE Present value of lease
obligations 217 217 - -

3
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2 EBHRERAK

1§ — A R A

32.

DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES —
GROUP AND COMPANY

=)
REE AN
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
nEaE Current liabilities

FEfTRAE A RIFIE  Due to related companies

(MI5E@)) (note (a)) 2,321 = = =

FREBERE Non-current liabilities

FEfFRAE A RIFXIE  Due to related companies

(FfF3E(b)) (note (b)) 83,903 27,961 53,346 =
iz - Notes:

(a) &1~ B8 A B 5K 38439,000 (a) An amount due to a related company of HK$439,000
BT AEER . £ RN is unsecured, interest-free and due for repayment on 21
—E—pOEPH -+ —H April 2014. Another amount due to a related company
DHAEE - B — B EN of HK$1,882,000 is unsecured, interest-free and due for
3&# N B FXIE1,882,00078 TT repayment on 26 May 2014.

REEHR  EERNR-E
—mWFERA=-+/BEH
BE -

(b) BREAENEEDRZRIERN (b) The carrying amount of the amount due to a related
B T 4 %830,557,000/% 7T company of HK$30,557,000 is unsecured, interest-free
ABEEE. . AEBERERR-F and due for repayment on 31 May 2015. Its carrying
—FHERHA=+—H%H amount was calculated using a market interest rate of
BB HEmESBEHUSN 6.15% per annum.

BRI REGE6.15%H °
BEEMNBEEATRIEDN The carrying amount of the amount due to a related
BE [ & %853,346,000/% 7T company of HK$53,346,000 is unsecured, interest-free
BERE . GBRR-E and due for repayment on 30 September 2014 which
—mELA=F+HEEE arise from the debt extinguishment as further detailed
2 HIAERFE=1+TARRK in note 35. Its carrying amount was calculated using a
i — e EIESEm market interest rate of 7.17% per annum.
IR HERES R AT
B EGETNT%aTE °
ARARBITESERIEL N ABZE Dr. Chan, an executive director of the Company, is also a
B ARINERERA A o beneficial owner of these related companies.
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REBZEZZE—=F"A=+HIE
FEA - ERNZEIZERATFIE
) B [ < 58 496,331 ooo,%m%
BEERARRR o L& FEE
TEERSBRAEARRLE
TR o

AR ERR - RERBER
%Z% BESFRAR+—_@EAAE

=+m - 2RERRGNE 34
H-AEERAL

DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY - GROUP

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the carrying amount
of the amount due to ultimate holding company of
approximately HK$6,331,000 was waived by the ultimate
holding company. The said amount was recognised as a
capital contribution from shareholder in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and not
repayable within the next twelve months from the reporting
date.

LOAN FROM A CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER - GROUP AND

&l COMPANY
REE PN
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
REEE Current liabilities
2 AR AR R AR it Loan from a controlling
EON=E=N shareholder 10,000 = 10,000 =
e =K Non-current liabilities
PEAR AR SR AR 4 Loan from a controlling
R E shareholder 95,022 105,000 90,000 105,000
RZE—=FA=+H & As at 30 June 2013, a loan of HK$100,000,000 is advanced
:g.,

3X100,000,000/% T /A fR 16 £ &
- HEAEER EEF15%
WAEAHEFNERR =T —F
FRNA=ZT+HEHEE
£ %810,000,000/%8 JT 78 & & 3k
BERE B —2ERARE
4,000,0007T, (#8 % 745,022,000
EIT) INERRE LR HAE
TH - 2B RR T —ME+A
—+HBRHEE

from Dr. Chan and is unsecured, interest-bearing at 1.5%
per annum and due for repayment on 30 June 2015 except
for an amount of HK$10,000,000 which is repayable on
demand. Another loan of RMB4,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$5,022,000) is also advanced from Dr. Chan and is
unsecured, interest-free and due for repayment on 25
October 2014.

—
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BRI1S%MFERFER KRB
AREEARF AR T ZEAR
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B
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=45 ARRER-AE

CEENN

AN R =+ FrEEa c AR
ABEBARN T ——F=H=+
B % Bl mFamous Key ([ AT #2 f&
Z4£A ]) EMinmetals ([ 7] # f%
ZEB) BITASBEOEEFR
58,170,000/ Jt. 581,667,000/
TT 2 A] #A AR AR AE S W EEMMS
IR tn 2 KB - AR EBAR T
MR EBBI AT R B EGRE
BRI (E0.428 31T » W
REAT AR MFEERE B2
/HH °

HAARBE-—ZE— %A
=T BIEFERBITZAIBRRE
BiME @ REFBABENAIR
%2245 2 5 B B AR {eT B P9 DA BF
fR0.42B T A R BB A &5
225 (MIEED) B AR QA
LAY o RETTETA AR R
% B Hif% R B B gisfE & % A
ATAI IR B R A+ AN A B ATIRAE
ERIRBREBEEEASERE
100%H) {E 1% BE B FT B AT AR 2
1% o

34.

35.

LOAN FROM A CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER - GROUP AND
COMPANY (continued)

As at 30 June 2012, the loan was advanced from Dr. Chan
and was unsecured, interest-bearing at 1.5% per annum
and not repayable within the next twelve months from the
reporting date.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES — GROUP AND
COMPANY

As detailed in note 22, the consideration in relation to
the acquisition of the shares of MMS was satisfied by the
issuance of convertible notes to Famous Key (“Convertible
Note A”) and Minmetals (“Convertible Note B”) of principal
amount equivalent to approximately HK$58,170,000 and
HK$81,667,000 respectively on 30 March 2011 by the
Company. The Convertible Note A and Convertible Note B
are issued at a zero coupon rate and at a conversion price
of HK$0.42 per conversion share which will be mature two
years from the date of the issue.

In respect of all the convertible notes issued during the
year ended 30 June 2011, the noteholders had the right to
convert, the whole but not in part, of the principal amount
of the convertible notes into the ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.42 each at any time prior to the maturity
date of the convertible notes. At any time after the date of
the issue of all the convertible notes and before the fifth
business days before the date of maturity, the Company
may redeem all of the convertible notes at a price being
equal to 100% of the face value of the full principal amount
of the convertible notes.
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T /NCINE )

B 1T Al A IR B HEBAT 0 A&
2 9 Bl mMinmetals & & 37
R %2 120,000,000/ T &
61,667,000/ LI ® © {EAR A #
BREEBZREERSRE -
ER—_E——F=A=+H%
TR ERER  EERA K
BE3,144,654MMSHE 1D B BX
TR S REER - Bty - g
MMSHE D AR 5 LA BE 1 T AT 4R A 22
BAN IR £ K E81,667,0007% T
Eff -

RZEBE——F=A=+H" &K
‘A &) [[Famous Key?i?ﬁ /NSRRI
/350,518,000 70« T E 2 1]
REIRA - 1ERUHE2,239,873%
MMSHE (R 2 (B o AT R IRA
RZE—F=A=1+HZRAF
BT B E X ER AR 1TH
1T{H1E -

BEBINR=Z——F=A=+
HZzA i@)ﬁEﬁ!ﬂ%&ﬁﬁéFﬁfﬁé‘E
//luiﬁﬁiﬁﬁxf o TEH D2

NFETS B MEET EM&ZE%MMS%
2z BEARF 4 AR A ZTH
EBREAGTE - RIEBMMSH
2B AHRERZEBAZ AT EH
St TA (AZEFHE AR
RERAE R SKRE 2 EREE
) 2 AT ERZ ZEF ARRE
RERIIVER R IRE = o

ﬂ?ﬁﬂ&ﬂ??ﬁA{/TEI,\D /_\/\:F
EREBE—T——F<A=+H
tFEEMNESHER R FEEIRE
1,342,000/ 7T - EREZE =
——FXNA=THIFEEER
REER

CONVERTIBLE NOTES — GROUP AND
COMPANY (continued)

Prior to the issue of the Convertible Note B, the Group
had deposited a sum of HK$20,000,000 and a sum of
HK$61,667,000 to Minmetals and an independent lawyer
respectively which served as the intended redemption
of the Convertible Note B. Despite of the issuance of
the Convertible Note B on 30 March 2011, the directors
considered that, in substance, the acquisition of 3,144,654
shares of MMS was indeed settled by cash consideration.
Therefore, the acquisition of shares of MMS was deemed to
be satisfied by the issuance of the Convertible Note A and
cash consideration of HK$81,667,000.

On 30 March 2011, the Company issued a zero coupon
Convertible Note A with fair value of HK$50,518,000 to
Famous Key as the consideration of the acquisition of
2,239,873 shares of MMS. The fair value of the Convertible
Note A as at 30 March 2011 was valued by an independent
professional valuer, LCH.

The fair value of the liability component as at 30 March
2011 was calculated using discounted cash flow method
by LCH. The fair value of the derivative component was
calculated using Binomial Option Pricing Model on the
acquisition date of the shares of MMS and as at year end
date by LCH. As at the acquisition date of shares of MMS,
the difference between the fair value of the Convertible
Note A and the fair value of the combined instrument,
representing conversion option for the holder to convert
the Convertible Note A into equity, was included in
shareholders’ equity as convertible note equity reserve.

The change in the fair value of the derivative component of
the Convertible Note A during the year ended 30 June 2012
resulted in a fair value loss of HK$1,342,000 which was
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2012.

&



Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R S Mz

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE-T—=F A=1+HILFE

=45 ARBRER-FE

35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES — GROUP AND

X ZIK/\ a) (&) COMPANY (continued)
AR R ?J%AZ PTERHD - BE The carrying values of the derivative component, liability
7o KR E D ZEEETEZZDT : component and equity component of the Convertible Note
A are as follow:
REBERARA T
Group and Company
L{EEe = =N B et
Redemption Liability Equity
option component component Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R_F——%F Net carrying amounts
+tA—B> at 1 July 2011
RREHE 1,361 (50,802) (2,310) (51,751)
FEERA SR Imputed interest expenses = (4,087) = (4,087)
N EEE) Fair value change (1,342) = = (1,342)
R=F——F Net carrying amounts
ARB=THR at 30 June 2012
—E--F and 1 July 2012
tA—Hz
IRMEFE 19 (54,889) (2,310) (57,180)
FEERF B X Imputed interest expenses - (3,281) = (3,281)
N EEE) Fair value change (19) = = (19)
FAEI HAR 81T Transferred to retained
REE i 7 profits upon expiration = = 2,310 2,310
e E R Exchange for new loan = 52,435 = 52,435
EEREEM Deemed capital contribution
BIEHE arising from debt
extinguishment - 5,735 - 5,735
RZE—=F Net carrying amounts
RNA=t+tHZ at 30 June 2013
IRENEE - - - -

|
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‘\@ii—?—:i/‘—\ﬁ =+
HIEFER EBEMNESRAZL
3,281,000/%71: (_ T ——F:
4,087,000/ 1) B A& FE B 25 A 1
R WE B RBREBEACE
& 50D 15 FI8.05% ) B % 4 FI| R
RRAEBERFIEESE -

AR 35 AT #2 A% R IRARY 3R - AT R
BREBAN S REELAS (B
#)58,170,000 L) R —ZF —=
FZA=1THIH KEBEAET
iﬁ o ABIHAH » Famous Key[d]

BT ERNEREEH B &R
—HHIH KB E AT R R RAR
458,170,000 7c - R=ZZE—=
F=HA=+1+H ' Famous KeyZA %
AJ AR EIRAR AR AE o

MRZE—=F=A=THKIHE
A #2 i% B 4% A8 458,170,000
7T RIAAE A 1B /352,435,000
TR L BEESNERSE
I %55,735,0007% T » _E it & 58
FE BB (8 & B (R /EFamous
KeyH! & Bz 32 + MFamous Key&
IR R R 15 A - Al
BEBEAMTETALHNAFE
E51819,0008 T H B E Bz P i

=7
7o

35.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES — GROUP AND
COMPANY (continued)

Imputed interest expenses of approximately HK$3,281,000
(2012: HK$4,087,000) had been recognised in profit or
loss for the year ended 30 June 2013 and are calculated
using the effective interest method by applying the effective
interest rate of 8.05% per annum to the liability component
of the Convertible Note A.

Pursuant to the terms of Convertible Note A, the
outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Note A,
which amounting to approximately HK$58,170,000 would
be due and payable by the Group on the maturity date
falling on 30 March 2013. On the maturity date, Famous
Key agreed not to demand the repayment of the principal
amount of the Convertible Note A of HK$58,170,000 for
another 18 months commencing immediately after the
maturity date. The conversion option of the Convertible
Note A was waived by Famous Key on 30 March 2013.

Gain on the debt extinguishment of HK$5,735,000 was
resulted from derecognition of the principal amount of
convertible note of HK$58,170,000 and exchange of a
new straight debt of a fair value of HK$52,435,000 on 30
March 2013. The gain on debt extinguishment of the said
amount was then treated as a deemed capital contribution
from Famous Key, which is ultimately held by Dr. Chan, the
controlling shareholder. The fair value loss of the derivative
component of the Convertible Note A of HK$19,000 was
then recognised in profit or loss.

&
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35.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES — GROUP AND
COMPANY (continued)

On 20 November 2009, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (“S & P Agreement”) with
Benefit Well Investments Limited (“Benefit Well”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability and indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Chan,
to acquire 100% of the issued share capital of Big Bonus
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively “Big Bonus Group”),
which are principally engaged in mining and exploration
of mineral reserves in the Mainland China, and the
shareholder’s loan from Benefit Well. Pursuant to the S &
P Agreement and the supplemental agreement dated 30
November 2009, the total consideration for the aforesaid
acquisition is HK$738,000,000 which is to be satisfied
by cash consideration of HK$113,000,000, issuance of
convertible note with principal amount of HK$325,000,000
("Convertible Note C”) and issuance of a total of
1,764,705,880 consideration shares with principal amount
of HK$300,000,000. On 30 November 2009, the Company
entered a supplemental agreement (“Supplemental
Agreement”) with Benefit Well to amend and clarify certain
terms and conditions, including issuing the Convertible Note
C to Tamar Investments instead of Benefit Well, as detailed
in the Supplemental Agreement.
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35.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES — GROUP AND
COMPANY (continued)

The Convertible Note C was issued at interest rate of 1.5%
per annum, payable in arrears on 30 June in each year,
at a conversion price of HK$0.19 per conversion share
(“Conversion Shares”) which will be mature 3 years from
the date of the issue. At any time after the date of the issue
of the Convertible Note C and before the fifth business day
before the date of maturity, the Company may redeem all
or part of the Convertible Note C at a price being equal to
100% of the face value of the part of the principal amount
of the Convertible Note C proposed to be redeemed
together with interest accrued thereon up to and excluding
the date of redemption. If and to the extent that there shall
be any outstanding principal amount of the Convertible
Note C at the date of maturity, the Convertible Note C is
deemed to be automatically converted into the Conversion
Shares.

On 12 October 2011, the Company issued the Convertible
Note C with fair value of HK$127,619,000 to Tamar
Investments as part of the consideration of the acquisition
of Big Bonus Group. The fair value of Convertible Note
C as at 12 October 2011 was valued by an independent
professional valuer, BMI Appraisals Limited (“BMI").

The fair value of the liability component of the Convertible
Note C as at 12 October 2011 was calculated using
discounted cash flow method by BMI. The fair value of the
derivative component was calculated using Binomial Option
Pricing Model on the acquisition date of Big Bonus Group
and as at reporting date by BMI. The difference between the
fair value of the Convertible Note C and the fair value of the
liability component, represented the conversion option for
the holder to convert Convertible Note C into equity, was
included in shareholders’ equity as convertible note equity
reserve.



Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R S Mz

For the year ended 30 June 2013

=1

2T

=FRA=THIEFE

El

=+5 AIERER-XE&E 35.
& /NCINE )

5

AMERBRCZITERD - BE
B Mz By < BREEWT

CONVERTIBLE NOTES — GROUP AND

COMPANY (continued)

The carrying values of the derivative component, liability
component and equity component of the Convertible Note

C are as follow:

AEBRAA T
Group and Company
HEEEERE BEHBD RIS
Redemption Liability Equity e
option component component Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Net carrying amounts on
FREDFE initial recognition 1,644 (13,2290 (116,034)  (127,619)
e 5 M) B 2 Imputed interest expenses = (465) = (465)
NEEEE Fair value change (1,515) — - (1,515)
R-E——F Net carrying amounts
ANA=ZTHER at 30 June 2012
—E-CF and 1 July 2012
tA—Hz
IREFE 129 (13,694)  (116,034)  (129,599)
fE 55 7 B X2 Imputed interest expenses = (521) = (521)
REZEK Repayment during the year - 4,341 - 4,341
N EEE) Fair value change (122) = = (122)
R-ZE—=% Net carrying amounts
RA=tHZ at 30 June 2013
AREFE 7 (9.874)  (116,034)  (125,901)
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35.

36.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES — GROUP AND
COMPANY (continued)

The fair value of Convertible Note C was calculated using
Binomial Option Pricing Model with major inputs as follows:

12 October 2011

Share price HK$0.104
Expected additional yield spread 5%
Expected volatility 77.76%
Expected life 3 years
Risk-free rate 0.44%
Expected dividend yield 2.66%

The above transaction constituted a very substantial
acquisition and connected transaction under the Listing
Rules. More details were disclosed in the Company’s
circular dated 25 January 2010 and in various Company’s
announcement made on 11 February 2010, 30 April 2010,
19 November 2010, 19 May 2011 and 12 October 2011.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES -

EBRARE GROUP AND COMPANY
2013 2012
FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$'000
nEEE Current liabilities

—HBERAEE — Financial guarantee liabilities 2,481 =

ERBEE Non-current liabilities
—KERAEE — Financial guarantee liabilities 8,270 =
10,751 -

El
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36.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES -
GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

On 8 November 2012, the Company, entered into an
agreement in favour of a bank in relation to the provision
of a financial guarantee contract of a banking facility in
a principal amount of RMB470,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$582,800,000) entered by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of a jointly controlled entity. The
guarantee period lasts for a total of five years from the
date of grant of the bank loan. This transaction constituted
a disclosure and major transaction of the Company and
further details was disclosed in the announcement dated 8
November 2012.

In relation to the aforesaid financial guarantee granted
to a bank over the repayment of a loan by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of a jointly controlled entity, the
fair value of the financial guarantee contract at the
reporting date approximately RMB9,879,000 (equivalent
to HK$12,405,000), representing a deemed capital
contribution to a jointly controlled entity (note 21), has been
adjusted to the carrying amount of the interests in jointly
controlled entities and simultaneously, the said amount
was recognised as financial guarantee liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Subsequent
to the grant date of the bank loan, the financial guarantee
liabilities were amortised to income over the bank loan
guarantee period.
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S+t BEHRIEEE 37. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) -
(B -FEER GROUP AND COMPANY
Y /NS
LR ARREQHORRAY T8 The following are major deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
SEIERIE CEE) /Al - UER recognised at the reporting date and the movements during
AEE R B ERE S B the current and prior years:
nE - BER
FE - THERER
RERNATEAR
Fair value
adjustment
on property,
plant and
equipment, MIEBERE EUFERE
land use Accelerated Provision
REE rights and tax for @5t
Group mining right  depreciation receivables Total
FET FAT FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZE——%FtH—H Balanceat 1 July 2011
Z gk - 16 (9,326) (9,310)
e 1l=yNg Acquisition of
(PisFad.1) subsidiaries (note 44.1) 237,784 - - 237,784
B 5 R Exchange realignment 743 = = 743
WRERER (Credited)/Charged to profit or
(%) /Hk loss for the year (96) (260) 3,477 3,121
R=Z—Z%,xA=1H Balance at 30 June 2012
—ZFtA—H and1July2012
LHEER 238,431 (244) (5,849) 232,338
PEH AR Exchange realignment 6,752 - - 6,752
RZFERRES Credited to profit or
loss for the year (182) (16) - (198)
M=Z—=%;A=1H Balance at 30 June 2013
o =53 245,001 (260) (5.:849) 238,892

—
O
=
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=S+t BEEHEEE 37. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) —
(ﬁ{ﬁ) - % ))-i GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)
V. /NINE))
TH & mES A EE I yEE The following amounts, determined after appropriate
TR A B S R 3 R offsetting, are shown in the consolidated statement of
BE financial position:
REE
Group
2013 2012
FE T FHT
HK$’000 HK$°000
RIERIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 245,001 238,431
BT IR E = Deferred tax assets (6,109) (6,093)
238,892 232,338
NEEH B FIEA97,148,000% The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$97,148,000
T (ZZ — =4 : 85,379,000/ (2012: HK$85,379,000) that are available for offsetting
TT) c RERIR A S B against future taxable profits of the companies which
Rita Y N A R FER R R o 42 incurred the losses. Deferred tax assets have not been
A 2% % ok B B 4B R A AT A2 recognised in respect of these losses as it is not probable

that future taxable profits will be available against which
these unused tax losses can be utilised. Unused tax losses
of HK$44,677,000 (2012: HK$26,297,000) will expire in
various dates up to and including 2018. Other unused tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

A8 R R FE SR B A1) - E b I
A ZERIBRRAELEHIBE
EE ° AR B A 7 1844,677,0007%8 7T

—F— — 4 : 26,297,000 7T)
R =T —N\F (BEZF) 2T
B B ERRIER - EAbRB)AFIER
IR AR AL -

AT Company
R-ZFE—=FA=+H A1 As at 30 June 2013, the Company did not have any
TN AT B AR B RIS IS significant unprovided deferred tax liabilities (2012: Nil).

BECE—ZF &) -
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=+ BRA

BERITEBRARANEE AR

38. SHARE CAPITAL

The movements in the issued ordinary share capital during

;0 F : the year are as follows:
2013 2012
LERYE LERYE
Number Number
Bzt of ordinary FET of ordinary FAET
Notes shares HK$'000 shares HK$°000
HERA Authorised:
SREE0ET Ordinary shares
ZEBR of HK$0.01 each 35,000,000,000 350,000 35,000,000,000 350,000
BRTRMRRA Issued and
fully paid:
BtA—H At 1 July 5,110,656,270 51,107  3,128,303,340 31,283
HURERFT B A Bk Shares issued upon
BTl acquisition of
(FizE44.1) subsidiaries
(note 44.1) (@) - - 1,764,705,880 17,647

ARG Subscription of shares  (b) - - 217,647,050 2,177

®iB=+H At 30 June 5,110,656,270 51,107 5,110,656,270 51,107

Hiaz - Notes:

(a) RZFE——F+ A += (a) On 12 October 2011, the issued share capital was
H EETRAERS increased by the issue of 1,764,705,880 ordinary
P%0.1047% 7T i) 1B 1% B 1T shares of HK$0.01 each at the price of HK$0.104 per
1,764,705,880/% & i&% share. The issuance of new shares is used as part of the
{B0.0178 Jr /9 3 78 A% 1 12 consideration for acquisition 100% equity interest in Big
e BITEF M T B EWK Bonus Group as detailed in note 44.1.

#%Big Bonust E100% %
AEZMNHBHRE 515
BRI EE44.1 ©
(b) N—_ZETEENF+ — A (b) On 23 November 2009, a subscription agreement was

—+=8B AR AHE—
BBILIE=HE N
REHE REURE
FR0.17B T RE Lt
217,647,0500% 3 & @ A% o
FEBERNRBELER =
T——F+A+=-HB%&
EEHaE AT HEE
K 1ESERK - FEIE B M 3
=tF-

entered between the Company and an independent
third party which agreed to subscribe for an aggregate
of 217,647,050 new ordinary shares at a subscription
price of HK$0.17 each. The subscription of the new
ordinary shares was completed on 12 October 2011
upon the satisfaction of the purchases S & P Agreement
and Supplemental Agreement as detailed in note 35.



Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R S Mz

For the year ended 30 June 2013

=1

E-F-=£~A=HALSE

H

=t FEE-FEERE

N
REME

RERRAFFEASEFEER
EREPH  eRAEGEERE
RED -

HAibREE AR B AR Z BN
e m s 2 R EER I E I
B E BN E M AR R
RS RmEGE c EERARE
ZER

39.

RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Other reserve represents the difference between the
consideration paid for the additional interest in the
subsidiaries and the non-controlling interest’s share of the
assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated statement
of financial position at the dates of the acquisitions of the
non-controlling interests.
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=+h - #E-FTEBRK 39. RESERVES - GROUP AND

YNNG -)) COMPANY (continued)
AN/ Company
AR TEREE
RiaER  ARESR fifs  EHEE LERE
Share fife Non-  Convertible Capital ~ REEA
premium  Warrant distributable note equity contribution  Retained &t
account  reserve  reserve reserve reserve profits Total
&7 FET &1 FET &7 FET &7
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
RZZE——FtA-B  Baanceat 1 July 2011
L 190,743 53,008 273,606 2310 - 216,293 735,960
ARG (HFE=1 () Shares subscription (note 38(b) 34,823 - - - - - 34823
WEEME AR (Fizkad.1)  Acquisiion of subsidiaries
(note 44.1) 165,882 - - - - - 165,882
EUAREE Issue of convertible note
(=13 (note 35) - - - 116034 - - 116034
DA R AR 2 S Recognition of share-based
LR compensation - 35,339 - - = - 35339
HEEAIRS Transactions with owners 200,705 35,339 - 116034 - - 35078
TEEFER Net loss for the year - - - - - (13175 (136,179)
TEERENGERE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - (136,175)  (136,175)
RIEEHAREEESE  Amount transferred to retained
MECRZRANEE  profits asa result of expiration
of unlisted warrants - (88,347) - - - 88,347 -
RZ——ERAZTH  Balance at 30 June 2012
R=Z-—%tA-B  and1luly2012
LER 391,448 - B6 11834 - 168465 951,863
RELEEMAELE  Deemed capital contribution arising
(H#=1%) from debt extinguishment (note 35) - = - = 5,735 = 5,735
HEEAIRS Transaction with owners - - - - 5,735 - 5,735
REEHH Net profit for the year - - - - 4650 4650
rEERANGLE Total comprehensive income for the year = = = = = 4650 4650
RAEREREEMES  Amount transferred to retained profit
il as aresult of expiration of
(HF=1%) convertible notes (note 35) = = = 2310 = 2310 =
RZE-ZEXA=TH  Balance at 30 June 2013
B 391,448 - 3606 116034 5135 17545 962,08

&
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El

=t FEE-FEERE

NaE] )

PRI D IRFEEIER — NI ER
NAEIZ & BREERFK2.508
TCHIRZE0. 108 TTATEEE 2 4 (B -

M+ - 3 AR — A
£ E B AR A

RZZEZAFF+ZAEA R
A A% Bl EDigichina Trading
Limited &2 Paramount Ability
Corporation ([Ef]) (9 &%EL
F=7) MRS wE ([ R
=) EBERERER - AREM
%R RBEREBHARE 2
RERFERRZ TR RRFE
BHEEEKIELE A RILIAE
BERARANTMEEHEELE
1R EE - RBESEMETZ
ZRE W - AR ERENAFRK
01738 T2 B (K HERK
& 48 %886,250,0007%8 7T) - [A) i
£ & B 5 17249,277,4561% 3E k£
TR ERE AR ([ FE_E TR AE
&) o

AR5 e S B 31T IE_E T R AR i
BZH(CE—ZEF—A1+N\H)
AR R KFE =+ HE
A BEBRARBERE  HBE
15 & LA S 8%0.17358 JT 171 18
38 7N & ¥E25,875,00008 7T (7R
149,566,47417 3E LT R JLHERE)
B9 FE_E T AR AR AR BB T B A A ]
RIEE  BRIFEEHRER KT
B GERME=1TH) - L=
EpE AR EXTER - BB R
17 {8 1B 2N & §825,875,0007%5
TL2Z 3E_ETH R AR AERE Z M FIHE 2K
R o IE E TR AR AR RE T A AR
AIR-—E—ZEFNUA—HER
EETRREFEETZH(ZE
—Z=F— A+ /\B)%=+H@E
AHEAERBH(BEEER
H) ' LAERX0.173/8 TREA LD
RIFTL A o BDRIRIEEN S
R — IR A BT 2 REF) o

39.

40.

RESERVES — GROUP AND
COMPANY(cont/nued)

Non-distributable reserve represents the premium arising
on the reduction of the par value of ordinary shares of the
Company from HK$2.50 to HK$0.10 per share in 1994.

UNLISTED WARRANTS - GROUP AND
COMPANY

On 4 December 2009, the Company entered into service
agreements (the “Service Agreements”) with Digichina
Trading Limited and Paramount Ability Corporation (the
“Consultants”), independent third parties, respectively to
engage them as consultants for the provision of business
development, strategies and advisory services including
seeking suitable business projects for the development or
diversification of the business of the Company and suitable
business partners/investors from China for the Company for
fund raising projects. Under each of the Service Agreements
with the Consultants, the Company agreed to issue to each
of them 249,277,456 units of unlisted warrants shares (the
“Unlisted Warrants”) at the price of HK$0.173 per share
where in aggregate equivalent to a total principal amount of
HK$86,250,000.

The Service Agreements shall come into force from the
date of the issue of the Unlisted Warrants on 18 January
2010 and shall continue for a period of twenty-four
months therefrom. Each of the Consultants undertakes
to the Company that they will not exercise any of the
subscription rights attached to the Unlisted Warrants beyond
the principal amount of HK$25,875,000, equivalent to
149,566,474 units of Unlisted Warrants at HK$0.173 per
share, until and unless the satisfaction and completion of
the S & P Agreement as detailed in note 35. If the aforesaid
S & P Agreement is not duly completed, the relevant
Consultants’ rights to exercise the Unlisted Warrants beyond
the principal amount of HK$25,875,000 shall lapse. The
Unlisted Warrants conferred the rights to subscribe for new
ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.173 per share for
a period from 1 April 2010 to the day falling twenty-four
months after the date of issue of the Unlisted Warrants on
18 January 2010 (both dates inclusive). Each warrant carried
the right to subscribe for one new share of the Company.
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ENA QAR IE LT RIEE
tE BB 2 RIS RE
BATIE LM RAERE JIABRIES
RBEZR G » BITIE LR
HZER LA ERETE BN
EARERFE 29 AR XA o

FT G 3F LT R AR 3819 16 DA IR A
HE o NN ENNIER RS (EEIE
MRRIER 2 LRSI TEER
(BBRBITARRBLBARBRIN) ©

TRAAREERAREEZE—F
——FRXA=THILFERFAE
ZANRRFEETRBAEE LA

HE

COMPANY (continued)

The issue of the Unlisted Warrants was an equity-settled
transaction given that the Company granted Unlisted
Warrants as considerations for services rendered by the
Consultants. The recognition and measurement of the issue
of the Unlisted Warrants should follow HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment.

All the Unlisted Warrants will be settled in equity. The
Company has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the Unlisted Warrants other than by
issuing the Company’s ordinary shares.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
Unlisted Warrants held by the Consultants and movement in
such holdings during the year ended 30 June 2012:

2012
FE TR piliL- oS
EEEE 17EfE
Number of Weighted
unlisted average
warrants exercise price
BT
HK$
REA—BRITE Outstanding at 1 July 498,554,912 0.173
KR Lapsed (498,554,912) 0.173
W/NA=1+H8K7T#E  Outstanding at 30 June - TEA N/A
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40. UNLISTED WARRANTS - GROUP AND
COMPANY (continued)

The exercisable periods of the Unlisted Warrants of the

N Company were as follows:
2012
FE ErERAR ANFEF15
HEEHE 1128
Number of Weighted
Unlisted average
Warrants exercise price
BT
HK$
1T - Exercisable periods:
—EETFNA—HE 1 April 2010 to 17 January 2012*
e =k 299,132,948 0.173
—TETFNHA—HZE 1 April 2010 to 17 January 2012*
St e o = 199,421,964 0.173
& $%299,132,948fp JE £ g The 299,132,948 Unlisted Warrants vested immediately

R EF N T B HA AN
B HMARBHG AR
8 o T A R AR (D A B
2 %R Ei{53,008,0007 7T &
KEHE-_ZT—ZTFA
=+ HLEFEMNBRPE

=77
s ©

& ZEHTHIE LRI
BZITEXBREHNREE R
ERBRABEZTK &
BEHRMFE=1TH ==
RE ZEHRELR E
—FERTK - Bt B
#:199,421,96413 3 £
REEC LS -
BB B E R 2 RN
35,339,000/ 7t B 4 £ &
2T ——FA=1H
IFFEMBZPER -

FE LT RBARRE B R AT A
“HRAHEEERAETE -

on the grant date which was also the start of the
date of services and the respective share-based
compensation of HK$53,008,000 was recognised in
profit or loss during the year ended 30 June 2010.

* The exercise of these remaining Unlisted Warrants was
subject to the completion of the S & P Agreement and
Supplemental Agreement as detailed in note 35. In
the opinion of the directors, the completion of these
agreements were completed in prior year and therefore,
the remaining 199,421,964 Unlisted Warrants vested
immediately. The respective share-based compensation
of HK$35,339,000 was recognised in profit or loss for
the year ended 30 June 2012.

The fair value of the Unlisted Warrants was determined by
using the Binomial Option Pricing Model.
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TRIE ZIBA R EEEAD
BAER  ARFEREBE—F
—TERNA=ZTHLEFEREZ
FELEMRBERE < AFE -

COMPANY (continued)

The following table lists the inputs to the Binomial Option
Pricing Model used for calculating the fair value of the
Unlisted Warrants granted during the year ended 30 June
2010:

e i=E- —E-ZF—H+/\H
Date of grant 18 January 2010
B (& Share price HK$0.35/% T
1T{EE Exercise price HK$0.1738 7T
TEEHRE R (H5E @) Expected volatility (note (a)) 83.88%
I ETTRARIER 2 TEET G Expected life of the Unlisted Warrants (note (b)) 2% years
(Bﬁﬁ?(b))
J2 B 1) 2 (B EE(0) Risk-free rate (note (c)) 0.435%
EHHH“ SR Expected dividend yield 3.53%
Hiet - Notes:

@) TEEIR I : NEREER (@) Expected volatility: being the approximate historical
T rEss B AR AR E A volatility of closing prices of the shares of the Company
AN 2 B AR A7 W i B 9 R 52 in the past 2 years immediately before the date of start

IR o of services.

b)  FLEMRIAER ZEFF
H:FEmRREREZE
MHEIR - KB TR
RIMEZR Z fhat o

©  EmERFIE: OEREBH
EES T PSR o

BE_Z——FA=+tHLF
£ - BREITIE E TR AEEAERE
Z VAR5 {81+ & 35,339,000/
TEREBZER  BESEDH
AR B - BB R,
ENRS  EAtEERENE

EEO

(b) Expected life of the Unlisted Warrants: being the
effective life of the Unlisted Warrants estimated from
the expected exercising time frame.

(@} Risk-free rate: being the approximate yields to maturity
of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note.

For the year ended 30 June 2012, HK$35,339,000 of share-
based compensation expenses in relation to the issue of the
Unlisted Warrants had been recognised in profit or loss and
the corresponding amount of which had been credited to
the warrant reserve. No liabilities were recognised due to
share-based payment transactions.

El
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mM+— - AREE-—EEEH 41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES — GROUP

Y& /N AND COMPANY
RS HITR - BTSSR P Rt At end of the reporting periods, contingent liabilities not
M ARBEDT ¢ provided for in the financial statement were as follows:
REE PN
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012

FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000

AT HABERS Guarantees given to banks

#R1T E K [ in connection with
IRITEEIER ¢ banking facilities
granted to:
ol 1)=FNC] — Subsidiaries - - 528,381 487,500
—H[EEH E S — Jointly controlled entity 295,066 = 295,066 =
295,066 = 823,447 487,500

RIEER - IR AU EI A RE Under the guarantees, the Group/Company would be liable
B NEE S ARNA B EEER to pay the banks if the banks are unable to recover the
IRITERCEF -REER  H loans. At the reporting date, no provision for the Group/
REEZATSHIRKGEEEZ Company’s obligation under the guarantee contracts have
SEHZIEN - AW EGARE been made as the directors considered that it was not
B AATRERENBE N ZR probable that the repayment of the loans would be in
FVEH B - default.
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MO+= s EAXRKIE 42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
REE Group
RZZE—=FA=+H &% At 30 June 2013, the Group had outstanding capital
B A TEIARER < BEARAE : commitments as follows:
2013 2012
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$°000
EEENEES: T Contracted but not provided for:
W - BB && Property, plant and equipment 1,698 1,114
KEMEBRTHHE Properties under development classified under
RERRYE investment property 13,752 13,752

WEYEE N DA Properties under development classified under
ZREPYE - ME  investment property undertaken by a jointly

| E AT controlled entity attributable to the Group 288,715 279,389
REBRGEED
304,165 294,255
PN Company
R-E—=FER T ——F,\A The Company did not have any significant capital
=1tH  ARATEEAERE commitments as at 30 June 2013 and 2012.
IRHHE
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M+= - BEFHEKRIE 43. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
AEE Group
AEBULEHELEEAST The Group leases certain shops, office properties and
ot HAEWERBETIRFSE - staff quarters under operating lease arrangements. Leases
e (BRERAES) RETE SR (including contingent rental) are negotiated at fixed rate
B EEBKFER - HEH— or with reference to level of business and terms ranging
FR=FE - WrRERDIH from one to three years, with an option to renew the leases
B A KREEZFHEEFHER and renegotiate the terms at the expiry date or at dates
R HHEIAE REHER IR as mutually agreed between the Group and respective
Koo landlords.
RZEBE—=FA=1+H K& As at 30 June 2013, the Group had future aggregate
BN AIREE ST E 2 R IR ERT minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
HERNTR&EAER KL AERE R leases falling were due as follows:
T
2013 2012
FET TET
HK$000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 2,538 2,027
F_EEZERF(BIEEEME)  Inthe second to fifth year, inclusive 1,434 1,488
3,972 3,515
VNN Company
RIEBE—=FKR_F——FxA The Company did not have any minimum lease payments
=18 - AT EABEEA under non-cancellable operating leases as at 30 June 2013
LHEZREHEER - and 2012.
m+m - #5864 HEH 44. BUSINESS COMBINATION/DISPOSAL

Bl

REBE-_ZT—=FA=+HIt
FEA  AEBYBEARBE
HRLEMBARER -

REBE-ZT——FXA=tA1t
FEAR  NEEBUATEHEH
REEHBAREHE -

OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Group did not
have any business combination and disposal of subsidiaries.

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Group had the
following business combination and disposal of subsidiaries.
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44. BUSINESS COMBINATION/DISPOSAL

BrR @ OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
441 ¥E=EESHE: 44.1 Business combination:
RZE——F+ A+ = On 12 October 2011, the Group acquired 100%
H - REE&E =R RTH of the share capital of Big Bonus Limited and the
=R R R B 1T shareholder’s loan from Benefit Well having satisfied
1% - 7N & [ [MBenefit Well the terms and conditions of the S & P Agreement
g 8£Big Bonus Limitedfy and Supplemental Agreement. The acquisition was
100% & 75 K2 Benefit Welli2 made as the Group's strategy is to capture the
HARERE R o W T substained growth in global demand for natural
REBILREERERAE resources. The acquired business contributed
BRI EKNEEERge revenue of HK$3,831,000 and loss after tax of
ZEB AR o B UE B H HK$6,292,000 to the Group from date of acquisition
EZT——F,A=+H to 30 June 2012.
Fir Y2 B 2 75 B R 7R &= B
= /£33,831,0007%8 7T & B B
1% 518 726,292,000 7T °
g 8% HBig Bonust B /) A] The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
PREENMBENATE of Big Bonus Group as at the date of acquisition
NN were as follows:
2012
NFEE
Fair value
FrET
HK$'000
PRmERE Mining right 1,017,663
ME - BE REE Property, plant and equipment 60,038
i A Land use rights 39,319
TARFRIE  1=E KA M EWRIA Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 2,020
R MIRTTAERR Cash and bank balances 38,613
AN ENGIFeE Due to a related company (35,542)
Ho M FER IR Other payables (95,382)
Benefit WellI2 (A AE SR E 7K Shareholder’s loan from Benefit Well (150,400)
FAEFIIAE F Deferred tax liabilities (237,784)
BB EEFE Net assets acquired 638,545

~J
3
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441 EBEH: ()

44, BUSINESS COMBINATION/DISPOSAL

OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

44.1 Business combination: (continued)

2012
FET
HK$'000
BENRE Purchase consideration:

—EfNEE — Cash paid 113,000

—ARREBRCHATE — Fair value of the Convertible Note C (note 35)
(MsE=+H) 127,619

— TR R EE — Fair value of shares issued (note 38(a))

(M=E=+\@)) 183,529
BEEER(E Total purchase consideration 424,148
EXFRENE AR FEER Fair value of 100% of net identified assets

100% K AF1E acquired as shown above (638,545)
Benefit Welll2 IR SR E 3K Shareholder’s loan from Benefit Well (150,400)
UL B A &) 2 A RF Excess of interest in the net fair value of

BERFATEZ the net identifiable assets over the

PR B AR R AN 8 fair value of the total cost of acquisition

N ERHBD of subsidiaries (364,797)

USRS B HA E fh e IR IR
Z A F{EEA32,00058 7T °
HtEURARIB BG5S
RH3#432,000/8 7T - TEHAT]
Z2HULE o

AEE G KRB EIEE A
R 5 & F55,0007 7T ° 1
HEZZT——F A=+
HEFER RZEAD
KIEBRPER  EH8E
BEkEMEEmEKEZERA
BREETHRER -

The fair value of other receivables as at the date of
acquisition amounted to HK$432,000. The gross
contractual amounts of other receivables were
HK$432,000 which was expected to be collected in

full.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$55,000

for this acquisition. These transaction costs had

been recognised in the profit or loss and included

under administrative expenses in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income during the year ended 30 June 2012.
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441 EBEH: (8B
A BUREEBIg BonustEE H)

He MR FEFREM
DITEAT ¢

BUSINESS COMBINATION/DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Business combination: (continued)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the acquisition of Big Bonus
Group was as follows:

2012
FET
HK$000

WHBEL 2 MR

Net cash outflow arising on the acquisition:

BEffReRE Cash consideration paid (113,000)

BEMB AR ZRE R Cash and bank balances in subsidiaries acquired
RITAEER 38,613
(74,387)

WHER=ZF ——F
AR—RH#ET REBEZEZ
T-——F~A=+HL
FER A5EE 22K
B & s A Ao Bl
/955,712,000 T &
204,712,000 7T » 5 E &
RHERFRA A AR
TMBEEWEER=ZZ——
FrA—HEXNEBASHE
ERAER WA RLE
XE - M T BIERRRE
182 TEA o

= PN
FEENFRATEESE
HBBNB RN AFE
R W T E B RN A
B EERR BRI
BRABNATEREER
ZE KB BEFTRD TR -

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 July 2011,
the Group’s revenue and profit after tax would
have been HK$955,712,000 and HK$204,712,000
respectively, for the year ended 30 June 2012.
This pro forma information was for illustrative
purposes only and was not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would had been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 July 2011, nor was
it intended to be a projection of future results.

The gain on excess of interest in the net fair value of
the net identifiable assets over the fair value of the
total cost of acquisition of subsidiaries was mainly
attributed by the decrease in the fair values of the
convertible note and consideration shares at the
acquisition date as compared to that on the contract
date of the S & P Agreement.

&
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BT OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

442 HEMHREAT : 44.2 Disposal of subsidiaries:
REBEZE-_ZT——FA8 The Group had deregistered several subsidiaries
=THRIEFER K&E during the year ended 30 June 2012 and the net
BEFEETHBAR A liabilities being disposed of were as follows:
LS 2 FaESHNNT

2012

T

HK$'000

TERFRIR - H1E KA MEKGRIR Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 95

EAb TR R IERT B R Other payables and accruals (277)

FEHE bR A Non-controlling interests (532)

| NN Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries (714)
45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

M+a-FAEALRS
BRI A B IS B ES HA ED FT R

HE%M\ '

BATL

—

a)

IS
%
g
7T

ZIKE ERFERE IR

=t+HALEFEAR A

REBECELEEE N

uﬁ‘ﬂfzsm,ooo,mt@

— Z % : 465,000/

T) * EE A, FE{STamar

Investments + £ Bl g B 18

IS

5

EmEs -

BHE-_ZE—=F,XA
= tHIEFER  BELEE
A B B % 2,717,000/ 7T

— T — —F : 141,000

7T

*

) BENRELRE
RETEEBABNRME

AR -

A%

= tBELEFER #E

BRERNERE

S EMAREB LR SR
1,575,000/ L (=& — =

=

1,137,000 7T) ©

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, during the year, the Group entered into the
following related party transactions.

(@) During the year ended 30 June 2013, imputed
interest expenses of HK$521,000 (2012:
HK$465,000) were incurred and paid/payable to
Tamar Investments, which is beneficially owned by
Dr. Chan, in relation to the Convertible Note C.

(b) During the year ended 30 June 2013, imputed
interest expenses of HK$2,717,000 (2012:
HK$141,000) were incurred to a related company of
which Dr. Chan is a director and key management
personnel.

() During the year ended 30 June 2013, interest
expenses of HK$1,575,000 (2012: HK$1,137,000)
were paid/payable to Dr. Chan in relation to the loan
from a controlling shareholder.
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M+A-BFAEALTXRZ 45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

d) FZEBABRA (d)  Compensation of key management personnel
IAEBERBAFEZZEFE Included in employee benefit expenses are key
EEABRBNBIETSE management personnel compensation and comprise
7l the following:

2013 2012

FET FET

HK’'000 HK$’000

EHESEN Short term employee benefits 13,624 11,289
BfEES 12 12 7 Post-employment benefits 425 351
14,049 11,640

e MEBEE_ZT—Z-—F,-A
=t+tHLEFER: Bf
3,203,000 T BEA T
ETHERAR - DBEEH
KN £ B B i N R R UL
TEREIERK ©

fH REBEE-_ZT—=—F,A
=+ HIEFER  WiEBIg
Bonusts B 2 FEIB S KT FE
=1+ h KkKizF44.1 -

B LRMEN+R@  M+R
(b) ~ U+ ()R U+ A(fHIBEE
AR Z B EHRAIE M
ABFEENRERS °

M+ ARSI E RN

At

HEZZ—=F-A=THLHF
B AEEBETIEEFRER
5

AEBEFTURMERELHE - 5
BENHERIRBNEAERES
425,000/ 7T ©

46.

(e) During the year ended 30 June 2012, subcontracting
fees of HK$3,203,000 were paid to certain
associates. The subcontracting fees were mutually
negotiated between the Group and the associates.

() During the year ended 30 June 2012, the acquisition
of Big Bonus Group as detailed in note 35 and note
441,

The related party transaction in respect of note 45(a), 45(b),
45(c) and 45(f) also constitute connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Group had the
following major non-cash transactions:

The Group entered into finance lease arrangements in
respect of an asset with a total capital value at the inception
of the lease of HK$425,000.

~J
S
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46.

47.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Group had the
following major non-cash transactions:

As detailed in note 44.1, the acquisition of Big Bonus
Group was satisfied by issuing the Convertible Note C with
fair value of HK$127,619,000 and the issue of a total of
1,764,705,880 shares with fair value of HK$183,529,000.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”)
was approved by the shareholders of the Company on 13
July 2010. The Scheme would be valid for a period of ten
years.

The board of directors (“Board”) may in its discretion, invite
any following eligible person to take up the options to
subscribe for shares of the Company.

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time),
senior executive or officer, manager, director
(including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive director) or consultant of the
Company; any of its subsidiaries or any investee
who, as determined by the Board, have contributed
or will contribute to the growth and development of
the Group; or
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47.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
SCHEME (continued)

(ii) any investee.

The subscription price must be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
offer of the option, which must be a business day; (i) the
average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of
the option; and (jii) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company.

The eligible person must accept any such offer notified to
him or her within ten business days from the offer date.
Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1
to the Company as consideration for the grant. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed (i) 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at the adoption date; or (i) 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to each participant in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the share
capital of the Company then in issue unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meetings.

The option period shall be notified by the Board to each
grantee upon grant of each option, provided that it shall
commence on a date not earlier than the offer date and not
be more than ten years from the offer date. No share option
was granted pursuant to the Scheme since its adoption.

El
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48.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments, loans to a jointly controlled entity, trade
receivables, other receivables, redemption options of
convertible notes, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables,
other payables and accruals, bank loans, balance with
subsidiaries, an associate and jointly controlled entities,
derivative financial instruments, amount due to ultimate
holding company, obligation under a finance lease,
amounts due to related companies, loan from a controlling
shareholder, financial guarantee liabilities and convertible
notes. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.



Annual Report 2013 4

Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R 5 i+

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE_Z—=F A=1HILFE

m-+\ -

48.1

B 75 R bR B 18 HZ
B BUR (4#)

TREENREREESH

RGBSR R A FR S A
REBENEBUATEME
ErcmaEsE-25
M FE3.13 %3164 B £ &
B T B/ $E a0 {a] 52 2 1%
LHBEEETE ©

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.1 Categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position relate to the following
categories of financial assets and financial liabilities.
See notes 3.13 and 3.16 for explanations about how
the category of financial instruments affects their

subsequent measurement.

PiN-E ]| PN
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET FAT FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EREE Financial assets
FRBEE Non-current assets
AfRHEZER Available-for-sale financial
BE assets 27,497 37,136 = -
S MR - Loans and receivables:
— BT Rt ~ Loans to a jointly
BHEBRZER controlled entity 400,900 391,800 = -
—JEHBAEIZIE - Due from subsidiaries = = 416,693 397,307
428,397 428,936 416,693 397,307
MEEE Current assets
MATEAERE 2  Financial assets at fair value
SREE through profit or loss 12,079 11,696 7 148
fTESMTE Derivative financial
instruments 38 - - -
BERREMHIE : Loans and receivables:
—ESREKRE - Trade receivables 105,198 109,010 - -
— Hfth fE Y 0B ~ Other receivables 4,575 3,761 367 319
—EUHIBAEZIE - Due from subsidiaries = - 89,239 99,178
— R —FEEFRZER - Due from a jointly
ERFE controlled entity 139 139 = =
-ReRkReEHE — Cash and cash equivalents 37,91 85,236 33 117
159,940 209,842 89,646 99,762
588,337 638,778 506,339 497,069

N
—
=
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
481 cRIEERERBESE 48.1 Categories of financial assets and financial

(4&) liabilities (continued)
AEE Vi UN|
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
LREE Financial liabilities
hEaE Current liabilities
R ARG E Financial liabilities measured
TRAE: at amortised cost:
— B 5ENFE — Trade payables (138,132) (133,166) = =
*E‘r@%ﬁmlﬁ ~ Other payables and
REst & accruals (32,300) (72,802) (932) (1,417)
— BB NEFIE - Due to an associate = 1) = =
—[ENBERERE - Due to related companies (2,321) = = -
—JEPMBARFIE - Due to subsidiaries - = (18,813) (7,426)
—RITEX — Bank loans (336,181) (324,172) - =
— PR R R ~ Loan from a controlling
B shareholder (10,000) - (10,000) -
—BRREE — Convertible note - (54,889) = (54,889)
—BERERE ~ Obligation under a
finance lease (113) - -
-MEERERE - Financial quarantee liabilities (2,481) = (2,481) =
TfEst A2z Financial liabilities at fair value
imﬂ%h : through profit or loss:
—TESBT A — Derivative financial
instruments - (84) - -
(521,528) (585,224) (32,226) (63,732)
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
NEERAGTEZ Financial liabilities measured at
TRAE: amortised cost;
—ENBEERQFFKIE - Due to related companies (83,903) (27,961) (53,346) -
—ERRRERAT - Due to ultimate holding
IR company (1,546) (7,877) - -
— IR R R SR LAY — Loan from a controlling
BX shareholder (95,022) (105,000) (90,000) (105,000)
—ARRER ~ Convertible note (9.874) (13,694) (9,874) (13,694)
—REHEAE - Obligation under a finance lease (104) = = =
-BEERERE - Financial quarantee liabilities (8,270) - (8,270) -
(198,719) (154,532) (161,490) (118,694)
(720,247) (739,756) (193,716) (182,426)
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.2 Market risk

0

Foreign currency risk

Group

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that
the fair value of future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the
United Kingdom and the Mainland China
with most of the transactions denominated
and settled in HK$, United States dollars
("US$"), British Pounds, Canadian Dollars
(“CAD") and RMB. No foreign currency
risk has been identified for the financial
assets and financial liabilities denominated
in RMB, which is the functional currencies
of the subsidiaries in Mainland China to
which these transactions relate. The Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk primarily
arises from certain financial instruments
including available-for-sale financial assets,
trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
trade payables and derivative financial
instruments which are denominated in US$,
Euro, British Pounds, CAD and Philippines
Pesos. During the years, the Group did not
have foreign currency hedging policy but
management continuously monitors the
foreign exchange exposure.

N
w
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MBEREEER 48

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

B BUR (%) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
iz E kR (2) 48.2 Market risk (continued)
SNE JE] 2 (4) 0] Foreign currency risk (continued)
REE (&) Group (continued)
TERBUAR-—ZE—=FK The following table summarises the
—E——_FXA=Z+HIK Group’s major financial assets and liabilities
AEEZKERAIIGEE denominated in currencies other than the
Mohe Bt EEINEZ £ functional currency of the respective group
ESRMBEERAE - companies as at 30 June 2013 and 2012.
NF BT
Expressed in HK$'000
E 5 g mr FEERZ
British Philippines

us$ Euro Pounds CAD Pesos

—E—=F At 30 June 2013
AA=TH
AHE 7S REE Available-for-sale financial assets = = = 7,992 1,715
E 3 Trade receivables 89,932 763 13,730 = -
RekBeER Cash and cash equivalents 18,937 957 6,980 9% -
B SRR Trade payables (126,290) (222) (611) = =
fTESMTA Derivative financial instruments = = 38 = =
BRsak Overall net exposure (17,421) 1,498 20,137 8,088 1,715
—E-_F At 30 June 2012
~B=1H

AHEZSRMEE Available-for-sale financial assets = = = 18,068 1,760
B A EWR Trade receivables 95,097 1,752 11,752 = =
BeRkHEEE®  Cashand cash equivalents 47,391 576 11,200 1,018 =
B HENTIE Trade payables (118,923) (186) (638) - =
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments = = (84) = =
BRZER Overall net exposure 23,565 2,142 22,230 19,086 1,760
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.2 Market risk (continued)

0

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Group (continued)

As US$ is pegged to HK$, the Group does
not expect any significant movements in
the US$/HK$ exchange rates. No sensitivity
analysis in respect of the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities denominated in US$ is
disclosed as in the opinion of directors, such
sensitivity analysis does not give additional
value in view of insignificant movement in
the US$/HK$ exchange rates as at reporting
date. The following table indicates the
approximate change in the Group’s profit for
the year and equity in response to reasonably
possible changes in the foreign exchange
rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the reporting date.

N
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MBEREEER 48

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

BHEK ) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
iz E kR (2) 48.2 Market risk (continued)
SN [ e (78 ) 0] Foreign currency risk (continued)
REE (&) Group (continued)
2013 2012
SEE= HER HNBE [ 2 HER
it 4 iyl A/ M Z
(TK8) 2 g (TR&) 7 T
Increase/ Effect Increase/ Effect
(Decrease) on (Decrease) on
in foreign  profit for in foreign profit for
exchange the year exchange the year
rates Equity rates Equity
FAET FET FET FET
HK’000 HK$'000 HK'000 HK$'000
BT Euro +5% 75 75 +5% 107 107
-5% (75) (75) -5% (107) (107)
HeE British Pounds +5% 1,117 (1,117) +5% 1,364 1,364
-5% 1,041 (1,041) -5% (1,196) (1,196)
il CAD +5% 404 404 +5% 51 903
-5% (404) (404) 5% (51) (903)
JFEEHZE  Philippines Pesos +5% - 86 +5% = 83
-5% - (86) -5% = (88)
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.2 Market risk (continued)

0

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Group (continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign
exchange rates had occurred at the reporting
dates and that all other variables remain
constant.

The stated changes represent management'’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until
the next annual reporting date.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk

have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to be effective.

Company

The Company did not expose to foreign
currency risk.

N
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.2 Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk related to the risk that the
fair values or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of change
in market price (other than changes in
interest rate and foreign exchange rate).
The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity
securities which are classified as at fair value
through profit or loss, or available-for-sale.
The board of directors manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk and return profiles and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise. The Group is not exposed to
commodity price risk.

At 30 June 2013, if equity prices had
increased/(decreased) by 10% and all other
variables were held constant:

- the Group’s profit for the year
would increase/(decrease) by
approximately HK$1,207,000 (2012:
increase/(decrease) by approximately
HK$1,155,000). This is mainly due to
the changes in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss; and
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.2 Market risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Equity price risk (continued)

- the Group's equity other than retained
profits would increase/(decrease) by
approximately HK$2,327,000 (2012:
increase/(decrease) by approximately
HK$3,291,000) as a result of the changes
in fair value of listed equity investments
induded in the Group's available-for-sale
finandial assets.

This sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the price change had occurred
at the reporting dates and has been applied
to the Group's investment on that date.

The policies to manage equity price risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years
and are considered to be effective.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that
the fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group is
exposed to interest rate risk primarily arising
from bank balances and bank borrowings.
Majority of the bank borrowings are
arranged at variable rates which expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The
interest rates and repayment terms of the
bank borrowings outstanding at reporting
dates are disclosed in note 30.

The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.
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48.2 iz AR (&) 48.2 Market risk (continued)
(i) FIE @ () (i) Interest rate risk (continued)
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The following table illustrates the sensitivity
of the profit after tax for the year and
retained profits to a change in interest rates
of +100 basis point and -100 basis point
(2012: +100 basis point and -100 basis
point) with effect from the beginning of
the year. The calculations are based on the
Group’s bank balances and interest bearing
bank borrowings held at each reporting date
which are subject to variable interest rates.
All other variables are held constant.

2013 2012
FET FAET
HK’000 HK$'000
fis A% = F+ 100524 If interest rates were 100 basis point
(ZZ—4F : 100£2h) (2012: 100 basis point) higher
FNFEF R AR B g A Net profit for the year and retained
Ve profits decrease by (1,067) (469)
1|”ﬁ‘J>T<TK%1 00E 24 If interest rates were 100 basis point
= 100£ %) (2012: 100 basis point) lower
FNFEF R AR B % A Net profit for the year and retained
3N profits increase by 1,067 469

AREBEBBEFEAR—
HETEENXERZK

B URBRZEBRRBEM -

The policies to manage interest rate risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years
are considered to be effective.



Annual Report 2013 4

Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R 5 i+

For the year ended 30 June 2013

HE—ZT

—=FRA=TRHIFE

m-+\ -

48.3

B 75 R bR B 18 HZ
B BUR (4#)

FERR

EERKRESHIAZR
SE T ARERESRTE
ZERBITHEMS €4
SEEXHMBERZE
B AREEERR &
ﬁa@@ﬂmﬁ%&ﬂﬁ
EERE  AEHEER

B8 Ik =2 B 1B WU R R I
RIBELRE o o - A
EERSHEEERT A
18 3 FE W R IR R AT ik Bl &
% LRERE TR E
HRETERMRERE -
RS EFERAN
EIEE&%W&K%H
KEER

R—ZEBE—Z=ZFA=+
H X&EEEEERRE
¢MFﬁ'Iﬁ$$l
49% (ZF— — 4 : 48%)
K& 5 fE W FRIE T e U AR

ERat 2iE HER
EE%?E%&%E“*
BRARFEZ—-°

AEENEERR DR
ZRRXFEFREP - A
it - AR B S N E —
RBZBFHNEAEFEE
R o

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.3 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instruments and cause a financial loss to the
Group. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
senior management compiles the credit and risk
management policies, to approve credit limits and
to determine any debt recovery action on those
delinquent receivables. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount for each individual
account receivables at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the board of
directors considers that the Group’s credit risk is

effectively controlled and significantly reduced.

As at 30 June 2013, the Group had concentration of
credit risk as 49% (2012: 48%) of the Group's trade
receivables which were due from one of the Group’s
largest customers within the design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading of the jewellery and

diamonds segment.

The Group's credit risk exposure is spread over a
number of counterparties and customers. Hence, it
has no significant concentration of credit risk by a

single counterpart.
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.3 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk on cash and bank balances is mitigated as

cash is deposited in banks of high credit rating.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’
exposure to credit risk arising from long term and
trade receivables are disclosed in notes 23 and 25 to

the financial statements respectively.

Save as the long-term receivables as detailed in
note 23(a), none of the Group'’s financial assets are
secured by collateral or other credit enhancements.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk
is primarily attributable to amounts due from
subsidiaries, other receivables and contingent
liabilities in relation to the financial guarantee
contracts granted to the subsidiaries and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of a jointly controlled entity as

detailed in note 41 to the financial statements.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit

risk to a desirable level.
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484 REELEM 48.4 Liquidity risk
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Liquidity risk related to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligation associated with
its financial liabilities. In the management of the
liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows
in the short and long term. Management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to have
been effective in managing liquidity risk.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the reporting
date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.

Specifically, for bank loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis
shows the cash outflow based on the earliest period
in which the entity can be required to pay, that is if
the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights
to call the loans with immediate effect.
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

ARE Group
ki)
ReReg 1E0E
&% 1£hg  BORF
Total #%ZXKEE  Morethan
REE  contractual Within 1 year but 2ENE
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or lessthan ~ More than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 2 years
FET FET FET FET FET
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
RZZ-ZFRA=TH  Asat30June 2013
HTESREE: Non-derivative financial liabilities:
EU AN Trade payables 138,132 138,132 138,132 = =
EtEMFUARESER  Other payables and accruals 32,300 32,300 32,300 - -
HERERE Obligation under a finance lease 17 17 113 104 -
THRRE Convertible note 9,874 11,126 4875 4875 1376
HBERER Financial quarantee liabilities 10,751 10,751 2,481 2,481 5,789
ERSEERDGFE  Dueto ultimate holdng company 1,546 1,546 1,546 - -
RITER Bank loans 336,181 336,181 336,181 - -
EREENRFNE Due to related companies 86,224 94,706 2,321 92,385 -
BRRRRAENER Loan from a controlling shareholder 105,022 105,022 10,000 95,022
720,247 729,981 527,949 194,867 7,165
FB B AR : Financial quarantee issued:
BAEREE Maximum amount guarantee - 95,662 95,662 - -
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

RER @ OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
484 FEVESREME (E) 48.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
REE (&) Group (continued)
BNRTR
Beng 19850 £
&3 1FR5 BORE
Totdl  HEXEE  Morethan
REE  contractual Within 1 year but pE U
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than More than
amount cashflow  on demand 2 years 2 years
AT AT AT AT TAT
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
RZZ-ZFXA=1H Asat30June 2012
FTEEREE! Non-derivative financial liabilities:
EU AN Trade payables 133,166 133,166 133,166 - -
EtERFUAREER  Other payables and accruals 72,802 72,802 72,802 = =
ARER Convertible notes 68,583 72,795 63,045 4,875 4,875
ERHEERAGFE  Due to ultimate holding company 7871 7877 = 7871 =
B EARTE Due t0 associates 11 11 11 = =
RITER Bank loans 324,172 324,172 34,172 - -
FEREER RS Due 10 a related company 27,91 33,275 - - 33,275
BRERREOER Loan from a controlling shareholder 105,000 106,575 1,575 105,000 -
739,672 750,773 594,871 117,752 38,150
RZZ-ZFXA=TH Asat30June 2012
TESRER: Derivative financial liabilities:
(TEEBIE Derivative financial instruments 84 84 84 - -
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484 FREELREKE (&) 48.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
¥ NN Company
ki)
ReReg 1H0E
&% 1£hg  BORF
Total #%ZXKEE  Morethan
IREE  contractual Within 1 year but N L
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or lessthan ~ More than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 2 years
FET FET FET FET FET
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
RZZ-ZFRA=TH  Asat30June 2013
MR FAREER  Other payables and accruals 932 932 932 - -
ERfHBARNE Due to subsidiaries 18,813 18,813 18,813 - -
RRRE Convertible note 9,874 11,126 4,875 4,875 1,376
HBERAE Financial guarantee liabilties 10,751 10,751 2,481 2,481 5,789
BRRRREHER Loan from a controlling shareholder 100,000 100,000 10,000 90,000 -
EREEARTE Due to a related company 53,346 58,170 - 58,170
193,716 199,792 37,101 155,526 7,165
i 2 AR Financial quarantee issued
RAEREHE Maximum amount guaranteed - 431,843 431,843 - -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

RANT] (&) Company (continued)
BNANER
Beng (DS
% 1ER% BORE
Tol  REXEE  Morethan
FEE  contractual Within 1 year but WU E
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than More than
amount cashflow  on demand 2 years 2 years
TET &L &L THT THT
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
MZB-Z£5xA=1+H Asat30June 2012
AMERFURRETER  Other payables and accruals 1417 1417 1417 = =
ENNEARNE Due to subsidlaris 7426 7426 7426 - -
HRRE Convertible notes 68,583 72,795 63,045 4875 4875
R R REHE N Loan from a controlling shareholder 105,000 106,575 1,575 105,000 =
182,426 188,213 713,463 109,875 4875
Pt 2 AR Financial guarantee issued
RAEREH Maximum amount guaranteed - 324172 324172 - -
KE Group

TRBUL A R EKBER
B H IR1T B R 2
HEDH  EDERER
195 5% A3 P 88 13 7E TRLE JE
R 2RBEAELHME
SEEOFEMR - Bt
ZEREAR T XHARE
HESTPMEARIRE
RKEEIREAKRENS
B EREINAEEMET
AR BEERRBRIT IR
AIRERITEE BRI ANME
BHEIEE - EFHE
BRRITEFHEREE
TR 195 % P9 BT 80 O T8 E 8 K
HEEE -

The table that follows summarises the maturity

analysis of bank loans with a repayment on demand

clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set

out in the loan agreements. The amounts include

interest payments computed using contractual

rates. As a result, these amounts were greater than

the amounts disclosed in the “within 1 year

or on

demand” time band in the maturity analysis shown

below. Taking into account the Group’s financial

position, the directors do not consider that it is

probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to

demand immediate repayment. The directors believe

that such bank loans will be repaid in accordance

with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the

loan agreements.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

Group (continued)

HHALF-ARREXBREABRINBTER  RER

TERAH

Maturity analysis - Bank loans subject to repayment on demand

clause based on scheduled repayment dates

BHRITER
Behg (£
am 1¥hs  BORF
Total #%ZXREE  Morethan
IREE  contractual Within 1 year but WL
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or lessthan  More than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 2 years
FiEx TiEr TiEn TiEn TET
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BR=2-Z£xA=TH As at 30 June 2013
RITEH Bank loan 336,181 344,288 148,034 196,254 -
RZB-ZERA=TH  Asat30June2012
RITEH Bank loan 34,172 332471 331,217 1,254 -
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.5 Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position

The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities
into three levels based on the relative reliability of
significant inputs used in measuring the fair value
of these financial assets and liabilities. The fair value

hierarchy has the following levels:

REDRATEE :

- HBIE:-MHREER -
BTS2 HE CR

R ;

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets;

- EE:RIAME -
B (BNER) s
(BN BARIEDT) AT R
RZBA(TBRIES prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
1EBMBEE2ZWmE) and
&

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the instruments, either directly (i.e. as

- E3EUFEREA -

Level 3: inputs for the instruments that

BR s misEEmE are not based on observable market data
BT A 28 A (8% (unobservable inputs).

BRZBA) -

—HTMEENMBEERS
PIESEAZ A FERER
ZER BERHRTE
AAERABABREZIRIE
BREMETE - NEEH
Bk R, BHRRAERA
BAVEFEZESREE
RBEDIADRATZA
FERE:

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the financial assets and liabilities is categorised in its
entirety is based on the lowest level of input that
is significant to the fair value measurement. The
financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
in the consolidated statement of financial position/
statement of financial position are grouped into the
fair value hierarchy as follows:

[&]
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48.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

BHEK ) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
48.5 MEFHEAR R RIER 2 D F 48.5 Fair value measurements recognised in the
Bt & (&) statement of financial position (continued)
K58
Group
F1E EY] F3E @it
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FAT FAT FAT FAET
HK$"000 HK$"000 HKS'000 HK$"000
(Hit@)  (HEm) ()
(note (a))  (note (b)) (note (c))
RZE-=FxA=1H Asat30June 2013
AftME s SREE Available-for-sale financial assets
~TEABLEMZBAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 13,559 - - 13,559
—~EEMEMZRAES - Equity securities listed in overseas 9,707 - - 9,707
BEEE L EMES - Listed securities held for trading:
~EEBLEMZRAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 12,072 - - 12,072
R ZBEEERE  Redemption options of convertible note - - 7 7
fTEEMTA Derivative financial instruments - 38 - 38
35,338 38 7 35,383
RZZ-ZFXA=1H Asat30June 2012
HEsSREE Available-for-sale financial assets
—~EEBLEMRAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 13,077 = = 13,077
~EBMNETZRAES - Equity securities listed in overseas 19,828 - - 19,828
REEE FhEs - Listed securities held for trading:
~EEBEM2RAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 11,548 = = 11,548
ARREE 2 EE#EEE  Redemption options of convertible notes - - 148 148
TESRIE Derivative financial instruments - (84) - (84)
44,453 (84) 148 44 517
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m—+)\ > AR EIE HIZ 48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

B BUR (4#)

48.5 R KRR KRBERZ D F 48.5 Fair value measurements recognised in the
Bt E (E) statement of financial position (continued)
N
Company
F1E F2UE F3E @it
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FET FET FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$"000
(Hit@)  (HEEm) (W)
(note (a))  (note (b)) (note (c)
R=ZZ-=Z%5xA=1TH Asat30June 2013
HRREE ZEREZE  Redemption options of convertible note = = 7 7
RZZ-ZFXB=1H Asat30June 2012
ARER ZELIEEE  Redemption options of convertible notes = = 148 148

)EHE(\\E-I—%Z\\EPEZ??jf&
B B S DA 2 95 65 2
RO A 2 «

Kt -

@ LEWHERARBZZAF
ENVRSELEEAM
BeEABEELD
1R R & B R BN B SN E
B IE & i (@

E)

() TTEEBMIAEZRAF
B3 AIERT 5
UTEZHEEE
S fE A E M A
THEEERAYE
ERAMEERATEE
ISR °

The methods and valuation techniques used for
the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged
compared to the previous reporting periods.

Notes:

(a) Fair values of listed equity securities have been
determined by reference to their quoted bid
prices at the reporting date and have been
translated using the spot foreign currency
rates at the end of the reporting period where
appropriate.

(b) Fair values of derivative financial instruments are
measured using quoted prices in active markets
for similar instruments, or using valuation
techniques in which all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly based on observable market
data.
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.5 Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(0 The Group's financial assets classified in Level
3 use valuation technique based on significant
inputs that are not based on observable market
data.

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3

STEMNEFHMT during the year are as follows:
REBERAKAT
Group and Company
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$’ 000
FET FET
AJHAAR S5 2 FE O] =2 4 Redemption options of convertible notes
REH At beginning of the year 148 1,361
il Additions - 1,644
AT EZE ([HEFE=1+5) Fair value change (note 35) (141) (2,857)
RER At end of the year 7 148

RERN - WEF1EEH2
ERMAFEEER
TNEAT AR EE ARE
FI/(ZF——F:8]) -

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2012: Nil).
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The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and
healthy ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the current and previous years.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debts divided by total equity plus net debts. Net debts
are calculated as the sum of bank and other borrowings
less cash and cash equivalents as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group aims to maintain
the gearing ratio at a reasonable level and the directors
are of the opinion that the Group’s gearing ratio was
maintained at reasonable level at the reporting date. The
gearing ratios as at the reporting date were as follows:
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REE
Group
2013 2012
FET FET
HK’000 HK$°000
nBaE Current liabilities
RITERK Bank loans 336,181 324,172
IR & Convertible note = 54,889
FEfREE A R F0E Due to related companies 2,321 =
PRRRRR IR E S Loan from a controlling shareholder 10,000 -
FERBERE Non-current liabilities
AR R Convertible note 9,874 13,694
FERT R A R 5IR Due to related companies 83,903 27,961
FEFER 4 PE IR A B]ZE Due to ultimate holding company 1,546 7,877
PERRRRERIRME M E R Loan from a controlling shareholder 95,022 105,000
[Ey Gk Total debts 538,847 533,593
B IREeRIREERE  Less: Cash and cash equivalents (37,911) (85,236)
FRE Net debts 500,936 448,357
BEmEE Total equity 1,785,408 1,645,618
kGOSN =R Total equity and net debts 2,286,344 2,093,975
=N =R s Gearing ratio 21.9% 21.4%
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= PARTICULARS OF PROPERTY
R-_ZTE—=FxA=1+H as at 30 June 2013
BEYE INVESTMENT PROPERTY

AEE B (LR

Attributable

NE JZE=S FHER interest
Location Use Lease term of the Group
e 8 R 236-24255 EES & A 100%
236-242 Dex Voeux Road Central Commercial Long
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the respective published audited financial statements
and restated as appropriate, is set out as below. This summary does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

45 RESULTS
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
FExT FET FET  FET  FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g Revenue 949,215 955,712 973,501 1,031,708 1,189,622
bR AT 15 25 A A Profit before income tax 87,660 215,020 35,387 11,189 71,142
Fri8® (BsZ) /4% Income tax (expense)/credit (1,303)  (2,494)  (5,646)  (6,594) 1,130
FIE A Profit for the year 86,357 212,526 29,741 4,595 72,272
FEPE il 2 Non-controlling interests (510) 2,368 3,712 217 (10)
RRAFHEB A Net profit attributable to
JE 1k A A the owners of the Company 85,847 214,894 33,453 4812 72,262
EE BEREEHESR ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BERAE Total assets 2,758,770 2,634,216 1,528,734 1,399,111 2,013,672
BERRE Total liabilities (973,362) (988,598) (495,596) (391,595) (967,771)
FEE Il 7 2 Non-controlling interests 6,055 6,565 3,665 (1,057)  (1,274)

1,791,463 1,652,183 1,036,803 1,006,459 1,044,627
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